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I Commoe, Clo<k SigoaWffi ~ ~ 
Explanation o, ,eaoon fo, introd"ction of ~ffiaMn <rt a health iosmaace 
exchange. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Keiser: Opened the hearing on HB 1126. 

Adam Hamm-North Dakota Insurance Commissioner: (see attached testimony). Discusses the 
fiscal note. 

Representative N Johnson: You mentioned something about regional, is there a way for a group 
of states could pool resources to develop :one kind of plan that work for all of them, is that possibility 
or any discussions along that line. 

Adam Hamm: Under the law that is one possibility. Where the rubber meets the road, when you 
thing about the issues in building the exchange so it gets certified by the federal government, now 
you have taken all that complexity and you just multiplied it times other states to agree and their 
legislatures to bless that. I don't know any states that are thinking of moving down the road of 
doing that. 

Representative Ruby: How different would a state exchange be from a federal exchange be when 
it's dictated from the federal government anyway. 

Adam Hamm: In theory should be the same, the law would be the same. Where the rubber 
meets the road in 2014, will the state of North Dakota be better at running its own exchange. 

Representative Ruby: Are all the insurance plans going to have to go through the exchange and 
how soon will be known? 

Adam Hamm: I don't have that answer right now. Will there be allowed an outside market 
independent of the health insurance exchange for individuals and small businesses? The key 
issues there is adverse selection, we want to prevent folks from jumping back and forth between the 
exchange and outside the exchange if they can get some sort of advantage. Also, for small states 
like ours th.at don't have a huge populaiion; this even becomes a bigger issue because for the 
federal government to be successful to attract a large numbers of companies to offer their products 

~ ,.. II ' " 

to a large numbers· of consumers to _corn,e 10 the exc~ange and buy the products, it's built on the 
law of numbers. Larger state will have the advantage. For a state with a small population like ours, 
what will be the impact for the exchange if you also have an outside market? Can either one of 
them succeed? This is one of the number of issues we will have to wrestle with to decide which 
way is best for North Dakota. This will be an area where expert consultants will help. 
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Representative Ruby: If somebody is eligible for a plan but are eligible based on their income for 
Medicaid or SCHIP, are they forced into the Medicaid or SCHIP other than just being covered by 
their insurance plan? 

Adam Hamm: The way it works, once the IT network is seamless and integrated and running in 
2014, he goes to the exchange and starjs answering all the background questions for him and his 
family. If the exchange determines that he doesn't need to be at the exchange insurance shopping 
for health insurance plan, he really needs to be in Medicaid, he now fits the new expanded role of 
Medicaid in the states. Remember it starts at 133% of federal poverty level. He's now eligible for 
Medicaid, it's just doesn't tell him that, it enrolls him, real-time enrollment. 

Chairman Keiser: So the statement you can keep what you now have may not be true in the 
exchange? 

Adam Hamm: I would concur with that statement. 

Representative Amerman: On page 6, what does the commission do if the state runs the 
exchange? One of the bullets says, to consider whether to seek federal grant funds, in you 
deliberation to consider taking grant funds, why would you not take grant money. 

Adam Hamm: We have already analyzed a number of grant opportunities and declined one. We 
applied for grants relative to the rate review issues and planning exchange, both of those were 
million dollar grants. We did not apply for what was dubbed a consumer assistance grant, when we 
analyzed it; it became apparent that it wasn't worth it. We will analyze every grant opportunity. 

Representative Vigesaa: Explain how long does it take to set up the exchange and how that 
relates to the time lines that the federal government has given to us? 

Adam Hamm: That's the.64,000 dollar q'uestion. It's going to take every day possible and this is a 
massive undertaking to make sure that it'.s done right, complies with the federal law and is ready to 
be operational by January 2014. There is belief that we should wait to see what happens with this 
law in congress over the course of the next year. If that what the legislative assemble decides to 
do, that will pose a challenge to the insurance department. What it would mean if we waited a year 
and didn't pass this bill with an emergency clause to let the department to start working, what you 
would be moving of these issues down the road about 8-9 months, you would be shortening that 
time frame to get things done. We have,already started putting the list of everything that needs to 
be done in 2011, 2012 & 2013. What it would mean is that everything would be pushed. It would 
pose a very difficult challenge to get this done. My believe is that the federal government does not 
want to run the exchanges.My preference would be asap, there is a ton of work to be done. 

Representative Vigesaa: You mentioned the shop program, the small business, is that the 50 
employee cut off? What size business will use that program? ,, . 

. :1 ~ .. 
Adam Hamm: .Yes, it's 50 over time ana that definition can be expand in 2017 to 100 employees 
will be in the small° group market and indi~iduals." 

. ti 
Representative -Vigesaa: How about la'rger groups, what will those people do to purchase their 
insurance? 1 ,. 

J 
Adam Hamm: The same currently, unless the exchange changes the definition. 
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Representative Vigesaa: To the individual, when they go to the web site and determine what they 
are going to pay, do they buy directly from the insurance company or run payment through the 
insurance department you handle? 

Adam Hamm: Some of that is sorted out and some of it has not been completely hammered out, 
for now that subsidy has to be paid through the exchange to the insurance company. 

Representative Vigesaa: The exchange becoming self funding, do you foresee being able to 
assess enough user fees to pay for the program or come to the legislative body each biennium 
asking for some assistance? 

Adam Hamm: That depends how successful the exchange is. If the exchange is not successful, 
then there is the likely hood they will be coming to the legislative for funds to operate the exchange. 

Chairman Keiser: Massachusetts is an extreme exchange and it currently has an operating budget 
from the state of 27 million a year. 

Representative N Johnson: You testimony on the function for what the exchange would have to 
do, you talked about sending information to the treasurer and somebody ceases employment, can 
you explain more in dept what that means? 

Adam Hamm: I would be happy to if there was further information, the testimony of the bottom of 
page 4, talks about transferring to the Secretary of the Treasure a whole host of answers, it going to 
put a substantial burden on the exchange to make sure these things are being done and certify to 
the federal government that they are happening. It's going to include having to get information that 
state agencies typically don't have to take, like Social Security numbers, and providing that 
information back and forth between the federal government, keeping track of employees. This is one 
of the areas where HHSS promulgating more rules and regulations as be build up to 2014 . . , 

Representative N Johnson: I heard at some point that if an employer is covering somebody and 
they chose to drop their insurance, then there is a penalty on the employer? 

Adam Hamm: Explains how the employer mandate works. Yes there is a penalty. I will get you 
copies of that. 

Representative N Johnson: You talked about the 3 running the exchange, the federal 
government, the state through some department and then the nonprofit. Has there been any talk 
from any nonprofit about picking this up? 

Adam Hamm: We have heard from only one nonprofit that indicated some level of interest in the 
exchange and that was Dakota Medical Fo;undation. 

• I 

Representative Nathe: You mentioned that there were discussions about delaying implantation of 
the exchange waiting to see how things play out in DC, you stated how fluid everything is here, if we 
decide to wait until special session, is ther~ anything your department could do in the meantime? 

Adam Hamm: Yes we can. We can use that million dollar grant that we are to receive from the 
federal government to bring consultants on board to start getting answers to some of these 
questions of what is the best way we can build this exchange. There are other grants that become 
available to help us plan for the exchange and the Legislature to avail ourselves of those funds. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: Will the exchange be setting premiums for the products in the exchange or 
will you be approving premiums that the exchange companies suggest they need? 
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Adam Hamm: The insurance department would retain its authority over premiums. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: Would you envision that each company's premiums would be the same? 

Adam Hamm: No way to know, you wou\d think some variance. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: Provider side ~f this equation, will you be involved setting reimbursement 
rates between the providers· and the exchange or is that something that they will continue to 
negotiate on their own and currently are doing? 

Adam Hamm: We will not be part of that, just like we are not a part of that now. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: No mandated reimbursement levels to the providers, it's going to be a 
negotiated situation as it currently is with the federal government if we have our state run exchange? 

Adam Hamm: That's my understanding but everything that I say has the caveat of this could 
change. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: You don't envision that the exchange will negotiate an on behalf of the 
insurance companies a reimbursement level that would be equal for all companies? 

Adam Hamm: That's not my understanding of how it will work, no. 

Representative Boe: The 3 entities that could run exchange, no one is going to be able to do this 
without a subsidy level? If the federal government takes this, would they expect us to send a bill for 
the subsidy level or will they do it at zero cost? 

Adam Hamm: No,. they will do it for nothing; it will not be a burden to the state of North Dakota. 

Representative Boe: The deadline passes and they set up the exchange, the door is closed, would 
we have the opportunity to take it back? 

Adam Hamm: Nobody knows the answe~ to that, that's not defined in the law. 

Representative Frantsvog: Didn't turn on mic for recording. . . ' 
. 1: 

.Adam Hamm: I share the concerns you have whether or not the IT component can be done within 
this time frame. If will be a difficult issue 1to be resolved by 2014 because it's something that hasn't 
been done. in North Dakota or ariywheie in the country, the real time IT integrated network across all 
insurance plans and government assistarce programs. That number we came up with, the 30 
million number, there is no magic to that, is our best guess. If we have been given the authority by 
the emergency commission to start spending that planning grant, this was one of the first issues we 
were going to dig into. The other states also have to figure out how much this is going to cost. 
There is the possibility that states can share resources over the course of the next couple years to 
build this thing in a cheaper fashion. For Ihe purpose of the Fiscal Note, we had to come up with a 
number. 

, . 

Representative Amerman: Penalties fori~ver 50 employees, where does the money go? 
I . 

Adam Hamm: Federal Government. 

Representative Nathe: Is there already a template out there already in the private sector? 
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Adam Hamm: If that exist, I'm not aware of any. My understanding there are no states who have 
this. 

Representative Nathe: What the status other states getting close to meeting the deadline? 

Adam Hamm: There are a few states that already have an exchange already, there are states that 
already worked this issue through their legislature and most states are working on it. To my 
knowledge, no state has said no that they are not going to do it. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: Back to how the exchange, would operate in a small group market, 15 
below with the current law, knowing that it might change. If an insurance company does not provide 
or enter into the exchange to offer an insurance product for an individual or group policy under 50, 
will they still be able sell that product outside the exchange or does every product must go through 
the exchange to be able to market in North Dakota. 

Adam Hamm: That is one of the issues the department or whatever authority that is building the 
exchange, will wrestle with. That is the issue, will there be an outside market or will the exchange be 
the only one for the small and individual market. They decide which works best for North Dakota. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: Under current:law, you have the authority to choose whether there is an 
outside or it all goes through the exchange? 

Adam Hamm: No, PPACA has not told us. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: Will you be petitioning HHS to ask if you feel an outside market is in our 
best interest, how will that work? 

Adam Hamm: My understanding that it's left silent, it's up to the states if you are going to build your 
own exchange as to whether or not you are going to have an outside market or not. You will not 
have to petition for it. 

,, 
Representative Vigesaa: The IT spending, I assuming that it's just your department? I'm sure the 
Human Services is going to have to have 'an upgrade in their IT system. · · 

• _,. - 1 • ·il, /· ·· -. . · . 
· Chairman Keiser: That is what the ·amendment is that Human Services is, we will wait until they 
, come up. The question is does your 30 ri!iillion dollars contained dollars to do what they need done 
or do they need the 15 million that they are requesting? 

Adam Hamm: It's virtually impossible for me to answer that. I would like to hear what the Human 
Services is going to say to that question. I would hope that it's not tens of millions of dollars for each 
issue. I hope with one number, we can get this sorted so that it will be a seamless, integrated 
network.. I hope the federal government makes good on what it said that the state will be given 
dollars to get the exchanges up and running, including this IT component. If that's the case its pretty 
much revenue neutral if the federal government goes dollar for dollar . . , 

' 
Representative Vigesaa: On page 7, yo~ talked about the mile stone for next month, do you know 
what the miles stone and would the passage of this ·Iegislation be one those mile stones? 

• '• • < 

Adam Hamm: We have put together our'own planning and implementation time line. 

Representative Vigesaa: Those would be miles stones that would be looked at by the federal 
government as being in compliance with the plan and being able to apply for grants? 
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Adam Hamm: Yes, we already have gotten some guidance, that's very preliminary of the miles 
stones for each year, that will be flushed out by HHS as we move our way through, but from what we 
know now, that how we put the list together. 

Chairman Keiser: In establishing the exchange, one of big questions is how much is available in 
the form of grants, do we have any idea? 

Adam Hamm: No, that number you would not find. 

Chairman Keiser: When we are scored, there are a set of assumptions that are sent with the bill, 
the assumptions are scored, so elements like, for the cost of the exchange were not included. They 
are identified in the bill and that they are necessary but they don't need to score them. Also, the 

· number of new employees the IRS needs to hire to implement this bill, are not included in the 
scoring by CBO, only the assumptions attached to the bill. 

Carol Olson-Executive Director of the Department of Human Services: (see attached 
testimony). 

Representative Boe: Depending on who picked up the duties of implementing the exchange, how 
would that affect your department? 

Carol Olson: No it would not. We need the eligibility to go along with the exchange where ever it's 
housed . 

Chairman Keiser: Anyone here to testify in support of HB 1126, in opposition, neutral? Closes the 
hearing. 

,. 
'i 
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Explanation or reason for introduc'tion of bill/resolution: 

Creation of a health insurance exchange. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Keiser: I did meet with the commissioner this morning and was not surprised 
with the amendments. He said I understands and is go along with it. The exchange at the 
hearing this morning, there is an additional amendments distributed, one by the insurance 
department and the appropriations, committee handed out the formal copy for the 
amendment. We have a bunch of amendments to deal with. We have the amendment that 
I distributed this morning. Then we have the 2 appropriation amendments. If we adopt the 
amendment, which I distributed, the' appropriations will come off the bill and no further 
actions will be required until the special session. However, we do need to discuss whether 
or not we the department should apply for and release the million dollar planning grant for 
designing the exchange plan and working on it. If we adopt my amendment we will have to 
further amendment to reinstate the 1 million dollar planning grant if that is the wishes of the 
committee. 

Chairman Keiser: Committee, what are your wishes of HB 1126? 

Representative Vigesaa: This morning they talked about the emergency commission and 
the budget section had. put some fun~~ on hold. Is that the money we are talking about? 

,, ' 

Chairman Keiser: The 1 million doU~r planning grant is what they were talking about. .. , 

' 't ' 
Representative Vigesaa: Ok, so, th~t:ha's been already applied for and is waiting to be 
appropriated? · · : · · · · 

Chairman Keiser: I don't believe that is correct. They wanted to apply for it, they went to 
the emergency commission and said; should we apply for it and can we have the money. 
They put it on hold and said, wait for the legislative session . 

Representative Amerman: It says that the commissioner shall submit proposed 
legislation to legislative management for consideration at a special legislative session; does 

II 
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that mean the commissioner would go before legislative management and not the entire 
assembly or committee? 

Chairman Keiser: No, I know the language sounds goofy, but it is the way it has to be. 
Once we adjourn legislation we are out of business until literally we come back into 
session. In order to be prepared for the special session because the special session will 
only last 5-7 days, to get it to that point, the strategy is that you submit it to the legislative 
management committee which represents the legislature when we are not in session and 
they would make the determination to submit it to the legislature. It's a technical thing but 
is a requirement. · 

Representative Clark: On the proposed amendment dated January 27, (inaudible) 2012? 

Chairman Keiser: No, what this amendment does is it has two parts. You need to go 
back to the time table, everything that must to be address in 2012, must be brought forward 
to the special session in November, 2011. Everything that occurs in 2013 and 2014 has to 
come in the 2013 session. What this is doing is you bring it forward to legislative 
management by October 15, which is the deadline for submitting to the interim committee 
reports and things like that. Legislation would be developed and brought forward to the 
appropriate process. Then it would become committee bills to legislature on behalf of the 
insurance program. ;i . · 

. . . ' f • . 

-
i · Repr~senta.tlve Ruby;' Moves the a~~ndment 11.8110.01002. 

fi 
•1 . 

• 

Representative Nathe: Second. 

Voice vote, motion carries. 

Chairman Keiser: Motion carries; the amendment is on the bill. Do you want another 
amendment to give the insurance department the authority to apply for and receive the 1 
million dollar planning grant? 

Representative N Johnson: Moves;the amendment. 
. d . 

. ir 

Representative Frantsvog: Second.' . 
. . . . . ·,, 

. • i ~ 
Chairman Keiser: Further questions,? 

Representative Vigesaa: I know there was some concern that if we applied for that grant, 
is it going to marry us to the federal government, but I think we are already shortening the 
commission's time line by almost a year. We need to allow them to have funds to work 
towards this goal, this is appropriate tCJ give him some time. 

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion? ·, 
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Chairman Keiser: Members, if you don't give him the million from the federal grant, then 
we have to go to the general fund. 

Representative Boe: Is the million dollars all that he needs or will he need additional 
funds? 

Chairman Keiser: I don't know that nor does the insurance commissioner know. 

Representative Amerman: Will you state again how your amendment takes away the 
appropriation, will it take away the same for Health and Human Services. 

Chairman Keiser: Yes but we haven't adopted the Health and Human Service 
amendment. 

Voice vote, motion carries. 

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion? 
·' 

Representative N J_ohnsori: I'm looking for the Department of Human Service's 
amendment_ and in· section 5, to cbllaborate with the Department of Human Services, 
' . • ' I 

without the money part, should that probably be in the bill? 

Chairman Keiser: They should collaborate. Further discussion? We have amendment on 
HB 1126, what are the wishes of the committee? 

Representative Vigesaa: When the money is put on there, should it be re-referred to 
appropriations? 

Chairman Keiser: I think so. 

Representative Vigesaa: 
appropriations. 

Moves a Do Pass as Amended and re-refer HB 1126 to 

Representative Sukut: Second. · 

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion? 

Representative N Johnson: I know we are going to end up with the 2 agencies being 
concerned because there is no fiscal riote. If they are concerned they are going to have to 
address it on the Senate side. I'm sure we see this back in conference committee . 

. Ii 

Roll call was taken for a Do Pass ~J Amended with a re-refer to appropriations on HB . - . ' . . . 
1126 with 12 ye_as, 0 nays, 2 abseil,/ 

. . :.-. , , I 

• •t 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Creation of a health insurance exchange. 

Work Committee Session Minutes: 

Chairman Keiser: Opens the work session on HB 1126. 

Chairman Keiser: We could bring it back and to have the committee reconsider its actions 
by which we amended and passed the bill so we can deliberate further on that bill. 

Representative Ruby:. Motions to r~consider our action. 

Representative Nathe: Second. 

Chairman Keiser: This is my mistake. I started thinking on this bill and wondering 
whether or not by putting in the amendments yesterday, we accomplished with HB 1126 
what the committee's intent. We put in there the amendment that said that the 
commissioner must come back to the 2 sessions but we left in the appropriation. It was 
confusing, it said that we were appropriating all the dollars and limited it to just the million 
dollars. We also, if you look at page 1, line 10 and the bill read, plan and implement. I 
knew there was something wrong with that. We don't want them to implement, we want 
them to plan. John, could you walk us through the amendment? 

. John Bjor"!son~WSI for Legislativ~;council: Goes over the amendment 11.8110.01002, 
: _(see·attachedamendme~t). . ;\ ,. · _ _ ,, _ 

• ,Chairm~~ Keiser:.. Wfi have this amendment before us, what are the. wishes of the 
· · · commiJtee? :; · 

'ii 
Vice Chairman Kasper: Move to adopt amendment 11.8110.01002. 

- Representative Ruby: Second. 

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion? 
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Voice vote, motion carried. 

Representative Ruby: Moves a Do Pass as Amended. 

Representative Frantsvog: Second. 

Roll call was taken for a Do Pass as Amended on HB 1126 with 14 yeas, 0 nays, 0 
absent and Represen~tive Vigesaa is the carrier. 

Ii 

,, 

., 
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Amendment to: Engrossed 

HB 1126 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0312412011 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
fundina levels and annrooriations anticioated under current law. 

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $1,000,000 

Expenditures $1,000,000 

Appropriations $1,000,000 

1B. · County, city, and school district fiscal effect: ldenti"' the fiscal effect on the anarooriate political subdivision. 
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities 

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the 
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

School 
Districts 

A The amended bill is to plan for the implementation of a health insurance exchange that meets the requirements of the 
.. federal health care law and any future regulations. 

Amendment 11.8110.02001 adds the Department of Human Services to the planning process and creates an advisory 
committee. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have 
fiscalimpact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of the amended bill authorizes planning for the implementation of the health insurance exchange. 

Section 2 of the amended bill provides an appropriation of $1,000,000 out of federal funds to the Insurance 
Department for the purpose of planning for implementation of an American health benefit exchange for the state. 

Amendment 11.8110.02001 has no additional fiscal impact to the Insurance Department. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

The amended bill will allow the Insurance Department to access $1 million of federal funding that has been made 
available to plan for the implementation the health insurance exchange. 

Amendment 11.8110.02001 has no additional fiscal impact on revenues to the Insurance Department. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, far each agency, line 
item, arid fund affected and the number dfFTE positions affected. 

:i . 
A The amended bill increases expe~ditures by authbrizing the Insurance Department. Insurance Department 
., expenditures will primarily be for contracting witti''experts and consultants to plan for the implementation of the health 



• insurance exchange. 

Amendment 11.8110.02001 has no additional fiscal impact on expenditures to the Insurance Department. 

• 
' 

• 

C, Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency 
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and 
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a 
continuing appropriation. 

The amended bill increases appropriations for the Insurance Department by $1 million dollars in federal funding. 

Amendment 11.8110.02001 has no additional fiscal impact on appropriations to the Insurance Department. 

Name: Lar Martin Insurance Department 
Phone Number: 701-328-2930 03128/2011 

' ., 
'.! 
' •\ ., ,, 
·\ 



Amendment to: HB 1126 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0211012011 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
fundina levels and aoorooriations anticioated under current law. 

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $1,000,000 

Expenditures $1,000,000 

Appropriations $1,000,00C 

18. Countv citv and school district fiscal effect: ldentifv the fiscal effect on the aooropriate oolitical subdivision. 
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities 

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the 
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

School 
Districts 

The amended bill is to plan for the implementation of a health insurance exchange that meets the requirements of the 
federal health care law and any future regulations. 

• B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have 
fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

• 1', 

Section 1 of the amended bill authorizes plannind for the implementation of the health insurance exchange . ., ,_ 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

The amended bill will allow the Department to access $1 million of federal funding that has been made available to 
plan for the implementation the health insurance exchange. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The amended bill increases expenditures by authorizing the Department to begin the planning process. Expenditures 
will primarily be for contracting with experts and consultants to plan for the implementation of the health insurance 

exch~nge_. J . , 
. . I[ . 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency 
and fund affected. ·Explain ttie relationshi/J.'between the amounts shown for expenditures and 
appropriations. indicate whether the appropriation is· also included in the executive budget or relates to a 
continuing appropriation. · 

The amended bill increases appropriations by $1 million dollars in federal funding. 

Larry Martin gency: Insurance Department 

701-328-2930 02111/2011 



Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1126 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

12/27/2010 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
fundino levels and annronriations anticioated under current law. 

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $1,000,00( $32,000,00( 

Expenditures $1,000,00( $32,764,51; 

Anprooriations $1,000,00( $32,764,51; 

1B. Countv citv and school district fiscal effect: ldentifv the fiscal effect on the annrooriate oo/itical subdivision. 
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities 

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the 
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). . . 

School 
Districts 

This bill is to plan and implement a health insurance exchange that meets the requirements of the federal health care 
- law and any future regulations. · 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have 
fiscal impact Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of the bill authorizes the planning and implementation of the health insurance exchange and authorizes the 
Department, with Emergency Commission and Budget Section approval, to seek federal funding for this purpose. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

This bill will allow the Department to seek Emergency Commission and Budget Section approval to receive additional 
federal funding that has been made availa_ble_to'.plan and implement the health insurance exchange. 

B. Expenditures: . Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
. itern, ahd fundaffected and the number.of FTE positions affected. ,, 

The bill increases ·expenditures for the 2009-201:1 biennium by authorizing the Department to begin the planning 
process by contracting with experts in the health.insurance industry to plan the structure of the exchange. In the 
2011-2013 biennium 4 new FTEs will be hired to develop the health insurance exchange. The fiscal impact in the 
2011-2013 biennium includes salaries and fringe ($602,697), operating ($2,161,820) and IT development 
($30,000,000) costs. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency 
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and 
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a 
continuing appropriation. ,, 

·l1 
'· 



• The Department is requesting an appropriation of $1 million in the 2009-2011 biennium to access a federal planning 
grant to begin planning the health insurance exchange. The appropriation request of $32,764,517 for the 2011-2013 
biennium is to allow the Department to begin hiring FTEs and to develop the IT infrastructure needed to implement the 
health insurance exchange by the deadline established by the 2010 federal legislation. 

Funding for costs not paid for by federal funds will come from the Insurance Regulatory Trust Fund as fund levels 
permit. 

Name: Lar Martin Insurance De artment 
Phone Number: 328-2930 01/14/2011 
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11.8110.01002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Keiser 

February 1, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

Page 1, line 2, after the second semicolon insert 'lo provide for application;" 

Page 1, line 10, replace "and implement" with "for the implementation or• 

Page 1, line 17, replace "establish" with "consider establishing" 

Page 1, line 19, replace "Take" with "Subject to section 3 of this Act, take" 

Page 1, line 22, replace "Consider'' with "Subject to section 3 of this Act, consider" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "Contract" with "Subject to section 3 of this Act, contract" 

Page 2, line 15, remove "-ADDITIONAL FUNDING" 

Page 2, line 16, remove "APPROVAL",. 

Page 2, line 16, remove ''The commissioner may seek emergency commission and budget 
section approval" 

Page 2, line 17, replace ''for authority to spend any general funds, special funds, or" with 
"There is appropriated the sum of $1,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, out or' 

Page 2, line 19, after "[Pub. L. 111-152]" insert "to the insurance commissioner for the purpose 
of planning for implementation of an American health benefit exchange for the state" 

Page 2, after line 20, insert: 

"SECTION 3. APPLICATION. In carrying out the requirements of this Act, the 
insurance commissioner shall provide regular updates to the legislative management 
during the 2011-12 interim. In determining, planning, and implementing an American 

.. ,, · health benefit exchange for the ,state, ·tlie commissioner shall submit proposed 
. legislation to the legislative mariagementfor consideration at a special legislative 

session if the commissioner is required by federal law to take any action by January 1, 
2013. For any plan, program, or requirement that must be implemented between 
January 1, 2013, and January 1, 2014, the commissioner shall submit proposed 
legislation to the legislative management before October 15, 2012." 

Renumber accordingly 

:1 

' 

I 

I 

Page No. 1 11.8110.01002 
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Chairman Keiser Representative Amerman 
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Committee 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 3, 2011 11 :04am 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_22_006 
Carrier: Vigesaa 

Insert LC: 11.8110.01002 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1126: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Keiser, Chainnan) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended. recommends 
DO PASS (14 YEAS. 0 NAYS. 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1126 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, after the second semicolon insert "to provide for application;" 

Page 1, line 10, replace "and implement" with "for the implementation of' 

Page 1, line 17, replace "establish" with "consider establishing" 

Page 1, line 19, replace "Take" with "Subject to section 3 of this Act, take" 

Page 1, line 22, replace "Consider" with "Subject to section 3 of this Act, consider" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "Contract" with "Subject to section 3 of this Act, contract" 

Page 2, line 15, remove". ADDITIONAL FUNDING" 

Page 2, line 16, remove "APPROVAL" 

Page 2, line 16, remove "The commissioner may seek emergency commission and budget 
section approval" 

Page 2, line 17, replace "for authority to spend any general funds, special funds, or" with 
"There is appropriated the sum of $1,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, out of' 

Page 2, line 19, after "[Pub. L. 111-152]" insert "to the insurance commissioner for the 
purpose of planning for implementation of an American health benefit exchange for 
the state," 

Page 2, after line 20, insert: 

"SECTION 3. APPLICATION. In carrying out the requirements of this Act, the 
insurance commissioner shall provide regular updates to the legislative management 
during the 2011-12 interim. In determining, planning, and implementing an American 
health benefit exchange for the state, the commissioner shall submit proposed 
legislation to the legislative management for consideration at a special legislative 
session if the commissioner is required by federal law to take any action by January 1, 
2013. For any plan, program, or requirement that must be implemented between 
January 1, 2013, and January 1, 2014, the commissioner shall submit proposed 
legislation to the legislative management before October 15, 2012." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_22_006 
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2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Human Services Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

HB 1126 
3-15-2011 

Job Number 15547 

D Conference Committee 

\\ Committee Clerk Signature '-1:A}rt~ 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the creation of a health insurance exchange 

Minutes: Attachments 

Senator Judy Lee opened the hearing on Engrossed HB 1126. 

Rep. George Keiser (District 47) introduced the bill. This is the bill that addresses the 
insurance exchange which the federal legislation requires the states to develop. The 
critical date for approval of the health exchange program for each state is January 1, 2013. 
That is in the legislation. ND has the obligation of addressing or positioning the state of ND 
for implementation of the Federal Health Care Reform Act. 
This short bill contains the information the House developed for the exchange. It also has 
an appropriation for application and declares an emergency. 
There is available to all states a $1 million grant for the planning/preparation for 
implementation of the exchange program in the states. Some in the House felt that by 
accepting this grant it might obligate the state in some form. He stressed that there are no 
strings attached if we accept this grant in terms of future implications for the state of ND 
relative to the implementation of a plan within our state. It does provide money for the 
Insurance Dept. to support the planning and development of an exchange program. 
The major portion of this bill is on line 25-30 on page 2 and on to the next page. 
It is the consensus of the House that we not overreach in terms of implementation of the 
state's response to the federal health care legislation. 
There are a lot of rules being promulgated and a lot of reactions to the rules. Already three 
states have requested an exclusion from the minimum loss ration standards that were 
developed in the federal legislation. The state of ND will have to make a decision if it is 
going to go for exclusion. We are in a state of flux/transition relative to the promulgation of 
rules. He read the application of the bill - Section 3 on page 2 - and said that with that 
language they have brought the legislature back in to the policy position on the 
implementation of the Federal Health Care Reform Act relative to the state of North Dakota. 

Senator Dick Dever asked if there was a need for FTE's for this planning part of the 
process. 
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Rep. Keiser thought the FTE'.s were in the insurance budget for the implementation of the 
health care act.· 

Senator Tim Mathern wondered what Rep. Keiser's thought would be to broaden the 
updates of the insurance commissioner to include all legislators in Section 3 page 2 line 26. 

Rep. Keiser said it was his personal opinion that you have to use the process we have 
which is the interim hearing process. It works. A new precedent was set last interim. It 
was the first time in the history of North Dakota that interim committee hearings were live 
on the internet. 

Senator Judy Lee said she was a part of those meetings and supports doing it. 
There are examples already in other states and wondered what kind of discussions his 
committee had about learning from those experiences and if they felt there was anything to 
gain from looking at those models. 

Rep. Keiser addressed the two existing models - Utah and Massachusetts. They are very 
far apart. The Massachusetts model is the ultimate Cadillac is showing signs of wear and 
tear if not failure. The Utah model at the other end of the extreme basically has a 
webpage. The one feature of the Utah plan that is phenomenal is that premiums can be 
taken from more than one source and he gave an example. 

Senator Tim Mathern said one of his concerns was the number of lives covered and the 
need to make the plan work and the overhead costs per person that we can afford. He 
wondered if this bill would permit the commissioner to be in discussions with neighboring 
states and come back recommendations. 

Rep. Keiser answered yes. 

Senator Judy Lee was seeing that there are updates to Legislative Management in the 
application section. Aside from the fact that it ends up going to a special session she was 
not seeing that the receiving committee is given the authority to really make any changes. 
She was concerned about the authority all being rested in one person or department. 
There doesn't seem to be a kind of checks and balances deal in the application section. 

Rep. Keiser replied that they tried to structure that section so they have the authority 
through legislation to make the final determination. 

Adam Hamm (ND Insurance Commissioner) testified in support of Engrossed HB 1126. 
Attachment #1 
He also explained that there were a couple of fiscal notes that flowed from this bill. The 
first had a fiscal note of over $32 million and after the bill became engrossed the second 
fiscal note was down to $1 million. The House decided that basically the final decision as 
to whether ND is going to build an exchange and who will build it will be left to the special 
session. Under engrossed HB 1126 the department will continue to analyze the issue, 
gather as much information as they can, advise the interim legislature leading up to the 
special session, and bring forth additional legislation for the special session to make the 
final call. 
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If the department is going to build this exchange, their analysis concluded that to build it, 
get the stamp of approval from HHS, it would take four FTE's. To run ii on a day to day 
basis beginning in 2014 would take an additional four FTE's. 
There are also FTE's that are needed separate and apart from the exchange. Those are 
related to HB 1125 and SB 2010. 

Senator Tim Mathern referred to page 2 of the testimony. It seemed to him that the three 
questions posed should be answered by the bill. He wondered if they should be more 
specific in the bill to give more direction. 

Commissioner Hamm replied that he would prefer that the legislature left this session 
saying "here is exactly what the answers are to those questions". But he understands why 
the House was reluctant to do that. 

Senator Tim Mathern voiced his concern that the more they delay the more the answer 
becomes that the federal government is going to run it. 

Commissioner Hamm said his understanding was that the special session would be later 
this year. If the special session is at the end of 2012 that means the federal government is 
running the exchange in North Dakota. The theory behind the law is not for the federal 
government to run these exchanges. 

Senator Dick Dever referred to the deadline of Jan. 1, 2015 for the exchange to be self 
funded and wondered how that happens. Another question he had was whether the federal 
exchange was somewhere in its development so we have some idea of what that looks 
like. 

Commissioner Hamm responded that to his knowledge the federal government has not 
started to build an exchange in the event states don't do it. The most likely way for an 
exchange to pay for itself is assessments on insurance companies. 

Senator Judy Lee asked if he sees a lot of the authority of the insurance departments 
diluted by the fact that companies will be going across state lines. 

Commissioner Hamm said no. They have looked at that issue in depth. Insurance 
companies will still have to be licensed state to state. If the federal government ran the 
exchange in ND they would be making those decisions on certifying, recertifying, 
decertifying plans. But the rates those companies would be able to charge would still have 
to go through the Insurance Department. 

Senator Judy Lee asked if he had any regional conversations with adjoining states. 

Commissioner Hamm said they have had preliminary discussions - kind of brainstorming . 

Senator Spencer Berry asked what his thought was about the chance of an expedited 
decision coming from the Supreme Court. 
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Commissioner Hamm replied that if there is a special session this fall, it would be before 
the US Supreme Court makes a final decision. The only expedited review going on right 
now was just granted in the Florida lawsuit. 

Senator Spencer Berry asked what he thought about a chance of extending the deadline 
of January 1, 2013 for the decision and January 1, 2014 for implementation. 

Commissioner Hamm replied that would require a change in the law. He hadn't heard of 
it being discussed at this point. 

Senator Spencer Berry assumed that if the federal government implements and handles 
the health care exchange in the state they would then bill the state. He wondered if there 
would be a penalty. 

Commissioner Hamm said it was his understanding that if the federal government runs 
the exchange in the state North Dakota would not have the cost for it. The federal 
government would build it and then they would have to make it self-sustaining. 
The theory is that in 2014 there will be substantially more insurance companies competing 
for all of our business. 

Carol Olson (Dept. of Human Services) provided neutral testimony. Attachment #2 
She pointed out that if there is an insurance exchange there has to be an eligibility system 
also. There can't be one without the other. The eligibility systems would require 
modification. 

Senator Dick Dever asked how much time to do this because the bill involves planning 
and this is part of implementation. 

Ms. Olson replied that it takes 44 months. She informed the committee that she has been 
in communication with both the Senate subcommittee on appropriations and the House 
subcommittee on appropriations as to the situation. She felt that if this goes to conference 
committee they would get a little planning money. 

Senator Tim Mathern asked if any of the planning monies or systems were funded in the 
Governor's budget. 

Ms. Olson said it was not in the Governor's budget. It was not in the Human Services 
budget and she explained timeframes and deadlines and challenges they faced. 

Lisa Feldner (Information Technology Department) provided neutral testimony. 
Attachment #3 

Senator Tim Mathern suggested the possibility of working together on common areas with 
counterparts in adjoining states recognizing that there are individual issues. Could it save 
time and money? 

Ms. Feldner thought that was a good idea. In the national association of CIO's that is one 
of the things she has been working with. They are doing as much research as they can. 
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Senator Judy Lee asked Carol Olson if there is going to be any kind of latitude for 
Medicaid and CHIP or is it all going to be the same in every state. 

Ms. Olson responded that there are standardizations of the interfaces that they can use 
but after that they are state specific. 

Senator Dick Dever stated that insurance companies are going to have to make 
investments in IT, too, to access. They are going to do business in multiple states. Will 
there be universality in the ability to do that? 

Ms. Feldner said that the federal government let out innovation grants and there were six 
states awarded those grants. That's for states to bring up these exchanges in cooperation 
with; in certain states, insurance companies. One of the other things they are supposed to 
be doing is coming up with technology standards so these systems can exchange 
information. 

Senator Judy Lee asked if there is any way this can be started without any funding in the 
beginning. 

Ms. Olson responded that what they are working on with the two appropriation sub 
committees right now is some start up planning money which is minimal. 

There was no further testimony. 

The hearing on HB 1126 was closed. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Minutes: 

Senator Judy Lee opened committee discussion on HB 1126. 

There was review and discussion on the testimony from Carol Olson, Dept. of Human 
Services, and Lisa Feldner, ITD. 

Senator Tim Mathern stated that he was concerned that the Dept. of Human Services is 
basically being set up to fail. 
Even if health care reform went by the wayside the state would still want to create a method 
of applying for assistance online and some eligibility process. The state would be doing it 
right now if it wasn't for MMIS being delayed. It's not part of this bill. It's assuming 
everything is done in the Dept. of Insurance and it isn't. 
The most part of funding for the Dept. of Human Services is health care - 62%. 

Senator Judy Lee suggested having Carol Olson and Lisa Feldner return to the committee 
to discuss this further. She remembered them both saying that the Dept. of Human 
Services part of this needs to come first. She thought the Insurance Dept. is only looking at 
what the insurance part is and not talking to those in the Human Services part of the whole 
thing. 

Senator Tim Mathern stated that the original bill is the Insurance Commissioners request. 
The bill before the committee is the House's request. He thought the bill, as introduced, 
was clear on what the Insurance Commissioner wanted. 

Senator Gerald Uglem pointed out the fiscal note numbers. 

There was discussion on the fiscal numbers and the need to recognize that the exchange 
won't work if the eligibility part isn't in there. 

The committee adjourned until such time as Ms. Olson and Ms. Feldner could answer 
questions for the committee. 

11 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Minutes: Attachments 

Senator Judy Lee reopened committee discussion on HB 1126. It was her understanding 
that the eligibility portion needs to be done before g'oing into the exchange. 

Carol Olson (Dept. of Human Services) explained that in order to have a working 
insurance exchange there has to be an eligibility system as well. It all has to operate in real 
time. The current eligibility system in the ND Dept. of Human Services is on mainframe 
and the system for the future has to be web based so it can be real time. 
She addressed the funding for the implementation of a new system - 90% federal 10% 
state. Maintenance would be 75/25. 

Senator Judy Lee asked what needs to be done to move this forward. She pointed out 
that they need to acknowledge the fact that there's going to be that kind of money required. 

Ms. Olson replied that she had been told by Rep. Keiser that this part of the health care 
reform will be brought up and decided upon in the special session. It is her understanding 
that there doesn't have to be any language in bill 1126 that indicates there would be an 
additional appropriation needed in a special session to cover that. 
The department is still concerned with no preplanning for the system. She has spoken to 
members of Senate Appropriations about the possibility of getting some language into SB 
2012 (the Dept's. appropriation bill) so it would allow the Dept. of Human Services to start a 
minimum of some planning. 
They would work with ITD who would be the entity that would be developing the new 
eligibility system for the state. 

Senator Spencer Berry wanted clarification on the 90/10 funding for the implementation of 
the new system . 

Ms. Olson explained that some programs are not a true 90/10. She also pointed out that 
the county that does eligibility is working off five systems. Portions of the eligibility system 
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are about 40 years old and there have been many discussions with the legislature about 
the replacement of the current system. 

Senator Tim Mathern asked (1) if the $1million (flat amount going to every state) should 
include money for the Dept. of Human Services versus just the Insurance Commissioner 
and (2) if they were talking of the possibility of almost eliminating most county eligibility 
work if the system gets up and running. 

Ms. Olson wasn't sure how to answer the first question. She deferred to Jenny Withum 
from the IT department in Human Services. 

Jenny Withum responded that the Commissioner would be looking at the architecture of 
the exchange. A component of that would be how they would interface with the Medicaid 
system but what the Dept. of Human Services is asking for would be to specifically look at 
how they would have to change their internal system to interact with the exchange. 
She did not believe the Commissioner's funding would cover that portion of it. 

More discussion followed on the 90/10 breakdown. About 60% of the rules or coding that 
would be needed for the eligibility system is Medicaid and CHIP. All that the exchange 
needs is Medicaid and CHIP to interact with it. 

Ms. Withum talked about the Medicaid eligibility determination and that right now it actually 
exists in two separate applications - Vision and TECS. 

Ms. Olson, in answer to Sen. Mathern's second question earlier, said yes they do still need 
the counties to interface with the clients. 

Senator Tim Mathern asked if the dept. can really accomplish what they would be 
expected to accomplish if they aren't authorized to proceed until the special session 

Discussion followed - there is so much speculation especially in Congress as to the 
direction the nation is going to take as a whole on health care reform. There is a need to 
proceed with this eligibility system regardless of health care reform. The current system is 
a big inconvenience and very time consuming. 

Senator Dick Dever wanted to know where other states were in this process and whether 
it is likely the deadline will be shifted. 

Ms. With um reported on some other states and how far they are in this process. 

Senator Judy Lee asked for clarification that the Dakota Medical Foundation gave money 
so Medicaid and CHIP eligibility could be moved together in Vision. 

Ms. Withum confirmed that. 

Senator Judy Lee recognized that they had the advisory committee to discuss as an 
amendment and asked if there was anything else that needed to be changed in 1126. 
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Ms. Olson said just the advisory committee. 

Lisa Feldner (IT) felt the bill was ok with some kind of an advisory committee. 

Senator Judy Lee asked if there was anything else she wanted to bring to the attention of 
the committee. 

Ms. Feldner answered that the exchange portion of this is a big deal. If the feds are willing 
to stand it up and turn it over to us she thought that would be ITD's position - that would be 
the best alternative assuming they turned the technology over once they finished building it. 

Senator Tim Mathern announced that he had amendments coming for 1126 and outlined 
them. They would do the advisory committee and also give the Dept. of Human Services 
the same ability to plan as what is given to the Insurance Commissioner. 
He asked if it would make things work better if they were given that authority to plan for 
what needs to be done. 

Ms. Feldner answered that the fact they are able to plan would be very beneficial. 

Senator Tim Mathern said the amendments are intended to address this question and 
asked that they be considered when they are ready . 

Senator Dick Dever asked how much time is required to put out RFP's and secure the 
federal dollars once the decision is made to go ahead. 

Ms. Feldner responded by saying that (1) with the eligibility system and if ITD is building it 
an RFP is not needed (2) on the insurance exchange it depends on who is building it, who 
is the entity in charge, etc. They don't have answers to those things until they get more 
guidance from the federal government. 
As far as the deadline, she didn't see how any state is going to make the deadlines other 
than Massachusetts. · 

Senator Judy Lee recessed discussion until later in the day. 

Senator Judy Lee brought the committee back to order and asked the committee to look at 
the amendment that discusses having the advisory committee. Attachment #4. 

Senator Tim Mathern thought it was a good idea. He also asked legislative council to 
draft it in their style in the amendment he was bringing. ' 

Updating the system was discussed. Would they put together a system that expensive if 
they didn't have to meet federal guidelines? Could they do it for less and get it updated? 
Another aspect is the web application. When it comes to health care staff will still be 
needed but to what extent. 
The challenge is that there are different levels of eligibility for everything. Part of that will 
be resolved if PPACA moves forward. 
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Amendments .02001 were presented for discussion by Senator Tim Mathern. He walked 
through and explained them for the committee. Attachment #5 
They recognize that both the Insurance Dept. and the Dept. of Human Services need the 
ability to plan and come up with recommendations to the special session of the legislature. 
This describes what of the federal law must be addressed in this exchange. 
The advisory committee was a new section. 

Rod St. Aubyn (BC/BS) had no concerns with the amendments as drafted. He understood 
that the original intent was that the Commissioner was going to develop this exchange and 
would be working with the interim committee. There is more than just the IT part of this -
how the exchange is going to work. There will be a lot of things intertwined with this. 
There is a need for legislative involvement and the advisory committee to ensure 
conversation from all parties. 

Senator Tim Mathern clarified that when he had legislative council draft this amendment 
he said he didn't want to diminish or change any reporting to the legislature or involvement 
of the legislature. There was no change in Section 3. The goal was to make sure that 
whatever is brought to the special session of the legislature reflects the broader concerns 
and not just the Commissioner's concerns. 

Senator Judy Lee referred to page 2 lines 6-11 the rule section. She wanted to know if 
that was just the Insurance Commissioner's chapter when they are talking about rule that 
the Insurance Commissioner can adopt. She also wanted to know if there was a need to 
state in a different way that state agencies shall cooperate with the commissioner because 
the Dept. of Human Services is an equal player in this. 

Senator Tim Mathern responded that this gives the Dept. of Human Services the same 
kind of latitude within their dept. as ii gives the Commissioner. 

Senator Judy Lee asked those in the room from the Dept. of Human Services if they were 
ok with the amendments. They indicated they were. 

Some discussion followed on comparisons between HB 1126 and HB 1252. 

Committee work was reconvened after a recess. 

Senator Judy Lee reported that she had visited with the Insurance Commissioner and he 
was comfortable with the amendments. 

Senator Tim Mathern moved to adopt the amendments .02001. 

Seconded by Senator Gerald Uglem. Roll call vote 5-0-0. Amendments adopted. 

Senator Tim Mathern moved a Do Pass as Amended and rerefer to Appropriations. 

Seconded by Senator Gerald Uglem. Roll call vote 5-0-0. Motion carried. 

Carrier is Senator Tim Mathern. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Mathern 

March 22, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

Page 1, line 2, after the first semicolon insert "to provide reports to the legislative 
management;" 

Page 1, line 9, after "commissioner" insert "and department of human services, in consultation 
with the advisory committee established under section 26.1-54-05," 

Page 1, line 19, after ".2.,_" insert "Plan for the implementation of an American health benefit 
exchange for the state which at a minimum provides for eligibility determination and 
enrollment of individuals in the state's medical assistance program and the state's 
children's health insurance program: simplification; and medical assistance and 
children's health insurance program coordination with the state health insurance 
exchange in a manner that meets the requirements of the Patient Protection and 
Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-148) as amended by the Health Care and Education 
Reconciliation Act of 2010 [Pub. L. 111-152). 

3!' 

Page 2, line 1, replace "3." with "4." 

Page 2, line 4, replace "4." with "5." 

Page 2, line 7, after "commissioner" insert "and department of human services" 

Page 2, line 10, after "commissioner" insert "and department of human services" 

Page 2, line 13, after "the" insert "department of human services and" 

Page 2, line 16, after the second "the" insert "department of human services," 

Page 2, line 16, after "commissioner" insert an underscored comma 

Page 2, after line 17, insert: 

"26.1-54-05. Advisory committee. 

An advisory committee is established to assist the commissioner and the 
department of human services in addressing the complexity and interdependence of 
the technology systems required by the health benefit exchange. The advisory 
committee membership is made up of the commissioner or the commissioner's 
designee, the executive director of the department of human services or the director's 
designee, the chief information officer or the chief information officer's designee, the 
governor or the governor's designee, and two members of the legislative assembly 
appointed by the chairman of the legislative management." 

Page 2, line 26, after "commissioner" insert ", department of human services, and advisory 
committee" 

Page 2, line 28, after "commissioner" insert "and department of human services" 

Page 2, line 29, after "commissioner" insert "or department of human services" 

Page 3, line 1, after "commissioner" insert "or department of human services" 

Page No. 1 118110 02001 



Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 11.8110.02001 
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Roll Call Vote# _ _,_ __ 

2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. / / ,;J(o 

Senate HUMAN SERVICES Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass O Do Not Pass O Amended \SZl Adopt Amendment 

0 Rerefer to Appropriations O Reconsider 

Motion Made By Sen. J?:J~ Seconded By Sen. (d_jjl4-v1., 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 

Sen. Judv Lee, Chairman r/ Sen. Tim Mathern ,/ 

Sen. Dick Dever v 

Sen. Gerald Ut1lem. V. Chair ,/ 

Sen. Soencer Berrv ,/ 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ___ _,,S='------- No ----'"""-------------

0 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, brieflY indicate intent: 
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0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 11. 2110 .o::;J..001 

Committee 

T,f/e.- o 3 C)C,O 

Action Taken: l;Z\ Do Pass O Do Not Pass \Sll Amended D Adopt Amendment 

fjll Rerefer to Appropriations O Reconsider 

Motion Made By Sen. /"',~ Seconded By Sen. lf_;L 
Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 

Sen. Judy Lee, Chairman ✓ Sen. Tim Mathern ✓ 

Sen. Dick Dever ✓ 

Sen. Gerald Uglem, V. Chair ,/ 

Sen. Spencer Berry ✓ 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ----=._s-=----- No_.>=<. __________ _ 

0 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 23, 2011 1 :17pm 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_52_011 
Carrier: Mathern 

Insert LC: 11.8110.02001 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1126, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Sen. J. Lee, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended. recommends 
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (5 YEAS, 
0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1126 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, after the first semicolon insert "to provide reports to the legislative 
management;" 

Page 1, line 9, after "commissioner" insert "and department of human services, in 
consultation with the advisory committee established under section 26.1-54-05," 

Page 1, line 19, after "2,_" insert "Plan for the implementation of an American health benefit 
exchange for the state which at a minimum provides for eligibility determination and 
enrollment of individuals in the state's medical assistance program and the state's 
children's health insurance program; simplification; and medical assistance and 
children's health insurance program coordination with the state health insurance 
exchange in a manner that meets the requirements of the Patient Protection and 
Affordable Care Act (Pub. L. 111-1481 as amended by the Health Care and Education 
Reconciliation Act of 2010 (Pub. L. 111-152). 

3." 

Page 2, line 1, replace ";t" with "4." 

Page 2, line 4, replace "4." with "5." 

Page 2, line 7, after "commissioner" insert "and department of human services" 

Page 2, line 10, after "commissioner" insert "and department of human services" 

Page 2, line 13, after "the" insert "department of human services and" 

Page 2, line 16, after the second "the" insert "department of human services" 

Page 2, line 16, after "commissioner" insert an underscored comma 

Page 2, after line 17, insert: 

"26.1-54-05. Advisory committee. 

An advisory committee is established to assist the commissioner and the 
department of human services in addressing the complexity and interdependence of 
the technology systems required by the health benefit exchange. The advisory 
committee membership is made up of the commissioner or the commissioner's 
designee, the executive director of the department of human services or the 
director's designee, the chief information officer or the chief information officer's 
designee, the governor or the governo~s designee, and two members of the 
legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of the legislative management." 

Page 2, line 26, after "commissioner" insert", department of human services, and advisory 
committee" 

Page 2, line 28, after "commissione~· insert "and department of human services" 

Page 2, line 29, after "commissione~· insert "or department of human services" 

Page 3, line 1, after "commissioner" insert "or department of human services" 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_52_011 
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TESTIMONY BEFORE JOINT HEARING OF 
HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS & INDUSTRY, BUSINESS, & LABOR 

HOUSE BILL 1126 
FEBRUARY 1, 2011 

Good morning, my name is Lisa Feldner and I serve as the Chief Information Officer for the 

Information Technology Department. On March 23, 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable 

Care Act (PPACA) became law requiring, among other things, that states establish a system of 

health benefit Exchanges. PPACA includes provisions to make it easy for individuals to enroll in 

coverage by requiring states to create a coordinated, simple, and technology-supported process 

through which individuals may obtain coverage through Medicaid, CHIP, and the new Exchanges. 

In my testimony today, I want to illustrate that providing what may be simple for enrollees on the 

front-end is all but simple on the back-end In the world of technology. In Figure 1, Step 1: The 

Application, you see the areas of information the individual needs to provide by entering it online 

into a web-based application. Step 2: Verification is where things start to get very involved. Based 

on the information provided by the individual, the system must then go out to multiple systems to 

verify the applicant's status. The Exchange must inter1ace with the IRS, the Social Security 

Administration, and the systems for Medicaid, SNAP, TANF, and others. If verification cannot be 

made, the system must ask the applicant for more information and the process repeats. In Step 3: 

Eligibility, the verified information is routed to the Eligibility system to determine if the applicant is 

eligible for Medicaid or CHIP and if not, then eligible for subsidized coverage in the Exchange and 

at what level. The system will then notify the applicant of their eligibility determination or subsidy 

amount. In Step 4: Enrollment, the system must enroll qualifying individuals in either Medicaid or 

subsidized coverage and notify the employer of the enrollment. Step 5: Renewal and 

Reconciliation is a complex step as well. The system must retrieve updated information on the 

individual's status in order to renew or transition their coverage. The information is retrieved 

electronically from 3'0 party sources such as employers, the IRS, Medicaid, vital records, etc. One 

important item on Figure 1 is the Key - bottom left. Notice the rectangular boxes throughout the 

diagram indicate technology system functions. The ovals indicate enrollee functions. There are 13 

rectangles and only 2 ovals, which is a good indicator of all the back-end processing required. 

Cost: There are only two states with functioning insurance exchanges: Massachusetts and Utah . 

Utah does not have all the functionality required by PPACA. It doesn1 provide for all eligibility 

enrollments nor does it verify all source data electronically. It is operating in a pilot phase now. 

Massachusetts has a more robust exchange with a reported operating cost of $26.6 million in FY 
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2009. We were able to gather estimates from only two states, Wisconsin and Oregon, on the cost 

to build an exchange. Wisconsin already has components in place that can be leveraged to build 

the exchange and is estimating the cost to be $49.6 million. Oregon estimates it will need $96 

million to build an exchange, and that is above and beyond the cost of upgrading their eligibility 

system. 

North Dakota must first update its existing Eligibility system in order to then implement a 

functional health benefits exchange. After analyzing Oregon's estimates, ITD analysts are 

estimating the cost for North Dakota's exchange would be in the $50 million range. 

Options: It is possible that the Federal government could initially build an exchange for the state 

and then turn it over to us to run. It is might also be possible to partner with another state. It is too 

early to have solutions . 
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Step 1: 
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Step 2: 
INFORMATION 
VERIFICATION 

Step 3: 
ELIGIBILITY 
DETERMINATION 

Step 4: 
ENROLLMENT 

Step 5: 
RENEWAL AND 
RECONCILIATION 

KEV: 

System 

Figure 1: 

Example of Key Steps and Processes in an Integrated Enrollment System. 
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Maximizes role § 1413 Individuals will have access to an Internet website through which they can 
of the Internet § 2201 apply for and renew coverage on line using the single, streamlined application 
for purposes of for all health subsidy programs. Through the website, applicants who are 
application and eligible for Medicaid, CHIP, and premium tax credits or other subsidies 
enrollment through the Exchange will be able to compare their options. 

Provides for § 1413[c] Requires states to securely exchange data to determine eligibility. "Each state 
secure electronic § 2201 shall develop for all applicable health subsidy programs a secure, electronic 
exchange of data interface allowing an exchange of data [including information contained in 

the application forms ... ] that allows a determination of eligibility for all such 
programs based on a single application." 

Creates § 1561 The Secretary shall establish standards and protocols for electronic 
information enrollment that allow for the following, 
technology I 11 "Electronic matching against existing Federal and State data, including 
standards vital records, employment history, enrollment systems, tax records, and 
and protocols other data determined appropriate by the Secretary to serve as evidence of 
to facilitate eligibility and in lieu of paper-based documentation." 
electronic 
enrollment [21 "Simplification and submission of electronic documentation, digitization of 

documents, and systems verification of eligibility ... 
[3] "Reuse of stored eligibility information ... to assist with retention ... " 
[4] "Capability for individuals to apply, recertify and manage their eligibility 

information online ... " 

[51 "Ability to expand the enrollment system to integrate new programs, 
rules, and functionalities, ta operate at increased volume, and to apply 
streamlined verification and eligibility processes to other Federal and State 
programs, as appropriate." 

[6] "Other functionalities" necessary to streamline the process for applicants. 

Provides for grants to states and localities to develop or adapt existing 
systems to meet the new standards and protocols. More broadly, the 
Secretary "shall notify" states about these standards and procedures 

I and "may require, as a condition of receiving Federal funds for the health 

I information technology investments, that States or other entities incorporate 
L_ ---·· 

such standards and p~oto:_:_ols into such investments." 
----- .. _,,_ 

This brief was prepared by Beth Morrow of The Children's Partnership and Julia Paradise of the Kaiser Family 
Foundation's Commission on Medicaid and the Uninsured. 

For further information about ACA, beyond its enrollment provisions, 
please go to the Kaiser Family Foundation's Health Reform site, at: http://healthreform.kff.org/. 

This publication [#8090] is available on the Kaiser Family Foundation's website at www.kff.org. 
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Testimony 
House Bill 1126 - Department of Human Services 

Before the Joint Meeting of 
House Industry, Business & Labor 
Representative Keiser, Chairman 

House Appropriations - Human Resources Division 
Representative Pollert, Chairman 

February 1, 2011 

Chairmen Keiser and Pollert, members of the Industry, Business & Labor 

Committee and House Appropriations - Human Resources Division, I am 

Carol Olson, Executive Director of the Department of Human Services. I 

am here today to provide information to you regarding the relationship 

between an American Health Benefit Exchange and the programs within 

Department of Human Services. 

If it is the interest of this committee to pursue the establishment of an 

American Health Benefit Exchange for the state that will meet the 

requirements as currently outlined in the Patient Protection and Affordable 

Care Act of 2010, it will be important for this committee to consider the 

implications of: 

• Title I, Section 1311(d)(4)(F) requiring, at a minimum, for the 

Exchange to provide for eligibility determination and the enrollment 

of individuals in Medicaid and CHIP programs; and 

• Title II Role of Public Programs, Section 2201 which outlines more 

specifically the requirements of enrollment simplification and Medicaid 

and CHIP coordination with the State Health Insurance Exchange. 

The intent of these sections is to ensure that the American Health Benefit 

Exchange provide seamless eligibility and enrollment linkages between the 

exchange coverage options and public assistance programs. In order to 

achieve this level of Interoperability with the Exchange, the Medicaid and 

CHIP eligibility systems will require significant modification . 

I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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Presented by: 

Before: 

Date: 

HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

Rebecca Ternes 
Deputy Commissioner 
North Dakota Insurance Department 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Senator Ray Holmberg, Chairman 

March 28, 2011 

TESTIMONY 

Good morning, Chairman Holmberg and members of the committee. My name is 

Rebecca Ternes, North Dakota Deputy Insurance Commissioner. I appear before you 

today in support of House Bill No. 1126 . 

The purpose of the bill is to allow you to decide whether it is best for North Dakota, 

rather than the federal government, to run the health benefit exchange required by the 

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act also known as "federal health care reform", 

or "PPACA". I will refer to this law as "PPACA". 

What is an Exchange? 

By January 1, 2014, PPACA requires each state to establish a state-based American 

Health Benefit Exchange and a Small Business Health Options Program (SHOP) 

Exchange. These exchanges will be online marketplaces where individuals and small 

businesses can shop for health plans in a way that permits comparison of available plan 

options based on price, benefits and services, and quality. A state may elect to provide 

for only one state exchange that would provide both American Health Benefit Exchange 

services and SHOP Exchange services . 

1 
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Exchanges will allow people to compare health plans and determine which one is best 

for them. Health plans will be placed in tiers based on out-of-pocket costs, which allows 

consumers to compare plans on an apples-to-apples basis. All plans sold in the 

exchange are offered by private insurance companies. There is no government-run 

plan or public insurance option. 

An exchange must also assist eligible individuals to receive premium tax credits or 

coverage through other federal or state health care programs such as Medicaid and the 

Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP). Individuals whose household income 

does not exceed 400 percent of the poverty line will receive subsidies through the 

exchange according to a sliding scale. By providing one-stop shopping, exchanges are 

theoretically supposed to increase competition in the marketplace and make purchasing 

health insurance easier and more understandable for consumers. 

If North Dakota does not run its own exchange, the United States Department of Health 

and Human Services ("HHS") will. By January 1, 2013, HHS must determine whether 

the state will have an exchange in operation by January 1, 2014. If it determines that 

the state will not have an operational exchange by then, HHS is required to establish 

and operate the exchange within that state. The federal government will work with the 

Governor of the state as the Chief Executive Officer unless authority to operate the 

exchange has been delegated to a specific authority through state law. 

What Does This Bill Do? 

At its most basic level, this bill puts the following questions before you: 

1. Do you want the federal government or the state to run the North Dakota 

exchange? 

2. If you want the state to run its own exchange, who do you want to run it? 

2 
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3. If the state will run its exchange, what resources do you want the 

responsible agency to have in order to build and operate the exchange? 

To be clear, this bill is not an endorsement of PPACA or the wisdom or effectiveness of 

exchanges. It is the means by which these issues are being brought before you so that 

the Legislative Assembly may decide whether it is in North Dakota's best interest to run 

its own exchange or to let the federal government do so. 

Who Can Run An Exchange? 

States have the option to establish the exchange as a governmental agency or nonprofit 

entity. Within the governmental agency category, the exchange could be housed within 

an existing state agency or a newly created, independent state agency. Alternatively, 

the exchange could be operated by a nonprofit entity. If none of these entities run the 

state's exchange, the federal government will take over that responsibility . 

What Functions Must an Exchange Perform? 

Exchanges must perform a lengthy list of functions. These functions should be taken 

into consideration when deciding which entity is best to run the exchange and the 

resources needed by that entity. At a minimum, an exchange must: 

• Implement procedures for the certification, recertification, and decertification of 

health plans as qualified health plans; 

• Provide for the operation of a toll-free telephone hotline to respond to assistance 

requests; 

• Maintain an internet website through which enrollees and prospective enrollees 

of qualified health plans may obtain standardized comparative information on 

health plans; 

3 



• 

• 

• Assign a rating to each qualified health plan offered through the exchange; 

• Use a standardized format for presenting health benefits plan options in the 

exchange, including the use of the uniform outline of coverage; 

• Inform individuals of eligibility requirements for Medicaid, CHIP, or any applicable 

state or local public program, and, if through screening of the individual's 

application by the exchange, it determines that such individuals are eligible for 

any such program, enroll such individuals in such program; 

• Establish and make available by electronic means a calculator to determine the 

actual cost of coverage after the application of any premium tax credit and any 

cost-sharing reduction available under PPACA; 

• Grant certification attesting that, for purposes of the individual responsibility 

penalty, an individual is exempt from the individual requirement or from the 

penalty imposed because he or she meets one of the exceptions provided in 

PPACA; 

• Transfer to the Secretary of the Treasury a list of individuals who are issued 

certification of penalty exemption, the name and taxpayer identification number of 

each individual who was an employee of an employer but who was determined to 

be eligible for the premium tax credit because the employer did not provide 

minimum essential coverage or the employer provided the minimum essential 

coverage but it was either unaffordable or did not provide the required minimum 

actuarial value, and the name and taxpayer identification number of each 

individual who notifies the exchange that they have changed employers and of 

each individual who ceases coverage under a qualified health plan during a plan 

year; 
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• Provide each employer with the name of each of its employees who ceases 

coverage under a qualified health plan during a plan year and the effective date 

of such cessation; and 

• Establish a Navigator program. 

There are some areas where the state has choices. Federal rules will clarify that the 

following policy areas, among others, are state decisions, although HHS may offer 

recommendations and technical assistance to states as they make these decisions: 

• Whether to form the exchange as a governmental agency or a nonprofit entity. 

• Whether to form regional exchanges or establish interstate coordination for 

certain functions . 

• Whether to require additional benefits in the exchange beyond the essential 

health benefits (mandates). 

• Whether to establish a competitive bidding process for plans. 

• Whether to extend some or all exchange-specific regulations to the outside 

insurance market beyond what is required in PPACA. 

• What additional types of services the exchange might provide to individuals and 

business to ensure simple and fast service. 

If you believe that it would be better for the state to run its own exchange, certain things 

have to be accomplished by deadlines set out in PPACA. As I already noted, states 

must be on track for achieving certification of their exchange by January 1, 2013, or the 

federal government will run the exchange. And the exchange must be operating no 

later than January 1, 2014. Establishment of an exchange requires a planning process 
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to create an exchange that will meet all the requirements of PPACA. Anyone who is 

even somewhat familiar with a complex information technology (IT) project can 

recognize how short this timeframe is, especially given that most of the functionality 

required does not exist in North Dakota's state government or in any other entity 

currently operating in our state. 

This bill, as amended, would require the Commissioner and the Department of Human 

Services to plan and implement the exchange for the state in consultation with an 

advisory committee made up of the Insurance Commissioner, the executive director of 

the Department of Human Services, ITD, the Governor and legislators. The bill would 

ensure that the exchange facilitates the purchase of qualified health benefit plans, 

provides for the establishment of a small business health options program, and meets 

the exchange requirements of PPACA generally. 

What Must Be Accomplished if the State Runs the Exchange? 

In order to plan and implement a North Dakota exchange, the bill requires the following 

be accomplished: 

• To take actions necessary to ensure that the exchange is determined, not later 

than January 1, 2013, by the federal government to be ready to operate not later 

than January 1, 2014. 

• To consider whether to seek federal grant funds for the planning and 

implementation of the exchange. 

• To determine whether to establish one exchange that will provide services to 

both qualified individuals and qualified small employers or to have two separate 

exchanges . 
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• To contract with outside entities, if necessary, to provide services to implement 

the exchange. 

• To adopt rules, if necessary or desirable, to carry out the provisions of the bill. 

Exchanges will require complex and particular IT systems and other business 

operations to perform the functions required. Since the exchange will have to work with 

other state and federal agencies, for example, to fulfill its duty to determine tax credits 

and enroll eligible individuals in Medicaid and CHIP, the bill requires state agencies to 

cooperate to ensure the success of the exchange. At this time, the IT systems of the 

agencies likely to be involved in the exchange do not have the ability to communicate 

and exchange data with each other. 

Because exchanges are also required to report certain information to other entities such 

as the United States Secretary of the Treasury, the bill allows the Commissioner and 

the Department of Human Services to receive from, and provide to, federal and state 

agencies confidential information gathered in the administration of the exchange. 

What Resources Are Needed For an Exchange? 

The federal government has provided three grant opportunities to states for the planning 

and establishment of exchanges. 

Forty-eight states, including North Dakota, and the District of Columbia were awarded 

the exchange planning grants in September 2010. Those grants were for planning 

purposes. The second round of grants were for state innovations surrounding the 

information technology challenges in exchanges. These grants were given to seven 

states and the third round of grants is now available for the purpose of establishing an 

exchange. States will have to meet certain milestones in order to be awarded grants in 

2011, and the size of state awards may be related to the number of milestones met. 

Necessary exchange planning and establishment costs will be funded by HHS until 
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2015. After January 1, 2015, exchanges must be self-funded. North Dakota was 

approved to receive $1,000,000 in the first round of exchange grants; however, the 

Emergency Commission tabled the request to utilize these funds. The $1 million 

reflected in the fiscal note on this bill will allow the Insurance Department to spend the 

grant funds to analyze options, define requirements, and estimate the probable cost to 

implement an electronic system to operate the state's exchange. Future grant funds will 

be available to pay for the cost of building the system that will operate the exchange. 

In addition to the staffing and information technology infrastructure needs, the state will 

need resources to help it identify and address many issues and to make informed 

decisions along the way, including: 

1. Unified exchange. A state has to provide an exchange that facilitates 

individuals' purchase of health insurance and an exchange that serves 

small businesses. The state may choose to operate them separately or 

both in one exchange as long as it serves both functions. 

2. Regional exchange. States may form a regional exchange with other 

states or allow more than one exchange to operate in the state as long as 

each exchange serves a distinct geographic region. 

3. Stakeholders. PPACA requires states to consult with stakeholders in 

implementation of the exchange. Stakeholders must include health care 

consumers who enroll in qualified health plans, individuals and entities 

experienced in facilitating enrollment in qualified health plans, 

representatives of small businesses and self-employed individuals, state 

Medicaid offices, and advocates for enrolling hard to reach populations. In 

planning for this legislative session, the Insurance Department has already 

begun stakeholder conversations. I can assure you that the exchange is a 

focus for many of these individuals and groups. 
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4. Funding. How will the state ensure that the exchange is self-sustaining 

as of January 1, 2015? Exchanges are allowed to charge assessments or 

user fees to participating insurance issuers or to otherwise generate 

funding in order to support its operations. 

5. Outside market. Will insurers be allowed to sell health plans outside the 

exchange? And if an external market remains, will insurers be required to 

offer plans both in and out of the exchange? 

6. Large employers. Beginning in 2017, an exchange may allow 

businesses with more than 100 employees to purchase coverage in the 

exchange also. 

7. Mandates. Does the state want to require that plans offer benefits in 

addition to the essential health benefits package? If so, the state must 

assume the cost by making payments to individuals enrolled in a qualified 

health plan in the state or making payments directly to the qualified health 

plan on behalf of the individual. HHS has not yet determined how the 

essential health benefits package will be defined. 

8. Data reporting. Determination of the data that will be required to be 

reported, what persons will be allowed to access data, and how to ensure 

appropriate protection of data. 

9. Certification of plans. The exchange must implement procedures for the 

certification, recertification and decertification of health plans as qualified 

health plans. It is expected that this will require someone to analyze the 

health plans offered for sale through the exchange to ensure that they 

meet one of the required benefit categories: bronze plans which must 

cover 60% of benefit costs; silver plans which must cover 70% of benefit 

costs; gold plans which must cover 80% of benefit costs; platinum plans 
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which must cover 90% of benefit costs; and catastrophic plans, which are 

available only to those up to age 30, which must provide catastrophic 

coverage only. Someone must also ensure that the plans offered in the 

exchange meet certain benefit requirements, marketing requirements, 

have adequate provider networks, contract with essential community 

providers, contract with navigators to conduct outreach and enrollment 

assistance, be accredited with respect to performance on quality 

measures, and use a uniform enrollment form and standard format to 

present plan information. 

10. Hotline. The exchange must provide for the operation of a toll-free hotline 

to respond to assistance requests. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

Website. The exchange must maintain an internet website through which 

enrollees and prospective enrollees of qualified health plans may obtain 

standardized comparative information on health plans. 

Ratings. The exchange must assign a rating to each qualified health 

benefit plan offered through the exchange. 

Standardized format. The exchange must use a standardized format for 

presenting health benefits plan options in the exchange, including the use 

of the uniform outline of coverage. 

14. Other coverage. The exchange must inform individuals of Medicaid, 

CHIP, and other state or local public programs eligibility requirements and 

enroll eligible individuals in these programs. 

15 . Calculator. The exchange must provide an electronic calculator to 

determine the actual cost of coverage after the application of any premium 

tax credit and any cost-sharing reduction. 

10 



• 

• 

• 

16. Individual responsibility certification. The exchange must grant a 

certification attesting that for purpose of the individual responsibility 

penalty (individual mandate) that an individual is exempt from the penalty 

because there is no affordable qualified health plan available through the 

exchange or the individual's employer, or the individual meets the 

requirement for any other exemption. 

17. Certification of penalty exemption. The exchange must transfer to the 

Secretary of the Treasury a list of individuals who are issued a certification 

of penalty exemption. 

18. 

19. 

Employer notice. The exchange must provide each employer with the 

name of each of its employees who ceases coverage under a qualified 

health plan during a plan year . 

Navigator program. The exchange must establish a Navigator program 

under which it awards grants to entities to carry out certain duties such as 

public education, facilitating enrollment in qualified health plans, and 

providing referrals to health insurance ombudsman or other appropriate 

agency for any enrollee with a grievance, complaint, or question regarding 

his health plan, coverage, or a determination under such plan or coverage. 

20. Producers. The exchange must determine the role insurance producers 

(agents) will play in the sale of health benefit plans in the exchange. 

The bill also contains an emergency clause so that it would become effective 

immediately upon its filing with the Secretary of State to allow work to start to address 

the many decisions that will have to be made and the work to begin to build an IT 

system that will be capable of performing all the required functions. 
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In closing, there are many decisions to be made about how the exchange will be run in 

North Dakota. There will be more decisions to be made as things are further defined or 

changed at the federal level. Several federal agencies are tasked with issuing 

regulations to implement the law and many of them have yet to be issued so various 

components remain undefined at this point. In addition, there is the prospect of 

Congress making changes to the law as well as the numerous legal challenges to the 

law that are making their way through the court system. For now, the law requires that 

there be an exchange implemented in North Dakota. The first decision is who will run it: 

the federal government or the state. Our stakeholders are telling us they prefer North 

Dakota run its own exchange and cite the numerous problems with other federal 

insurance programs as examples of how North Dakotans serve our own better. In fact, it 

is my Department that assists Medicare Part D prescription drug beneficiaries in 

comparing, choosing, and enrolling in Part D plans, as well as dealing with issues and 

complaints. This piece of legislation places similar responsibilities related to the 

exchange in this same agency . 

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to try to answer any questions the 

committee members may have. Thank you . 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL relating to a health insurance exchange; to provide an appropriation; to provide for 
application; and to declare an emergency. 

Minutes: See attached testimony." 

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on Monday, March 8, 2011 at 9:00 am in 
reference to HB 1126. Roll call was taken. All committee members were present. Joe 
Morrissette, 0MB and Sara Chamberlin, Legislative Council was also present. 

Chairman Holmberg: Start with 1126. 

Representative Keiser: District 47 Bismarck; introduced HB 1126. One of the three major bills 
relative to address the Federal Health Care Reform commonly referred to the House side as 
PPACA. It is the Exchange bill, a bill designed to implement the exchange as each state must 
have their exchange program certified by January 1, 2013. That is immediately prior to the next 
time we go into our legislative session. On the House side, what we did was to delay our 
deliberations on the exchange literally delay it until the special session. I attended part of the 
NAIC meeting and the commissioners all gathered and the exchange of course is a major part 
of their program that they just had presented to them. One thing we can say about the 
exchange is, it's very dynamic at this point. There are currently two exchanges that are 
operational in the United States, in Utah and Massachusetts. The Utah exchange is what we 
would say; at one end of the continuum is the minimalist program. It provides really a Web 
page that the folks can go on, insurance can apply to the Utah Exchange, and if approved get 
listed on the exchange and it is an interactive exchange up to a point. You can go in and put 
up the information you want, identify the policies that are available, the options in the policy, 
and then select a policy. It is the beginning of giving the consumer the opportunity to 
participate in the decision as to the benefits they want to receive and the amount they want to 
pay and it achieves some of the goals of the exchange. The Massachusetts Exchange as you 
know is at the other end of the continuum. It is an exchange where the providers came in and 
requested significant increases in premium rate, the insurance denied them, the three 
companies took them to court, and the settlement was made out of court. It was sort of half 
way in between what they were requesting and the question of course is, well, are they not 
being under- funded and we'll have significant increase in the future. That is yet to be 
determined. So we have two exchanges that are operational. The head of HHS and developing 
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the exchange program was at this meeting. Her boss, a previous insurance commissioner did 
make a presentation and what I can tell you is that they still don't know what the elements of 
the exchange need to be. So, in the House side we felt, illogical at best to try and move 
forward in establishing and implementing an exchange, but on the other hand, we recognize 
that the Federal law, unless the courts over turn it, the federal law is currently the law of the 
land and easily could go forward and we have to be prepared for January 1, 2013. So in all 
three of our health care bills, we put a clause in the bill that says 'any decision which must be 
made between now and our special session, we are giving the authority to the Insurance 
Commissioner and the department through Administrative Rule to make that change'. As far as 
I know, there are no changes in that time period that are required by the Federal Health Care 
law. But, any change the date for which it occurs after we adjourn but prior to January 1, 2013, 
then the Insurance Commissioner and the department are to come to the special session with 
a proposal regarding how they would like to see that program, whatever it might be, and in this 
case ii is the Exchange Bill. How the exchange bill would be implemented for North Dakota at 
least in concept. We on the House side, there is a $1 Million dollar planning grant that was 
available to every state to work on developing the concept of their exchange, not the 
implementation, just the development of the concept as far as I am aware. We did on the 
House side put the authority to apply for the $1 Million dollar planning grant for the exchange. 
There are two states I believe which have rejected the planning grant, the other states are all 
applying for ii. One of our concerns on the House side was does accepting any of these dollars 
in any way, commit us in any way, to the federal health care reform act. We have had several 
opinions on that subject from HHS in Washington, D.C., our insurance read it; the Attorney 
General read, although its' not an official Attorney General's opinion but, by accepting this 
grant we would not make any commitment to the final implementation of the Federal Health 
Care Reform Act. The department has already applied for and received a previous grant 
relative to rate review and sort of thing. Again there were many deadlines that have come up 
as a result of the federal health care reform act which did require decisions. It is in federal law, 
decisions had to be made. I believe it was last April prior to our going into session, that the 
insurance department was required to make a decision as to whether a change our high risk 
pool, the CHAN program to meet the federal standards to create a second high risk pool within 
the state maintain CHAN but create a second high risk pool or allow the Federal government to 
introduce a second high risk pool in the state of North Dakota. The Insurance Commissioner 
and the department had to make the call, it was required by the date in the law and they did 
make the call and they implemented, allowed the Federal Government to come into North 
Dakota and create a second high risk pool rather than adjust ours. That is the sum and 
substance of this bill. I would be willing to answer any questions relative to what the House did, 
again I am not certain. I thought the Senate left ii pretty much intact. but I did not have a 
chance to review ii prior to coming down here. 

Chairman Holmberg: Course the role of this committee here today will be to look at the 
question, should we authorize the Insurance commissioner to apply for and receive this million 
dollar grant. Most of the rest of the bill is obviously policy. Does this require us then to proceed 
or is this a stand- alone grant that if at the end of the day we decide we're not going to do 
something we're not locked in? I believe that is one of the questions the committee was 
inquiring about. Otherwise ii has to do with are we going to allow them to accept a $1 Million 
grant from the feds. What we want to know is this money something we should take and spend 
and then the special session this fall, will address some of the other questions that arise 
between now and then. 
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Representative Keiser: According to the Federal health Care Law, if a state chooses and they 
can chose not to implement an exchange program, then the Federal government will 
implement a federal government exchange program in your state. That is the hammer they've 
got, and the question is do you want North Dakota to do it or do you want the Feds to do it? 

Senator Wanzek: Invariably when you turn on the news, you hear about one group or another 
asking for a waiver from the Federal health care plan. Under what guise are they able to do 
that and are they getting a waiver and is it possible for the state even to ask for a waiver? 

Representative Keiser: To my knowledge, the waivers that have been requested to date are 
relative to the minimum loss ratio formula the Feds came out in the law with an 80-85% 
minimum loss ratio. There are several states that feel they cannot meet that and remain 
competitive. There are three states to my knowledge that have applied for the waiver. I believe 
the waiver has been granted in a couple of states. But relative to the exchange and to my 
knowledge there is no waiver and I would suggest there will not be a waiver on this. There are 
several cornerstones for the Federal Health Care Act. One is that is it universal coverage in 
some form, that everybody has to play. Without that the system, doesn't work. That requires 
people to buy insurance. Another cornerstone is the exchange. In their model, they need the 
exchange to make it work. I cannot believe there will be a waiver, however, what we don't 
know and that's why were delaying this Mr. Chairman, from the House side is what are the 
actual requirements for the exchange? We do not want Massachusetts model. We would go to 
Utah's model in a heartbeat. There cost annually is around $700,000 versus $35 Million. That's 
not rocket science. 

Senator Kilzer: You mentioned the cost to maintain ii annually. And it looks like there was a 
$30million dollar IT initial cost in the first fiscal note. I would assume it would cost $30 Million 
dollars for the IT part of it. Are there additional costs in the start-up or even in the maintenance 
that North Dakota could or should anticipate? 

Representative Keiser: The $30 M is not the tip of the iceberg; it is a big part of the iceberg. 
There is more to that ice berg. What you did not see because we did not adopt was Human 
Services came in not at the end, but, as we were moving down this path with approximate $16 
Million dollar IT appropriation to attach to that. How much it's actually going to cost I cannot 
say. Seven states I believe now have applied for additional funding to develop IT programs. 
Kansas has received a $40 million dollar planning grant. A second grant they are moving 
ahead, they show at the meeting this weekend, they showed the flow chart for this thing. If they 
can pull it off, it will be a miracle, but the bottom line is that all of the states that are receiving 
these very large planning grants are required to share their information with other states. That 
is one reason I do think we do need to delay this. There is little reason for North Dakota to go 
out and reinvent a wheel if there has to be a wheel, there are states who have been given a 
great deal of money to start working on what it will look like, so, but it will have to be whatever 
is developed. In Kansas or any other state will have to be adjusted for our state and it is going 
to cost significantly on the IT program. Not only the establishment of the interface, but the 
maintenance . 

Rebecca Ternes: Deputy Commissioner, North Dakota Insurance Department. Testified in 
favor of HB 1126. Written testimony attached #1. The purpose of the bill is to allow you to 
decide whether it is best for North Dakota, rather than the federal government, to run the 
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Health benefit exchange required by the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act also 
known as the 'federal health care reform ' or PPACA. Her testimony shares information about 
what the Exchange is what this bill does, who can run the Exchange, the function of the 
Exchange. 

Chairman Holmberg: As a member of the Emergency Commission, the discussion there was 
the Legislature is meeting in only a few months and we would rather have your fingerprints on 
it than just the fingerprints of four legislators deciding whether or not we would accept the 
grant. It wasn't that the Emergency Commission was against the acceptance of the grant, it 
was just so close to the session we were not going to commit that money to be spent until the 
legislature determined it. 

Rebecca Ternes: She continued her testimony. On pages 8-11 these are all decisions and 
specific things that have to be done within the Exchange. I do want to point out the bill does 
contain an emergency clause so that it would become effective immediately upon filing with the 
Secretary of State. It's crucial that we do something here, because January 1, 2013 is 
frighteningly close for us. The lawsuit as you know continued to go on and they have gone 
both ways. They originally focused on just the individual mandate, one judge in Florida did 
issue a decision based on the entire lobbying unconstitutional. Then the government 
responded, and they are now working this out. It's probably going to make its way to the 
Supreme Court. We don't expect that to occur until well into next year. The court of course has 
to agree to hear it, schedule it, hear it and then to also make a decision. Commissioner Hamm 
likes to guess what the vote will be, he always says it's a 4-4 split, with Justice Kennedy being 
the deciding factor. There is also kind of a new wrinkle with Justice Thomas possibly having a 
conflict of interest so if he accuses himself then what happens? So we continue to watch it, but 
honestly, we don't feel we can wait for that decision given the dates that are before us and the 
task that is in front of us. So we're going to continue to keep an eye on it. On the fiscal notes 
there was an original fiscal note of over $32 Million dollars. We did that one in December 27, 
2010. It also had 4 FTE's on it to start planning for the Exchange. An IT person, a grant, writer, 
reporter, and things like that and so it included some operating, and salaries and then $30 
Million for the start of the IT development. The new fiscal note has just the $1 million dollar 
grant that has been awarded to the state. It doesn't include any additional grants that we might 
be able to apply for going forward and no FTE's put on that fiscal note. As far as waivers, there 
are several waiver or what people are calling waivers out there right now. The first ones that 
people are hearing about thousands of waivers granted, were actually to mostly employers 
who had certain kinds of health- care plans called Mini-Med plans. They didn't meet the annual 
limit requirements of the new law, so you could ask for a transitional waiver to decide whether 
you wanted to continue to offer health insurance or not. There are also the medical loss ratio 
waivers that are available to states. I believe there is about 5 or 6 states that have asked for 
them. We actually just recently did request a medical loss ratio waiver for the individual 80% 
medical loss ratio that is required by the law. So that process just starts for us, we expect to go 
back and forth with HHS several times to answer questions with them. And then there's the 
waiver for health care reform. That was probably a couple of weeks ago that President Obama 
talked about moving up the time line that the states could request a waiver and what states 
would have to do to be successful in getting that waiver. Mostly the states would still have to 
meet the requirements of PPACA, and there would be a little bit of funding differences. Some 
of the funding that maybe the state would've gotten for subsidies through the Exchange, the 
state would get in funding to work on whatever innovative strategy that they came up with to 
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have the same success that was expected out of PPACA. So that might be the one that you're 
asking about. There is still discussion on that and that would take a congressional act to move 
that date up to allow states to apply for that waiver earlier. 

Senator Kilzer: On the very last page of your testimony, in the middle of that large paragraph 
you say' Our stakeholders are telling us they prefer North Dakota run its own Exchange', 
could you identify the stakeholders please'? Rebecca Ternes: We have several sets of 
stakeholders. We have certainly the insurance companies and consumers; there are many 
associations and groups that represent either different consumer groups or health care 
providers, doctors. We also have agents and brokers that are very interested to see what 
happens with the Exchange because you can imagine there is some issues with commissions 
and costs and things like that are going on. So that is probably at a global level. The main 
groups of stakeholders, we've had meetings with already prior to the session to talk about what 
is going on. Senator Kilzer: Are there any of your stakeholders that want the Feds to do it? 
Rebecca Ternes: We have not heard that yet. 

Senator Christmann: On that line, are all the stakeholders that want the state to handle this, 
people who benefit far more than what it costs them in state taxes to run it, as opposed to 
everybody else is being left with the choice of jumping off the cliff or being pushed off the cliff, 
saying well, why would I pay extra to be able to jump off? Rebecca Ternes: In the words of the 
commissioner, this is a really close call. You know more about state funding probably than 
most people do in the general public or maybe even in some of our stakeholder groups. Some 
of the work that we need to do as a state is to analyze who is going to buy from the Exchange. 
What is it going to cost, short term, long term. How many uninsured, we think we know about 
approximately how many uninsured we have, but how many of them are going to end up on 
Medicaid with the changes. How many are actually going to buy insurance even if they get a 
subsidy. Are they going to spend money still or are they just going to pay the penalty and we 
all know that we don't think the penalty is strong enough to really make people buy insurance. 
So, the cost of this Exchange could be enormous to the state and the question I don't think 
they understand that necessarily. I think what they understand is when they have a problem 
they want to call the Insurance Department and get a real person who they will probably will 
see at the grocery store later on in the day. Or they will want to call the Department of Human 
Services directly and get real people to talk to. I think they understand when the Federal 
government has run insurance programs in the past they don't always get the service they get 
from the state of North Dakota. I think companies would say that as well. They want to deal 
with their insurance department not the feds. It comes down I think to humanity more so than 
dollars for them. 

Senator Wanzek: If we approve this and we do use the $1Million dollars to research and 
develop an Exchange, do we still have the option that as we're doing that maybe we, and as 
we learn more, we might find out; we'll wait a minute; maybe the other way is better. We will 
still have that opportunity to make that decision won't we? Rebecca Ternes: That is a really 
good point. There is no commitment here, that we will do the Exchange if we find out later on 
this isn't worth it for us, or, we might also decide maybe it shouldn't be in the Insurance 
Department, maybe it should be a separate agency or something else. We can still make those 
decisions down the road, we can change it. 

V. Chairman Grindberg: Any opposition, neutral to HB 1126. Hearing Closed on HB1126. 
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Chairman Holmberg: Rep. Keiser was in to explain the bill. Rebecca Ternes was in. This 
was utilizing $1 M dollars of federal money for preparing for exchanges. The money is there for 
ND as I understand it. The money does not guarantee that we have to continue down the 
road. It's just that they want to get started. 

Senator Wanzek moved Do Pass. 
Senator Robinson seconded. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 12 Nay: 1 Absent: 0 

The bill goes back to the Human Services Committee and Senator Mathern will carry the 
bill. 
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Chairman Keiser: Opens the Conference Committee hearing on HB 1126. 

Chairman Keiser: Would the Senate like to share with us their thoughts on this one? 

Senator Dever: In our folder, if you look at .02001, we will walk through that. First is says 
in the title "to provide reports to the legislative management", that was in there previous; I'm 
not sure why that's included in there. In section 1, includes the Department of Human 
Services in consultation with the advisory committee. Subsection 2 of section 1, plan for 
the implementation, which we recognize would be required by PPACA to include 
determination eligibility for Medicaid & SCHIP. We consider that very important that they 
be involved in that. Down on lines 26 and following on the next page, it provides for an 
advisory committee that would include the Insurance Commissioner, the Department of 
Human Services, ITD and the development of that. The appropriation section 2 has not 
changed. Section 3, we just include the Department of Human Services in the application 
that provide reports for legislative management will be important to consider if special 
session becomes necessary. 

Chairman Keiser: Any questions from committee members? How do you perceive the roll 
of the advisory committee versus the interim legislative committee? How will the two 
interface, be different or be similar? 

Senator Dever: I would see the advisory committee would be more technical in nature in 
how that exchange will come about and the interim would be serving as a policy committee 
that would be determining what policy would be necessary. One is mechanics and other on 
is policy. 

Senator Lee: I agree with what Senator Dever has said and would add that I see roll of the 
advisory group in HB 1126 much more limited. It would strictly be involved with the details 
of the implementation, since we know since SCHIP and medical assistance have to be at 
the basis of this exchange. Whereas the other one we are looking at would include all 
various aspects health care reform act. This as a much smaller in scope. 
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Senator Mathern: I saw the advisory committee as the legislature asking the executive 
branch to make sure they have a process wherein all departments of government in the 
executive branch, may have some roll in this exchange, have a formal method 
communicating. It's more a manner a directive to executive branch that all the agencies 
work together on this. It's not really a directive wherein they would report to the legislature, 
whatever that is still within the purview of how the legislature wants to do that. As we heard 
the testimony, it became very clear that these three components were interdependent and 
these components were actually executive branch agencies that need to be at their table as 
an executive branch so that we get a robust report. 

Chairman Keiser: Other questions form House members or comments. Just describe 
what the committee will do. 

Senator Lee: I don't have a job description, but my strong interest here and the interest of 
the Senate committee, is to make sure there is input from both IT and Human Services in 
the way this exchange is implemented. There was no assurance that that was going on 
and I don't think that there is anything threatening to anyone in just stating that these 
various executive agencies work together to develop this. That eligibility system for 
Medicaid and SCHIP, is an important component, even if we didn't have PPACA coming 
along. There are counties that have five computers in order to do eligibility for the six 
programs. MA and CHIP are the two that are important as far as health care reform is 
concerned but they make up the vast majority of the eligibility determinations. We would be 
foolish not to look at the broader picture because of we can make the whole thing better, 
that would be a real advantage to that. That would not be the insurance department's area 
of expertise, the eligibility would be the area of Human Services expertise and the way to 
make all of that tie together would be information technology expertise. We just want to 
make sure that we haven't, if we are going to spend a lot of money, that it's done in a 
fashion that is inclusive of the low income energy assistance program, food stamps and all 
of those things. Rather than having all those separate systems, we why we thought that it's 
really important that they all work together. We don't see this as being any kind of 
reflection on anybody but rather establishing a partnership, for they would be partners in 
figuring out on how they will do this. So in the end, not only do we have something that 
meets the requirements for the health insurance exchange but is would also will meet the 
needs for the state of North Dakota for eligibility determinations for all of those programs. 
That is where we are coming from. 

Chairman Keiser: I agree with the general concept that you are offering. I think we can 
accomplish that but I cannot support forming another committee because putting it in 
statute and getting them going, they meet, plan, develop and act. I don't want them going 
down the road to far away from what the policy may or may not want to develop. What I do 
think you have done on page 3, section 3, on the application you have added, I would 
support the changing of the wording in carrying out requirement of this act "the Insurance 
Commissioner, Department of Human Services and IT shall coordinate their activities in 
developing with the interim committee". A plan for the state of North Dakota without 
creating some committee that may or may not go down the road that gets ahead of the 
policy. 
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Senator Mathern: When the bill came to us, we had the impression that it wasn't clear for 
IT and Human Services whether they were integral partners or not in that planning effort, so 
we included them. The goal was that they would not get ahead of policy issue, that they 
would be working, they would not have to be waiting for our committee and to make sure 
that there was the connection on the ground as this was going forward. I believe the 
executive branches that are included here, have demanding work in front of them. In fact, 
appropriations committee has put some money into making sure that the Department of 
Human Services can move forward. That demanding work involves daily interaction and 
this advisory committee structure assures us that. I would see this as eventually going 
away and this is only in place as a matter of session law as this process unfolds. When the 
project is over, up and running or there is no project, they are done. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: Who makes the final decision under the Senate's version? Who 
is the boss? 

Senator Mathern: The advisory committee is to assist the commissioner. I think the 
House version essentially had it structured so that the commissioner of insurance is in 
charge of the project and we really didn't change that. We said, OK, commissioner while 
you are moving down the road, make sure you have a few other folks on your team that 
have big parts of this project that are part of this effort. If you note the wording actually 
says "an advisory committee is established to assist the commissioner and the Department 
of Human Services in addressing the complexity". 

Senator Dever: Can I ask, under section 2, the appropriation of the million dollars is for 
the purpose of planning for implementation. First, whether you support the expenditure of 
that and it's federal funding, if so, how you would otherwise go about planning for the 
implementation? 

Chairman Keiser: Yes to the first question, that is a federal grant that is sitting out there 
and the Insurance Department has not been allowed to accept it to go forward. How it's 
implemented, again, somebody needs to be in charge and it seems to me that the 
Insurance Department is the appropriate entity. I would agree and disagree with the 
Senate. We did hear from Human Services and IT on our side and we recognize the 
importance of both of those to the development of an exchange. However, I think our bill 
covered it. I could support in the application in section 3, wording to the effect that those 
groups are to be there. I will not support and I can assure you, it will not pass, to form a 
new committee in addition to an interim committee that is going to be working with the 
Insurance commissioner in an advisory capacity. Moving down of the track, when from the 
House's perspective, that is the roll of interim committee to work with the commissioner, IT, 
Human Services and anyone else that is appropriate in developing that policy. 

Senator Lee: Two things, threats are not productive and my opinion frankly the Human 
Services ought to be the one to make the decisions about the eligibility because there is 
nobody who knows any more. That portion needs to be in the hands of the Department of 
Human Services, along with IT. I see that it has to have Human Services to be the lead 
dog on that eligibility portion for what they manage because that's what they know best. 
That will plug in with what the Insurance Department know best about private policies and 
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all the other things that is going on, it has to be a partnership. I think we are all headed in 
the same direction, we want it to work. 

Chairman Keiser: I can't agree more and we don't need another subcommittee to do that, 
that what the interim committee will assure happens. 

Senator Dever: We will be back to discuss that interim committee and it seems to me thus 
far, has been the House objection to the Senate, trying to narrow the focus of that to apply 
only to the federal health care bill. If this would be subject only for the interim committee, it 
would narrow it further to only to include the health benefit exchange. 

Chairman Keiser: I couldn't agree more. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: Don"! we have various levels of decisions here? The first, this 
bill goes further than I would like it but we did support in the House that says that we are 
going to establish an exchange. I guess under the current law, we have to. One of the 
major decisions is what type of an exchange is it going to be? Will ii be one that we have 
our own in the state, multi state or at this time the federal option is out? The exchange 
decision is one decision. Is it the Senate's position that it's a decision that the HHS needs 
to be involved in or that's more a decision where the department or both entities making the 
decision? 

Senate Mathern: The way I see ii, this advisory committee is doing the nuts and bolts 
discussion about how this exchange would work. What are the costs involved, how it would 
work, what are the problems that need to be solved and it would be the legislature interim 
committee's prerogative to set the public policy as to whether or not this goes forward this 
way or that way. This advisory committee is to make sure that everybody, who has a 
consequence to bare, about what whether this exchange works or does not work. It has an 
opportunity to work on the nuts and bolts of it but the legislature will set the policy. I see it 
also as trying to bring everybody up to the same ability to access risk. When we went into 
the management information system of how do we pay providers for Medicaid, we 
developed computer software program, wherein the process it's going up to 16 million 
dollars. Some people were shocked in seeing that. This exchange is also going to end up 
in a very large project if ii goes forward and we want to make sure the governor, executive 
agencies and the couple from legislature have their fingers in there to hear the nuts and 
bolts so that the legislature to make a very informed decision about the major policy 
direction. This advisory committee would not set that direction. 

Senator Lee: It never occurred to me that the Insurance Commissioner would be the only 
person involved in deciding whether we have a multi-state or an individual system. That is 
a policy deal and we ought to be hanging with or against, but that's our responsibility to do. 
I think everybody pretty much agrees that will be the case; we wouldn't be looking at that 
kind of issue being a part of this at all. 

Lee Dever: We were told that it will take 44 months to develop this extremely important 
program; the deadline is January 1, 2014. I think this is extremely important program to 
move forward and I think that justifies the committee. 
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Representative Gruchalla: I don't have an answer to why these two couldn't work 
together. 

Chairman Keiser: I share that concern, but first let's recognize that there is a deadline 
looming out there, January 1, 2013, that's not to implement the plan, it's just to have the 
plan certified. At this point, it that doesn't necessarily must know every part of your plan or 
have ready to go on line. There is no state, even Kansas, who received the largest grant to 
date to design the IT portion of their program by 2014. All we need to do is certify the plan 
and it doesn't need to have the programs written at all. 

Senator Dever: My understand was that Congress had granted a federal agency the 
authority to determine whether or not we are going to be in position by January 1, 2013 and 
have it in place January 1, 2014, if not, for them to assume control of that. 

Chairman Keiser: They can do whatever they want and we will have to do what we can to 
do. We don't disagree, we are all on the same page. We can accede to your 
amendments, take it to the floor, I think it doesn't pass. If you want at alternatives, we can. 
I couldn't agree more, this is a partnership, these departments work for the state, they want 
to be successful, they are not as territorial as everyone is making them out to be. If we are 
going to design an exchange, they are all going to have to participate and somebody has to 
be in charge. I cannot believe the Insurance Commissioner; the department wants to do 
anything about designing the Medicaid, Medicare and SCHIP's portion because it's not 
their area of expertise. I do think, I do support the concept that we identify in this language 
that they are to be involved, input to be gained and I don't think we need a committee that 
will get ahead of the interim legislative committee, suddenly we have decisions made 
ahead of time that we have to reverse or change from a policy standpoint. 

Senator Lee: I certainly don't disagree with many of the things that we have discussed 
here today. I think it's important to have more than one committee meeting because we 
have an opportunity to hear what the folks on the other side of the hallway have in mind 
and we can think about it over the weekend. 

Chairman Keiser: Closes the Conference Committee hearing on HB 1126 . 
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Chairman Keiser: On page 1, line 10, start with the elimination of the advisory committee, 
I did talk about this at our last meeting, it would strike subsection 2. I concur with the 
concerns expressed in the Senate. Under section 3, the application, buy carrying out the 
requirements of this act, the Insurance Commissioner, Department of Human Services and 
ITD shall coordinate their activities and provide updates to the Legislative Management 
Committee. It's important to give clear instructions that we have the expectations that they 
work together. Based on my observations, we have the best staff in the state, in the 
country as executive branch with their ideas and the policy would be set by the Legislature. 

Senator Lee: I have a draft that is somewhat similar. It's with the same thoughts in mind, 
that would add the Human Services Department and the ITD but eliminate the council. 
(passes out attached amendment). It would require the Insurance Department and the 
Department of Human Services to collaborate with ITD. They do not add ITD to the new 
section of rule making or sharing of records because it didn't seem that that would be 
particularly applicable to ITD. It removes the advisory committee. We will see how it looks 
and you may have other suggestions to that. This gives us something to start with because 
our amendments are not here. 

Senator Mathern: It's appears to me that these amendments that are brought forward by 
Senator Lee are essentially the same in terms of the preference that these agencies work 
together on this proposal. The difference is removing the wordage about the advisory 
committee, whether there is a word in there or not, I don't think it's that significant. The 
significance was that these executive agencies all have an opportunity to have input. It 
also removes the Governor and the two Legislators from the team working together on the 
interests of preparing something for the next special or regular session. I suppose in some 
ways the Governor and the Legislature have other opportunities, but that's specifically 
removed with these amendments. I think the Senate's concern was that everyone would 
be involved working together and whether the Governor and the Legislators are on that 
team is not as important as the other areas brought forth by Senator Lee. 
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Chairman Keiser: Any questions. I think we are on track. We will have a chance to look 
over these amendments and meet this afternoon. Closes the Conference meeting on HB 
1126 . 
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Chairman Keiser: Asked for amendments. 

Senator Lee: This amendment is getting rid of that advisory council that was creating 
issues. It does include the Dept. of Human Services in the discussion of the amendment. 
We have the paragraph we discussed earlier, page 1 line 19, that calls for the 
implementation of the exchange at a minimum providing for eligibility about MA and CHIP 
for example. Also collaborating with the IT Department as necessary and then including 
the Dept. of Human Services. Each of the commissioners, the head of Human Services 
Dept. and the IT Dept., would deal with those issues that are specifically geared up to their 
area of responsibility. So if there are rules being implemented on CHIP or Medicaid, it 
would be the responsibility of the Dept. of Human Services. It would have to be done with 
the Insurance Commissioner and the IT Department's collaboration to make sure all of this 
smoothly fits together. 

Chairman Keiser: There may be an amendment that is different from this amendment. 

Senator Mathern: I think the name we used in the Senate as advisory committee was 
really a method to make sure there was a collaborative process. I think these amendments 
do that also without having a formal advisory committee. At this point our state wants to 
be in the middle of the issue of running an exchange and we want to make sure it works. 
These amendments have the major parties working together. I think they address the 
concerns without having that advisory committee. 

Chairman Keiser: I wished we could find the language to recognize that we are talking 
about one exchange and not two exchanges. This language creates the potential for two 
exchanges. I know that is not what anyone wants. 

Senator Lee: I agree. If we need to provide information clarifying that, I would not oppose 
that. It is intended that we recognize that the exchange has to deal on the base of the 
pyramid with qualifying of individuals for Medicaid or Children's Health Insurance and then 
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moving into the private insurance policies. If we can use this as a basis of understanding 
and move forward with clarifying information, I would encourage that. 

Senator Mathern: Where would you see these amendments on the bill moving us toward 
two exchanges? 

Chairman Keiser: On the colored version--.2002, page 1, subsection 1, line 11, and then 
number 2. It is conceivable that you can meet the requirements of the law and create two 
exchanges. One which dealt with the purchase of qualified health benefit plans and you 
could generate an exchange for the state which provides for eligibility determination. The 
language in effect is saying you can do both of those things. 

Senator Mathern: I don't read it that way. However, if there needs to be a clarification 
point that there is only one exchange, I think that would be just fine. 

Chairman Keiser: If you look at the application, at some point, we need to decide if every 
partner is going to be co-equal or is there somebody that will be in charge. The language 
in Section 3, line 7, "American health benefit exchange for the state, the commissioner and 
department of human services shall submit proposed legislation." Is that together in a 
single plan or will they be submitting separate legislation for the exchange? 

Senator Mathern: Your comments earlier about "They work together so well" as indicating 
they would. 

Chairman Keiser: But what we are saying in language is they don't need to. I think prior 
language would have guaranteed that they work together. I will take time and look at it and 
determine what to do. Other comments on Senator Lee's proposed amendments? 

Vice Chairman Kasper: What is bothering me about this bill, when reading the bill, when 
you go to the colored bill of Senator Lee's amendments, page 1, line 9, "To ensure that an 
American health benefit exchange is created in the state." My concern is we don't know if it 
will be created. Under current law it will be created; but we have the court challenges and 
we don't know if and when the Supreme Court will rule on the constitutionality of PPACA. 

I would like to read through some proposed changes. I would like the committee to 
consider on page 1, on lines 1 & 2, adding "consideration of' after "relating to the" on line 2. 
Going down to line 9, I would strike the words "To ensure that" and I would substitute "plan 
for the possible implementation of an American health benefit exchange." Then strike "is 
created." On line 11, strike the word "plan" and substitute "consider options." On line 20, 
strike the word "plan" and substitute "consider options." On page 2, line 4, insert a comma 
after "ensure" and add "if required by law." Then go down to line 12, strike the word 
"implement" and substitute "to consider the implementation of." On line 20, after the word 
"exchange", insert a comma and the words "should it be established." On line 23, after 
"designee", insert a comma and the words "should the exchange be established" and insert 
a comma. On page 3, line 6, strike "determining, planning, and implementing" and replace 
with "considering options for." At the end of line 12, I would suggest adding a new 
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Section 4 which would state "if the Patient Protection and Affordability Act is deemed to be 
unconstitutional by the United States Supreme Court, this Act is null and void." The 
Emergency Clause would become Section 5. 

These amendments don't change a thing a far as moving forward but it is taking away the 
fact that in reading the bill, it seems to me, we are going to do this. I know we have the 
November special session coming up. 

Senator Mathern: I am wondering what your thoughts are in terms of the consequence to 
the federal government decision making as to whether or not the state of North Dakota is 
proceeding with wanting to adopting the exchange versus letting the federal government do 
the exchange. There are some considerations in the drafting that reflect a message to the 
federal government that we as a state want to be in charge of some of this versus the 
federal government moving ahead. With your qualifying language I am wondering if you 
believe that would still permit the state to do it if the act was found constitutional. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: That is a good observation. My intent is not to open that door. 
We could add a section that would state it is the intent of the state of North Dakota to 
implement a state exchange if it's determined that a health exchange is required under 
PPACA. We are going to do ii if it's going to be done. 

Senator Lee: Part of this language was in the original bill that was considered by the 
House IBL committee in the first place. Was it considered at that time and if not, why not? 

Vice Chairman Kasper: Revelations come at various times in your life. There was 
something gnawing at me in this bill but I couldn't put my finger on it. It came to me this 
morning and I started putting the language on. From my perspective, I would be more 
comfortable. I don't recall it being discussed in our committee. 

Senator Lee: The ambivalence of the added language is not something that either 
committee has discussed. I am not confident that the Supreme Court will rule on this in the 
next several weeks. I do have a concern that language presented by Representative 
Keiser at the request of the Insurance Commissioner to provide enabling legislation for this 
to move forward is now back to "only if we have a gun to our head" language instead of "we 
are doing what we recognize as being necessary based on what the federal law is right 
now." I don't disagree with the philosophy. I just think ii is about three months late. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: As we live day by day, our thoughts and revelations change. If I 
had this thought then, it would have been brought forward then. That is what we encounter 
in conference committees; new thoughts and ideas come forward. I brought this language 
forward for consideration by the committee. 

Chairman Keiser: I looked at the language and it clarifies what part of the intent of the 
House was. However, the House went down two different avenues in anticipation that the 
law was constitutional. You have 1125, 1126, 1127. We also had other resolutions and 
bills which went down that second track which was that we believe may be unconstitutional. 
I asked Representative Kasper to bring it to the committee and have discussion. It really 
isn't germane to the amendments on the bill. If the committee thought the language 
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improved the intent of the bill as it was developed then it would be relevant. Assuming 
there is a special session it does present an additional opportunity to look at this issue. 

Senator Mathern: One of the things that is important is that we be nimble enough to take 
what is positive and move what is positive no matter what the federal court decides. One of 
the unique features about this bill is this opportunity of developing a system where the 
citizens themselves can put in their data, get feedback about the various options and come 
to a conclusion about what they are eligible for. I suspect whether there be PPACA or not, 
we as a state should be looking at such a vehicle so that our citizens can make decisions 
using this new technology. I see embedded in here a potential for our state, regardless of 
federal health care reform, that would be good for our citizens. I know that the 
appropriations committee of the Senate has looked at a number of computer programs that 
we have and our eligibility criteria that are out dated. My hope is that regardless how the 
federal and the court decide, we would want to do some of this for the good of our citizens. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: I would_ take the opposite viewpoint. About 90% of the people in 
North Dakota are covered by health insurance or Medicare/Medicaid under the free 
enterprise competitive system we have. So to consider without federal requirement the 
implementation of an exchange where we have a bureaucratic organization that attempts to 
help people make personal decisions would be a real stretch for me to support. I support 
this bill because we are up against it. I wouldn't want the record to show that I support an 
exchange if we don't need to put one in. 

Senator Mathern: If I could clarify, these programs, medical assistance or children's 
health insurance, there are computer programs behind these programs that don't interface 
with many other county and state programs. Even that portion we could get better at and 
become more efficient. At some point, we could have somebody from the counties tell us 
how many computer programs are duplicating efforts that they would like to combine. A 
program like this could help us combine. 

Chairman Keiser: I'm going to support in the special session that we again visit this issue. 
We need a full committee hearing with public input. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: I appreciate you listening to my thoughts and at least now they 
are on the record and it's something we could look at in special session. 

Chairman Keiser: Closes the hearing. 
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Chairman Keiser: Opened the Conference committee hearing on HB 1126. 

Chairman Keiser: (Passes out amendment .02005). You are going to find that it is very 
similar to the one you were given this morning but there are also changes. Walks through 
the changes, see attached copy. 

Senator Lee: All three of us agree that partnership was important so change "with" to 
"and". 

Chairman Keiser: What I was trying to get was, if we are going to have a team, the 
Insurance Department with the Department of Human Services shall submit purposed 
legislation. That's the intent of the language. 

Senator Dever: I don't disagree, but I think the word "and" will be more consistent also 
with lines 13 & 14 on page 2. 

Chairman Keiser: The reason I left that in there is that, rule adopting is done by 
departments. When we bring forward legislation for the exchange, it is my sincere hope 
that it's a single package not packages from different departments. 

Senator Dever: As it pertains to the exchange, that might be true, but there may be 
legislation involving other parts of federal health care reform that might suggest legislation 
from the departments separately. 

Chairman Keiser: Maybe under application, what we want to do is clarify "relative to 
exchange". 

- Senator Dever: That is in 2 places, in section 3 in line 5 and line 9. 

Chairman Keiser: Right, because in both cases there are submitting legislation. 
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Senator Lee: I appreciate the fact that you see this as a team too but I think we are into 
grammar here. From the grammar point of view, the commissioner is the subject of this 
sentence and a modifying phrase is what the Department of Human Services and so forth. 
If you pull out the modifying phrase, the commissioner shall submit purposed legislation, so 
from the grammatical point of view, I think it puts the commissioner in a different position. I 
would agree that we need one proposal moving forward on the exchange and how can we 
word smith this properly? I don't want separate proposals but Senator Dever has a good 
point in that there may be things having to do with the eligibility. They don't have anything 
to do with exchange, the departments is going to have some things separate. We don't 
want to tie anyone's hands but this thing, I see them working together on it. 

Senator Mathern: This is really the geneses of the advisory committee that was originally 
put in so all the people put together could bring this forward. I believe this still can be 
accomplished without the advisory committee by essentially eliminating "with" on line 5 & 9 
and replacing with "and". This would still have all of these entities needing to look at 
health care reform in terms of their special purview and working with the other ones. 
Another thing in terms of the concern of more than one proposal coming forward, sort of 
checked in terms of policy options by these departments bringing this to the interim 
committee. The fact that we have set up an interim committee, it's in the interest of the 
interim committee, to make sure all of the options these folks might come up between not 
and then, with might be heard. Even if there was some sort of conflict, it would be better 
that it would be heard than it not be heard. I think with that word change, this bill is ready to 
go. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: On page 3, line 5, what if the language said the following "the 
commissioner with the department of human service and information technology 
department shall submit a single joint proposal to the interim committee to consider 
presenting to the legislative management committee for consideration at the special 
session". We are distinctly saying, we are asking them to give us one joint proposal. That 
means to have to cooperate and come forward with a proposal. It can encompass their 
needs and desires but it would be delineated as a single joint proposal. 

Senator Lee: I appreciate where you are going but I'm trying to think past the one 
proposal. Would we be limiting them one humongous bill? It just wanted to make sure that 
there is something that doesn't blend well between what the proposals might be from one 
to the other. That they are coming forward with a unified proposal, but I wonder if there 
might be some things that might be coming to the committee or do we limited them to an 
awkward situation if we just say one unified? 

Vice Chairman Kasper: The intent of the verbiage is to allow each department to bring 
forward their piece of the proposal. I would envision it, if this were the committee hearing 
their proposal, the Insurance Department, Human Services and ITD have their piece but 
they would have agreed in advanced that these work together. This is the big proposal but 
each going to make a presentation of their segment of the proposal and they work together. 
That would be the intent that I'm trying to get here. 

Senator Mathern: I guess one of the scenarios I could see, as the states in our region all 
move forward with this, I could see this proposal that Representative Kasper discusses, but 
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I could also see something like Senator Lee outlines in terms of there might be something 
outside the box that I wouldn't want to be closed to. What if Minnesota and South Dakota 
came together with one of our departments and said, if we could run this piece together, we 
could save 40 million dollars. There might be a proposal but there might be some new 
ones, that I would hope that we wouldn't preclude a department bringing to our attention 
and that's an unknown but it would be an example. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: I agree that could occur and that might occur but at least the 
intent would be that we are asking them to bring a single joint proposal that they could 
outline. 

Chairman Keiser: It's dangerous to draft on the fly. I do understand what you saying and 
I will share with you; we got into a discussion about the grant monies that both department 
were going to receive relative to implementing the exchange and what is the intent with 
those grant dollars? The grants would be used to hire consultants to put together the 
exchange. There was a discussion and I started getting nervous, are we going to have two 
different consultants going down different paths and coming up with something that doesn't 
interface. We all have had personal experience about how wrong sometimes the IT and 
the consultants can go if they aren't integrated in their effort. We have to make sure; I do 
see the interim committee as meeting a lot during the early phases with having great 
oversight and discussions with all departments relative to the exchange and health 
legislation. What would you say to something like "health benefit exchange for the state, 
the commissioner, the Department of Human Services and ITD shall work together in 
submitting proposed legislation"? What we want them to do is work together. I see the 
interim health committee playing a significant role in direction the focus of this effort. 

Senator Lee: I appreciate where you are going, I wonder because we are doing it on the 
fly. It might be worthwhile just to go visit with somebody from Legislative Council and tell 
them where we are headed, how can we best say it. Another thing that just occurred to me 
that the fact that somebody may not agree with somebody else. I don't want to preclude 
somebody. I think it's going to be important that they be honest, direct and full disclosure 
with the committee if there is an area that is difficult to resolve. I'm confident that they will 
be able to work together well, but I don't want anyone not have the opportunity to speak 
about something. We don't know what might turn up and I want to make sure our language 
doesn't eliminate any of those options for the Legislative committee. Maybe Legislative 
Council can figure out a way to say what we all want to do. 

Chairman Keiser: We can certainly do that. 

Senator Mathern: I suggest as you consider your wording, that you replicate it in nine. 

Chairman Keiser: I would assume that to be the case. 

Senator Dever: How does this complicate things when the implementation of this requires 
different appropriations to different agencies? 

Chairman Keiser: That's up to Appropriations. We can certainly make recommendations. 
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Senator Mathern: I believe section 2, which is the appropriations, clearly goes to the 
commissioner. I believe there is another appropriation, probably very meager, in 2012. 

Chairman Keiser: The appropriations are spread out. This appropriation is specific to the 
Insurance Department grant. This is a federal grant to insurance departments, not to the 
exchanges per say, it's to insurance department to set up exchanges. The federal 
government sees the insurance department as being the lead on establishing the 
exchange, but that doesn't mean we can't have language that directs them to work together 
to create the best exchange for North Dakota as possible. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: How do you address the two different consulting firms going 
down two different tracks? 

Chairman Keiser: We can't move fast enough but Legislative Council will meet, 
committees assigned and then the health committee needs to meet immediately to begin to 
work with the departments. They are sitting here right now; I just can't imagine the 
departments going down that path. Where have they don't that before and I've never seen 
a problem. They are going to put together the exchange and they are going to do one heck 
of a job if we just stay out of their way. 

Senator Lee: I was thinking about the two consultants, it is feasible that two different 
areas would needs to have a consultant helping but they would not be duplicating. I don't 
necessarily want to preclude them from getting the proper help and not just get one 
consultant who is good at both of those things. We are on the same direction; we just have 
to find a way to say it. 

Chairman Keiser: I couldn't agree more. Is there any other part you want to address 
before the next time we meet? We will adjourn . 
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Chairman Keiser: (Hands out and goes over amendment .02005.) What I've done is 
replace "commissioner" to "Insurance Department", "with" to "and" and removed ITD in 
some areas. 

Chairman Keiser: You may want to review it and come back. 

Senator Mathern: I believe the change from commissioner to the Insurance Department 
works. I think the rational for naming the commissioner is different from the Department of 
Human Services. The commissioner is an independently elected official where the Director 
of Human Services is not. I think this change works. 

Chairman Keiser: I think that was the original intent. I want to stress that it is a program 
brought forth and don't think the commissioner will have heartburn over that. 

Senator Lee: I do appreciate the thought you put into this, I think it looks certainly 
worthwhile; I would be most comfortable getting the legislative council can give us a 
colored copy. 

Chairman Keiser: We will take this to Legislative Council and adjourns the hearing on HB 
1126 . 
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Senator Dever: It appears to me that everything is as we discussed, with the exception, 
now we are referring to the commissioner instead of the Insurance Department. 

Chairman Keiser: After Senator Mathern's comment, I don't know about that. I had a 
discussion with a group of attorneys and they said we think it should remain the 
commissioner because that's the way it is set up in the century code throughout the 
insurance section. I said, will you go and check on that, if that's the case, we will make the 
adjustment because there should be no reason to create any doubt. This .02006 is the 
latest version. 

Senator Dever: Moves for the Senate recede from its amendments and adopt amendment 
.02006. 

Vice Chairman Kasper: Second. 

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion. The only think I want to say, I really appreciate the 
Senate members. We have here a very solid positive approach to creating the exchange. I 
certainly support it. 

Representative Gruchalla: I was going to comment on paranoia, with Chairman Keiser 
running or in charge of setting this up is a good thing. The citizens of North Dakota will be 
well served. 

Senator Mathern: I think the amendments do in fact reflect the intent of the Senate and 
the way you expresses them is just fine. I thank you and the rest of the members for 
working this out in this regard . 

Chairman Keiser: I want to take this opportunity to say, I think, based on my involved in 
NCOIL and other National Organizations; we have the best insurance, IT and Human 
Services department. 
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Roll call was take for the Senate to recede from the Senate amendments on HB 1126 
with 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Motion passes. 

Chairman Keiser: Closes the conference committee hearing on HB 1126 . 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1516 and 1517 of the House 
Journal and pages 835 and 836 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1126 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, replace "a" with "an American" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "insurance" with "benefit" 

Page 1, line 2, after the first semicolon insert "to provide reports to the legislative 
management;" 

Page 1, line 9, after "commissioner" insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 1, line 11, replace the underscored comma with an underscored semicolon 

Page 1, line 14, replace the underscored comma with "; implements eligibility determination 
-and enrollment of individuals in the state's medical assistance program and the state's 
children's health insurance program; provides simplification; provides coordination 
between medical assistance, the children's health insurance program, and the state 
health insurance exchange;" 

Page 1, line 17, replace "commissioner" with "legislative assembly" 

Page 2, line 3, remove "and" 

Page 2, line 5, replace the underscored period with "; and 

5. Collaborate with the information technology department as necessary and 
appropriate in completing the responsibilities set forth in this section." 

Page 2, line 7, after "commissioner" insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 2, line 10, after "commissioner" insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 2, line 14, after "designee" insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 2, line 16, after "commissioner" insert", the department of human services," 

Page 2, line 16, after "or" insert "the" 

Page 2, line 26, after "commissioner" insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 2, line 28, after the comma insert "collectively" 

Page 2, line 28, after "commissioner" insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 2, line 29, replace "commissioner" with "state" 

Page 3, line 1, after the fourth comma insert "collectively" 

Page 3, line 1, after "commissioner" insert "and the department of human services" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 11.8110.02006 
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Module 10: h_cfcomrep_74_001 

Insert LC: 11.8110.02006 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1126, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Dever, J. Lee, Mathern and 

Reps. Keiser, Kasper, Gruchalla) recommends that the SENATE RECEDE from the 
Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1516-1517, adopt amendments as 
follows, and place HB 1126 on the Seventh order: 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1516 and 1517 of the 
House Journal and pages 835 and 836 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill 
No. 1126 be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, replace "a" with "an American" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "insurance" with "benefit" 

Page 1, line 2, after the first semicolon insert "to provide reports to the legislative 
management;" 

Page 1, line 9, after "commissioner" insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 1, line 11, replace the underscored comma with an underscored semicolon 

Page 1, line 14, replace the underscored comma with"; implements eligibility determination 
and enrollment of individuals in the state's medical assistance program and the 
state's children's health insurance program; provides simplification; provides 
coordination among medical assistance, the children's health insurance program 
and the state health insurance exchange:" 

Page 1, line 17, replace "commissioner" with "legislative assembly" 

Page 2, line 3, remove "and" 

Page 2, line 5, replace the underscored period with "· and 

5. Collaborate with the information technology department as necessary 
and appropriate in completing the responsibilities set forth in this 
section." 

Page 2, line 7, after "commissioner" insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 2, line 10, after "commissioner' insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 2, line 14, after "designee" insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 2, line 16, after "commissioner' insert", the department of human services," 

Page 2, line 16, after "or' insert "the" 

Page 2, line 26, after "commissioner' insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 2, line 28, after the comma insert "collectively" 

Page 2, line 28, after "commissioner' insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 2, line 29, replace "commissioner" with "state" 

Page 3, line 1, after the fourth comma insert "collectively" 

Page 3, line 1, after "commissioner' insert "and the department of human services" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_cfcomrep_74_001 
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Com Conference Committee Report 
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Module ID: h_cfcomrep_74_001 

Insert LC: 11.8110.02006 

Engrossed HB 1126 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar . 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_cfcomrep_74_001 
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HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

Adam Hamm 
Commissioner 
North Dakota Insurance Department 

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee 
Representative George Keiser, Chairman 

January 17, 2011 

TESTIMONY 

Good morning, Chairman Keiser and members of the committee. My name is Adam 

Hamm, North Dakota Insurance Commissioner. I appear before you today in support of 

House Bill No. 1126 . 

The purpose of the bill is to allow you to decide whether it is best for North Dakota, 

rather than the federal government, to run the health benefit exchange required by the 

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act also known as "federal health care reform", 

or "PPACA". I will refer to this law as "PPACA". 

What is an Exchange? 

By January 1, 2014, PPACA requires each state to establish a state-based American 

Health Benefit Exchange and a Small Business Health Options Program (SHOP) 

Exchange. These exchanges will be online marketplaces where individuals and small 

businesses can shop for health plans in a way that permits comparison of available plan 

options based on price, benefits and services, and quality. A state may elect to provide 

for only one state exchange that would provide both American Health Benefit Exchange 

services and SHOP Exchange services. 
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Exchanges will allow people to compare health plans and determine which one is best 

for them. Health plans will be placed in tiers based on out-of-pocket costs, which allows 

consumers to compare plans on an apples-to-apples basis. All plans sold in the 

exchange are offered by private insurance companies. There is no government-run 

plan or public insurance option. 

An exchange must also assist eligible individuals to receive premium tax credits or 

coverage through other federal or state health care programs such as Medicaid and the 

Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP). Individuals whose household income 

does not exceed 400 percent of the poverty line will receive subsidies through the 

exchange according to a sliding scale. By providing one-stop shopping, exchanges are 

theoretically supposed to increase competition in the marketplace and make purchasing 

health insurance easier and more understandable for consumers. 

If North Dakota does not run its own exchange, the United States Department of Health 

and Human Services ("HHS") will. By January 1, 2013, HHS must determine whether 

the state will have an exchange in operation by January 1, 2014. If it determines that 

the state will not have an operational exchange by then, HHS is required to establish 

and operate the exchange within that state. The federal government will work with the 

Governor of the state as the Chief Executive Officer unless authority to operate the 

exchange has been delegated to a specific authority through state law. 

What Does This Bill Do? 

At its most basic level, this bill puts the following questions before you: 

1. Do you want the federal government or the state to run the North Dakota 

exchange? 

2. If you want the state to run its own exchange, who do you want to run it? 
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3. If the state will run its exchange, what resources do you want the 

responsible agency to have in order to build and operate the exchange? 

To be clear, this bill is not an endorsement of PPACA or the wisdom or effectiveness of 

exchanges. It is the means by which these issues are being brought before you so that 

the Legislative Assembly may decide whether it is in North Dakota's best interest to run 

its own exchange or to let the federal government do so. 

Who Can Run An Exchange? 

States have the option to establish the exchange as a governmental agency or nonprofit 

entity. Within the governmental agency category, the exchange could be housed within 

an existing state agency or a newly created, independent state agency. Alternatively, 

the exchange could be operated by a nonprofit entity. If none of these entities run the 

state's exchange, the federal government will take over that responsibility. 

What Functions Must an Exchange Perform? 

Exchanges must perform a lengthy list of functions. These functions should be taken 

into consideration when deciding which entity is best to run the exchange and the 

resources needed by that entity. At a minimum, an exchange must: 

• Implement procedures for the certification, recertification, and decertification of 

health plans as qualified health plans; 

• Provide for the operation of a toll-free telephone hotline to respond to assistance 

requests; 

• Maintain an internet website through which enrollees and prospective enrollees 

of qualified health plans may obtain standardized comparative information on 

health plans; 

3 



• 

• 

• 

• Assign a rating to each qualified health plan offered through the exchange; 

• Use a standardized format for presenting health benefits plan options in the 

exchange, including the use of the uniform outline of coverage; 

• Inform individuals of eligibility requirements for Medicaid, CHIP, or any applicable 

state or local public program, and, if through screening of the individual's 

application by the exchange, it determines that such individuals are eligible for 

any such program, enroll such individuals in such program; 

• Establish and make available by electronic means a calculator to determine the 

actual cost of coverage after the application of any premium tax credit and any 

cost-sharing reduction available under PPACA; 

• Grant certification attesting that, for purposes of the individual responsibility 

penalty, an individual is exempt from the individual requirement or from the 

penalty imposed because he or she meets one of the exceptions provided in 

PPACA; 

• Transfer to the Secretary of the Treasury a list of individuals who are issued 

certification of penalty exemption, the name and taxpayer identification number of 

each individual who was an employee of an employer but who was determined to 

be eligible for the premium tax credit because the employer did not provide 

minimum essential coverage or the employer provided the minimum essential 

coverage but it was either unaffordable or did not provide the required minimum 

actuarial value, and the name and taxpayer identification number of each 

individual who notifies the exchange that they have changed employers and of 

each individual who ceases coverage under a qualified health plan during a plan 

year; 

4 



• 

• 

• Provide each employer with the name of each of its employees who ceases 

coverage under a qualified health plan during a plan year and the effective date 

of such cessation; and 

• Establish a Navigator program. 

There are some areas where the state has choices. Federal rules will clarify that the 

following policy areas, among others, are state decisions, although HHS may offer 

recommendations and technical assistance to states as they make these decisions: 

• Whether to form the exchange as a governmental agency or a nonprofit entity. 

• Whether to form regional exchanges or establish interstate coordination for 

certain functions . 

• Whether to require additional benefits in the exchange beyond the essential 

health benefits (mandates). 

• Whether to establish a competitive bidding process for plans. 

• Whether to extend some or all exchange-specific regulations to the outside 

insurance market beyond what is required in PPACA. 

• What additional types of services the exchange might provide to individuals and 

business to ensure simple and fast service. 

If you believe that it would be better for the state to run its own exchange, certain things 

have to be accomplished by deadlines set out in PPACA. As I already noted, states 

must be on track for achieving certification of their exchange by January 1, 2013, or the 

federal government will run the exchange. And the exchange must be operating no 

later than January 1, 2014. Establishment of an exchange requires a planning process 
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to create an exchange that will meet all the requirements of PPACA. Anyone who is 

even somewhat familiar with a complex information technology (IT) project can 

recognize how short this timeframe is, especially given that most of the functionality 

required does not exist in North Dakota's stale government or in any other entity 

currently operating in our state. 

This bill would require the Commissioner to plan and implement the exchange for the 

state. The bill would ensure that the exchange facilitates the purchase of qualified 

health benefit plans, provides for the establishment of a small business health options 

program, and meets the exchange requirements of PPACA generally. 

What Does the Commissioner Do if the State Runs the Exchange? 

In order to plan and implement a North Dakota exchange, the bill assigns the following 

duties to the Commissioner: 

• To take actions necessary to ensure that the exchange is determined, not later 

than January 1, 2013, by the federal government to be ready to operate not later 

than January 1, 2014. 

• To consider whether to seek federal grant funds for the planning and 

implementation of the exchange. 

• To determine whether to establish one exchange that will provide services to 

both qualified individuals and qualified small employers or to have two separate 

exchanges. 

• To contract with outside entities, if necessary, to provide services to implement 

the exchange. 

• To adopt rules, if necessary or desirable, to carry out the provisions of the bill. 

6 



• 

• 

Exchanges will require complex and particular IT systems and other business 

operations to perform the functions required. Since the exchange will have to work with 

other state and federal agencies, for example, to fulfill its duty to determine tax credits 

and enroll eligible individuals in Medicaid and CHIP, the bill requires state agencies to 

cooperate with the Commissioner to ensure the success of the exchange. At this time, 

the IT systems of the agencies likely to be involved in the exchange do not have the 

ability to communicate and exchange data with each other. 

Because exchanges are also required to report certain information to other entities such 

as the United States Secretary of the Treasury, the bill allows the Commissioner to 

receive from, and provide to, federal and state agencies confidential information 

gathered in the administration of the exchange including Social Security numbers if the 

disclosure is necessary for the Commissioner or receiving entity to perform its duties 

and responsibilities. 

What Resources Are Needed For an Exchange? 

The bill also provides that the Commissioner may seek Emergency Commission and 

Budget Section approval for authority to spend any general funds, special funds or 

federal funds available under PPACA. The federal government will provide grants for 

exchange planning and development. 

Forty-eight states and the District of Columbia were awarded their first exchange 

planning grants in September 2010. Those grants were for planning purposes and the 

next round of grants will be for the purpose of establishing an exchange. The 

opportunity to apply for grants will be announced in February 2011 and will become 

available on a rolling basis throughout the next three years. States will have to meet 

certain milestones in order to be awarded grants in 2011, and the size of state awards 

may be related to the number of milestones met. Necessary exchange planning and 

establishment costs will be funded by HHS until 2015. After January 1, 2015, 
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• exchanges must be self-funded. North Dakota was approved to receive $1,000,000 in 

the first round of exchange grants; however, the Emergency Commission tabled the 

request to utilize these funds. These funds could be important right now given the 

challenging infrastructure requirements needed to develop an exchange. They can be 

used to analyze options, define requirements, and estimate the probable cost to 

implement an electronic system to operate the state's exchange. Future grant funds will 

be available to pay for the cost of building the system that will operate the exchange. 

In addition to the staffing and information technology infrastructure needs, the state will 

need resources to help it identify and address many issues and to make informed 

decisions along the way, including: 

1. Unified exchange. A state has to provide an exchange that facilitates 

individuals' purchase of health insurance and an exchange that serves 

small businesses. The state may choose to operate them separately or 

both in one exchange as long as it serves both functions. 

2. Regional exchange. States may form a regional exchange with other 

states or allow more than one exchange to operate in the state as long as 

each exchange serves a distinct geographic region. 

3. Stakeholders. PPACA requires states to consult with stakeholders in 

implementation of the exchange. Stakeholders must include health care 

consumers who enroll in qualified health plans, individuals and entities 

experienced in facilitating enrollment in qualified health plans, 

representatives of small businesses and self-employed individuals, state 

Medicaid offices, and advocates for enrolling hard to reach populations. In 

planning for this legislative session, the Insurance Department has already 

begun stakeholder conversations. I can assure you that the exchange is a 

focus for many of these individuals and groups. 
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4. Funding. How will the state ensure that the exchange is self-sustaining 

as of January 1, 2015? Exchanges are allowed to charge assessments or 

user fees to participating insurance issuers or to otherwise generate 

funding in order to support its operations. 

5. Outside market. Will insurers be allowed to sell health plans outside the 

exchange? And if an external market remains, will insurers be required to 

offer plans both in and out of the exchange? 

6. Large employers. Beginning in 2017, an exchange may allow 

businesses with more than 100 employees to purchase coverage in the 

exchange also. 

7. Mandates. Does the state want to require that plans offer benefits in 

addition to the essential health benefits package? If so, the state must 

assume the cost by making payments to individuals enrolled in a qualified 

health plan in the state or making payments directly to the qualified health 

plan on behalf of the individual. HHS has not yet determined how the 

essential health benefits package will be defined. 

8. Data reporting. Determination of the data that will be required to be 

reported, what persons will be allowed to access data, and how to ensure 

appropriate protection of data. 

9. Certification of plans. The exchange must implement procedures for the 

certification, recertification and decertification of health plans as qualified 

health plans. It is expected that this will require someone to analyze the 

health plans offered for sale through the exchange to ensure that they 

meet one of the required benefit categories: bronze plans which must 

cover 60% of benefit costs; silver plans which must cover 70% of benefit 

costs; gold plans which must cover 80% of benefit costs; platinum plans 
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• which must cover 90% of benefit costs; and catastrophic plans, which are 

available only to those up to age 30, which must provide catastrophic 

coverage only. Someone must also ensure that the plans offered in the 

exchange meet certain benefit requirements, marketing requirements, 

have adequate provider networks, contract with essential community 

providers, contract with navigators to conduct outreach and enrollment 

assistance, be accredited with respect to performance on quality 

measures, and use a uniform enrollment form and standard format to 

present plan information. 

10. Hotline. The exchange must provide for the operation of a toll-free hotline 

to respond to assistance requests. 

11 . 

12. 

Website. The exchange must maintain an internet website through which 

enrollees and prospective enrollees of qualified health plans may obtain 

standardized comparative information on health plans. 

Ratings. The exchange must assign a rating to each qualified health 

benefit plan offered through the exchange. 

13. Standardized format. The exchange must use a standardized format for 

presenting health benefits plan options in the exchange, including the use 

of the uniform outline of coverage. 

14. Other coverage. The exchange must inform individuals of Medicaid, 

CHIP, and other state or local public programs eligibility requirements and 

enroll eligible individuals in these programs. 

15. Calculator. The exchange must provide an electronic calculator to 

determine the actual cost of coverage after the application of any premium 

tax credit and any cost-sharing reduction. 
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16. Individual responsibility certification. The exchange must grant a 

certification attesting that for purpose of the individual responsibility 

penalty (individual mandate) that an individual is exempt from the penalty 

because there is no affordable qualified health plan available through the 

exchange or the individual's employer, or the individual meets the 

requirement for any other exemption. 

17. Certification of penalty exemption. The exchange must transfer to the 

Secretary of the Treasury a list of individuals who are issued a certification 

of penalty exemption. 

18. Employer notice. The exchange must provide each employer with the 

name of each of its employees who ceases coverage under a qualified 

health plan during a plan year . 

19. Navigator program. The exchange must establish a Navigator program 

under which it awards grants to entities to carry out certain duties such as 

public education, facilitating enrollment in qualified health plans, and 

providing referrals to health insurance ombudsman or other appropriate 

agency for any enrollee with a grievance, complaint, or question regarding 

his health plan, coverage, or a determination under such plan or coverage. 

20. Producers. The exchange must determine the role insurance producers 

(agents) will play in the sale of health benefit plans in the exchange. 

The bill also contains an emergency clause so that it would become effective 

immediately upon its filing with the Secretary of State to allow work to start to address 

the many decisions that will have to be made and the work to begin to build an IT 

system that will be capable of performing all the required functions . 
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In closing, there are many decisions to be made about how the exchange will be run in 

North Dakota. There will be more decisions to be made as things are further defined or 

changed at the federal level. Several federal agencies are tasked with issuing 

regulations to implement the law and many of them have yet to be issued so various 

components remain undefined at this point. In addition, there is the prospect of 

Congress making changes to the law as well as the numerous legal challenges to the 

law that are making their way through the court system. For now, the law requires that 

there be an exchange implemented in North Dakota. The first decision is who will run it: 

the federal government or the state. Our stakeholders are telling us they prefer North 

Dakota run its own exchange and cite the numerous problems with other federal 

insurance programs as examples of how North Dakotans serve our own better. In fact, it 

is my Department that assists Medicare Part D prescription drug beneficiaries in 

comparing, choosing, and enrolling in Part D plans, as well as dealing with issues and 

complaints. This piece of legislation places similar responsibilities related to the 

exchange in this same agency . 

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to try to answer any questions the 

committee members may have. Thank you . 
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• Testimony 
House Bill 1126 - Department of Human Services 

House Industry, Business & Labor 
Representative Keiser, Chairman 

January 17, 2011 

Chairman Keiser, members of the Industry, Business & Labor Committee, 

I am Carol Olson, Executive Director of the Department of Human 

Services. I am here today to provide information to you regarding the 

relationship between an American Health Benefit Exchange and the 

programs within Department of Human Services. 

If it is the interest of this committee to pursue the establishment of an 

American Health Benefit Exchange for the state that will meet the 

requirements as currently outlined in the Patient Protection and 

Affordable Care Act of 2010, it will be important for this committee to 

consider the implications of: 

• Title I, Section 1311(d)(4)(F) requiring, at a minimum, for the 

Exchange to provide for eligibility determination and the enrollment 

of individuals in Medicaid and CHIP programs; and 

• Title II Role of Public Programs, Section 2201 which outlines more 

specifically the requirements of enrollment simplification and 

Medicaid and CHIP coordination with the State Health Insurance 

Exchange. 

The intent of these sections is to ensure that the American Health Benefit 

Exchange provide seamless eligibility and enrollment linkages between 

the exchange coverage options and public assistance programs. In order 

to achieve this level of interoperability with the Exchange, the Medicaid 

• and CHIP eligibility systems will require significant modification. 

I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 



Testimony 
House Bill 1126 - Department of Human Services 

Before the Joint Meeting of 
House Industry, Business & Labor 
Representative Keiser, Chairman 

House Appropriations, Government Operations Division 
Representative Thoreson, Chairman 

February 1, 2011 

Chairmen Keiser and Thoreson, members of the Industry, Business & 

Labor Committee and House Appropriations, Government Operations 

Division, I am Carol Olson, Executive Director of the Department of 

Human Services. I am here today to provide information to you 

regarding the relationship between an American Health Benefit Exchange 

and the programs within Department of Human Services. 

If it is the interest of this committee to pursue the establishment of an 

American Health Benefit Exchange for the state that will meet the 

requirements as currently outlined in the Patient Protection and 

Affordable Care Act of 2010, it will be important for this committee to 

consider the implications of: 

• Title I, Section 1311(d)(4)(F) requiring, at a minimum, for the 

Exchange to provide for eligibility determination and the enrollment 

--------------Of individuals in Medicaid-and CHIP programs; and 

• Title II Role of Public Programs, Section 2201 which outlines more 

specifically the requirements of enrollment simplification and 

Medicaid and CHIP coordination with the State Health Insurance 

Exchange. 

The intent of these sections is to ensure that the American Health Benefit 

Exchange provide seamless eligibility and enrollment linkages between 

the exchange coverage options and public assistance programs. In order 

to achieve this level of interoperability with the Exchange, the Medicaid 

and CHIP eligibility systems will require significant modification. 

I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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TESTIMONY 

Good morning committee members. My name is Adam Hamm, North Dakota Insurance 

Commissioner. I appear before you today in support of House Bill No. 1126. 

• The purpose of the bill is to allow you to decide whether it is best for North Dakota, 

rather than the federal government, to run the health benefit exchange required by the 

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act also known as "federal health care reform", 

or "PPACA". I will refer to this law as "PPACA". 

• 

What is an Exchange? 

By January 1, 2014, PPACA requires each state to establish a state-based American 

Health Benefit Exchange and a Small Business Health Options Program (SHOP) 

Exchange. These exchanges will be online marketplaces where individuals and small 

businesses can shop for health plans in a way that permits comparison of available plan 

options based on price, benefits and services, and quality. A state may elect to provide 

for only one state exchange that would provide both American Health Benefit Exchange 

services and SHOP Exchange services . 
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• Exchanges will allow people to compare health plans and determine which one is best 

for them. Health plans will be placed in tiers based on out-of-pocket costs, which allows 

consumers to compare plans on an apples-to-apples basis. All plans sold in the 

exchange are offered by private insurance companies. There is no government-run 

plan or public insurance option. 

An exchange must also assist eligible individuals to receive premium tax credits or 

coverage through other federal or state health care programs such as Medicaid and the 

Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP). Individuals whose household income 

does not exceed 400 percent of the poverty line will receive subsidies through the 

exchange according to a sliding scale. By providing one-stop shopping, exchanges are 

theoretically supposed to increase competition in the marketplace and make purchasing 

health insurance easier and more understandable for consumers. 

If North Dakota does not run its own exchange, the United States Department of Health 

• and Human Services ("HHS") will. By January 1, 2013, HHS must determine whether 

the state will have an exchange in operation by January 1, 2014. If it determines that 

the state will not have an operational exchange by then, HHS is required to establish 

and operate the exchange within that state. The federal government will work with the 

Governor of the state as the Chief Executive Officer unless authority to operate the 

exchange has been delegated to a specific authority through state law. 

• 

What Does This Bill Do? 

At its most basic level, this bill puts the following questions before you: 

1. Do you want the federal government or the state to run the North Dakota 

exchange? 

2. If you want the state to run its own exchange, who do you want to run it? 
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3 . If the state will run its exchange, what resources do you want the 

responsible agency to have in order to build and operate the exchange? 

To be clear, this bill is not an endorsement of PPACA or the wisdom or effectiveness of 

exchanges. It is the means by which these issues are being brought before you so that 

the Legislative Assembly may decide whether it is in North Dakota's best interest to run 

its own exchange or to let the federal government do so. 

Who Can Run An Exchange? 

States have the option to establish the exchange as a governmental agency or nonprofit 

entity. Within the governmental agency category, the exchange could be housed within 

an existing state agency or a newly created, independent state agency. Alternatively, 

the exchange could be operated by a nonprofit entity. If none of these entities run the 

state's exchange, the federal government will take over that responsibility . 

What Functions Must an Exchange Perform? 

Exchanges must perform a lengthy list of functions. These functions should be taken 

into consideration when deciding which entity is best to run the exchange and the 

resources needed by that entity. At a minimum, an exchange must: 

• Implement procedures for the certification, recertification, and decertification of 

health plans as qualified health plans; 

• Provide for the operation of a toll-free telephone hotline to respond to assistance 

requests; 

• Maintain an internet website through which enrollees and prospective enrollees 

of qualified health plans may obtain standardized comparative information on 

health plans; 

3 



• • Assign a rating to each qualified health plan offered through the exchange; 

• 

• 

• Use a standardized format for presenting health benefits plan options in the 

exchange, including the use of the uniform outline of coverage; 

• Inform individuals of eligibility requirements for Medicaid, CHIP, or any applicable 

state or local public program, and, if through screening of the individual's 

application by the exchange, it determines that such individuals are eligible for 

any such program, enroll such individuals in such program; 

• Establish and make available by electronic means a calculator to determine the 

actual cost of coverage after the application of any premium tax credit and any 

cost-sharing reduction available under PPACA; 

• Grant certification attesting that, for purposes of the individual responsibility 

penalty, an individual is exempt from the individual requirement or from the 

penalty imposed because he or she meets one of the exceptions provided in 

PPACA; 

• Transfer to the Secretary of the Treasury a list of individuals who are issued 

certification of penalty exemption, the name and taxpayer identification number of 

each individual who was an employee of an employer but who was determined to 

be eligible for the premium tax credit because the employer did not provide 

minimum essential coverage or the employer provided the minimum essential 

coverage but it was either unaffordable or did not provide the required minimum 

actuarial value, and the name and taxpayer identification number of each 

individual who notifies the exchange that they have changed employers and of 

each individual who ceases coverage under a qualified health plan during a plan 

year; 
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• • Provide each employer with the name of each of its employees who ceases 

coverage under a qualified health plan during a plan year and the effective date 

of such cessation; and 

• Establish a Navigator program. 

There are some areas where the state has choices. Federal rules will clarify that the 

following policy areas, among others, are state decisions, although HHS may offer 

recommendations and technical assistance to states as they make these decisions: 

• Whether to form the exchange as a governmental agency or a nonprofit entity. 

• Whether to form regional exchanges or establish interstate coordination for 

certain functions. 

• • Whether to require additional benefits in the exchange beyond the essential 

• 

health benefits (mandates). 

• Whether to establish a competitive bidding process for plans. 

• Whether to extend some or all exchange-specific regulations to the outside 

insurance market beyond what is required in PPACA. 

• What additional types of services the exchange might provide to individuals and 

business to ensure simple and fast service. 

If you believe that it would be better for the state to run its own exchange, certain things 

have to be accomplished by deadlines set out in PPACA. As I already noted, states 

must be on track for achieving certification of their exchange by January 1, 2013, or the 

federal government will run the exchange. And the exchange must be operating no 

later than January 1, 2014. Establishment of an exchange requires a planning process 
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to create an exchange that will meet all the requirements of PPACA. Anyone who is 

even somewhat familiar with a complex information technology (IT) project can 

recognize how short this timeframe is, especially given that most of the functionality 

required does not exist in North Dakota's state government or in any other entity 

currently operating in our state. 

This bill would require the Commissioner to plan and implement the exchange for the 

state. The bill would ensure that the exchange facilitates the purchase of qualified 

health benefit plans, provides for the establishment of a small business health options 

program, and meets the exchange requirements of PPACA generally. 

What Does the Commissioner Do if the State Runs the Exchange? 

In order to plan and implement a North Dakota exchange, the bill assigns the following 

duties to the Commissioner: 

• To take actions necessary to ensure that the exchange is determined, not later 

than January 1, 2013, by the federal government to be ready to operate not later 

than January 1, 2014. 

• To consider whether to seek federal grant funds for the planning and 

implementation of the exchange. 

• To determine whether to establish one exchange that will provide services to 

both qualified individuals and qualified small employers or to have two separate 

exchanges. 

• To contract with outside entities, if necessary, to provide services to implement 

the exchange . 

• To adopt rules, if necessary or desirable, to carry out the provisions of the bill. 
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Exchanges will require complex and particular IT systems and other business 

operations to perform the functions required. Since the exchange will have to work with 

other state and federal agencies, for example, to fulfill its duty to determine tax credits 

and enroll eligible individuals in Medicaid and CHIP, the bill requires state agencies to 

cooperate with the Commissioner to ensure the success of the exchange. At this time, 

the IT systems of the agencies likely to be involved in the exchange do not have the 

ability to communicate and exchange data with each other. 

Because exchanges are also required to report certain information to other entities such 

as the United States Secretary of the Treasury, the bill allows the Commissioner to 

receive from, and provide to, federal and state agencies confidential information 

gathered in the administration of the exchange including Social Security numbers if the 

disclosure is necessary for the Commissioner or receiving entity to perform its duties 

and responsibilities . 

What Resources Are Needed For an Exchange? 

The bill also provides that the Commissioner may seek Emergency Commission and 

Budget Section approval for authority to spend any general funds, special funds or 

federal funds available under PPACA. The federal government will provide grants for 

exchange planning and development. 

Forty-eight states and the District of Columbia were awarded their first exchange 

planning grants in September 2010. Those grants were for planning purposes and the 

next round of grants will be for the purpose of establishing an exchange. The 

opportunity to apply for grants will be announced in February 2011 and will become 

available on a rolling basis throughout the next three years. States will have to meet 

certain milestones in order to be awarded grants in 2011, and the size of state awards 

may be related to the number of milestones met. Necessary exchange planning and 

• establishment costs will be funded by HHS until 2015. After January 1, 2015, 
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exchanges must be self-funded. North Dakota was approved to receive $1,000,000 in 

the first round of exchange grants; however, the Emergency Commission tabled the 

request to utilize these funds. These funds could be important right now given the 

challenging infrastructure requirements needed to develop an exchange. They can be 

used to analyze options, define requirements, and estimate the probable cost to 

implement an electronic system to operate the state's exchange. Future grant funds will 

be available to pay for the cost of building the system that will operate the exchange. 

In addition to the staffing and information technology infrastructure needs, the state will 

need resources to help it identify and address many issues and to make informed 

decisions along the way, including: 

1. Unified exchange. A state has to provide an exchange that facilitates 

individuals' purchase of health insurance and an exchange that serves 

small businesses. The state may choose to operate them separately or 

both in one exchange as long as it serves both functions . 

2. Regional exchange. States may form a regional exchange with other 

states or allow more than one exchange to operate in the state as long as 

each exchange serves a distinct geographic region. 

3. Stakeholders. PPACA requires states to consult with stakeholders in 

implementation of the exchange. Stakeholders must include health care 

consumers who enroll in qualified health plans, individuals and entities 

experienced in facilitating enrollment in qualified health plans, 

representatives of small businesses and self-employed individuals, state 

Medicaid offices, and advocates for enrolling hard to reach populations. In 

planning for this legislative session, the Insurance Department has already 

begun stakeholder conversations. I can assure you that the exchange is a 

focus for many of these individuals and groups . 
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4 . Funding. How will the state ensure that the exchange is self-sustaining 

as of January 1, 2015? Exchanges are allowed to charge assessments or 

user fees to participating insurance issuers or to otherwise generate 

funding in order to support its operations. 

5. Outside market. Will insurers be allowed to sell health plans outside the 

exchange? And if an external market remains, will insurers be required to 

offer plans both in and out of the exchange? 

6. Large employers. Beginning in 2017, an exchange may allow 

businesses with more than 100 employees to purchase coverage in the 

exchange also. 

7. Mandates. Does the state want to require that plans offer benefits in 

addition to the essential health benefits package? If so, the state must 

assume the cost by making payments to individuals enrolled in a qualified 

health plan in the state or making payments directly to the qualified health 

plan on behalf of the individual. HHS has not yet determined how the 

essential health benefits package will be defined. 

8. Data reporting. Determination of the data that will be required to be 

reported, what persons will be allowed to access data, and how to ensure 

appropriate protection of data. 

9. Certification of plans. The exchange must implement procedures for the 

certification, recertification and decertification of health plans as qualified 

health plans. It is expected that this will require someone to analyze the 

health plans offered for sale through the exchange to ensure that they 

meet one of the required benefit categories: bronze plans which must 

cover 60% of benefit costs; silver plans which must cover 70% of benefit 

costs; gold plans which must cover 80% of benefit costs; platinum plans 
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which must cover 90% of benefit costs; and catastrophic plans, which are 

available only to those up to age 30, which must provide catastrophic 

coverage only. Someone must also ensure that the plans offered in the 

exchange meet certain benefit requirements, marketing requirements, 

have adequate provider networks, contract with essential community 

providers, contract with navigators to conduct outreach and enrollment 

assistance, be accredited with respect to performance on quality 

measures, and use a uniform enrollment form and standard format to 

present plan information. 

10. Hotline. The exchange must provide for the operation of a toll-free hotline 

to respond to assistance requests. 

11. Website. The exchange must maintain an internet website through which 

enrollees and prospective enrollees of qualified health plans may obtain 

standardized comparative information on health plans. 

12. Ratings. The exchange must assign a rating to each qualified health 

benefit plan offered through the exchange. 

13. Standardized format. The exchange must use a standardized format for 

presenting health benefits plan options in the exchange, including the use 

of the uniform outline of coverage. 

14. Other coverage. The exchange must inform individuals of Medicaid, 

CHIP, and other state or local public programs eligibility requirements and 

enroll eligible individuals in these programs. 

15. Calculator. The exchange must provide an electronic calculator to 

determine the actual cost of coverage after the application of any premium 

tax credit and any cost-sharing reduction. 
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16. Individual responsibility certification. The exchange must grant a 

certification attesting that for purpose of the individual responsibility 

penalty (individual mandate) that an individual is exempt from the penalty 

because there is no affordable qualified health plan available through the 

exchange or the individual's employer, or the individual meets the 

requirement for any other exemption. 

17. Certification of penalty exemption. The exchange must transfer to the 

Secretary of the Treasury a list of individuals who are issued a certification 

of penalty exemption. 

18. Employer notice. The exchange must provide each employer with the 

name of each of its employees who ceases coverage under a qualified 

health plan during a plan year . 

19. Navigator program. The exchange must establish a Navigator program 

under which it awards grants to entities to carry out certain duties such as 

public education, facilitating enrollment in qualified health plans, and 

providing referrals to health insurance ombudsman or other appropriate 

agency for any enrollee with a grievance, complaint, or question regarding 

his health plan, coverage, or a determination under such plan or coverage. 

20. Producers. The exchange must determine the role insurance producers 

(agents) will play in the sale of health benefit plans in the exchange. 

The bill also contains an emergency clause so that it would become effective 

immediately upon its filing with the Secretary of State to allow work to start to address 

the many decisions that will have to be made and the work to begin to build an IT 

system that will be capable of performing all the required functions . 
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In closing, there are many decisions to be made about how the exchange will be run in 

North Dakota. There will be more decisions to be made as things are further defined or 

changed at the federal level. Several federal agencies are tasked with issuing 

regulations to implement the law and many of them have yet to be issued so various 

components remain undefined at this point. In addition, there is the prospect of 

Congress making changes to the law as well as the numerous legal challenges to the 

law that are making their way through the court system. For now, the law requires that 

there be an exchange implemented in North Dakota. The first decision is who will run it: 

the federal government or the state. Our stakeholders are telling us they prefer North 

Dakota run its own exchange and cite the numerous problems with other federal 

insurance programs as examples of how North Dakotans serve our own better. In fact, it 

is my Department that assists Medicare Part D prescription drug beneficiaries in 

comparing, choosing, and enrolling in Part D plans, as well as dealing with issues and 

complaints. This piece of legislation places similar responsibilities related to the 

exchange in this same agency . 

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to try to answer any questions the 

committee members may have. Thank you . 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Keiser 

January 27, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

Page 1, line 2, after the second semicolon insert "to provide for application;" 

Page 2, after line 20, insert: 

"SECTION 3. APPLICATION. In carrying out the requirements of this Act, the 
insurance commissioner shall provide regular updates to the legislative management 
during the 2011-12 interim. In determining, planning, and implementing an American 
health benefit exchange for the state, the commissioner shall submit proposed 
legislation to the legislative management for consideration at a special legislative 
session if the commissioner is required by federal law to take any action by January 1, 
2013. For any plan, program, or requirement that must be implemented between 
January 1, 2013, and January 1, 2014, the commissioner shall submit proposed 
legislation to the legislative management before October 15, 2012." 

Renumber accordingly 
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February 1, 2011 co•--,-~ 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO.1126 

Page 2, line 16, replace 'The commissioner may seek emergency commission and 
budget section approval" with "There is hereby appropriated the sum of 
$33,764,517, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from federal and 
other funds, to the insurance commissioner for the purposes provided in section 
1 of this Act, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and 
ending June 30, 2013. The insurance commissioner is authorized 4.0 additional 
full-time equivalent positions for the purposes provided in section 1 of this Act." 

Page 2, remove lines 17 through 20 

Renumber accordingly 
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House Bill 1126 - Department of Human Services 
Before the Joint Meeting of 

House Industry, Business & Labor 
Representative Keiser, Chairman 

House Appropriations - Human Resources Division 
Representative Pollert, Chairman 

February 1, 2011 

Chairmen Keiser and Pollert, members of the Industry, Business & Labor 

Committee and House Appropriations - Human Resources Division, I am 

Carol Olson, Executive Director of the Department of Human Services. I 

am here today to provide information to you regarding the relationship 

between an American Health Benefit Exchange and the programs within 

Department of Human Services. 

If it is the interest of this committee to pursue the establishment of an 

American Health Benefit Exchange for the state that will meet the 

• requirements as currently outlined in the Patient Protection and Affordable 

Care Act of 2010, it will be important for this committee to consider the 

implications of: 

• 

• Title I, Section 131l(d)(4)(F) requiring, at a minimum, for the 

Exchange to provide for eligibility determination and the enrollment 

of individuals in Medicaid and CHIP programs; and 

• Title II Role of Public Programs, Section 2201 which outlines more 

specifically the requirements of enrollment simplification and Medicaid 

and CHIP coordination with the State Health Insurance Exchange. 

The intent of these sections is to ensure that the American Health Benefit 

Exchange provide seamless eligibility and enrollment linkages between the 

exchange coverage options and public assistance programs. In order to 

achieve this level of interoperability with the Exchange, the Medicaid and 

CHIP eligibility systems will require significant modification . 

I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 -f .Ji 1
1 

2.o(f 
Page 2, after line 2, insert: 

"~ · Collaborate with the department of human services to ensure the 
American health benefit exchange incorporates a seamless eligibility and 
enrollment process for individuals eligible for medicaid and the children's 
health insurance program." 

Page 2, after line 20, insert: 

"SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION- DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN 
SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $15,555,543, and from 
special funds derived from federal funds and other income, the sum of 
$27,062,382, to the department of human services for the purpose of defraying 
the expenses of incorporating the medicaid and children's health insurance 
program eligibility determination functionality into the American health benefit 
exchange created under this Act, and for the purpose of defraying the 
corresponding costs related to the modification of the department's economic 
assistance eligibility system for the biennium beginning July 1, 2011, and ending 
June 30, 2013." 

Renumber accordingly 

Proposed amendment to 11.8110.01000 
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HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 
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Senate Human Services Committee 
Senator Judy Lee, Chairman 

March 16, 2011 

TESTIMONY 

Good morning, Chairman Lee and members of the committee. My name is Adam 

Hamm, North Dakota Insurance Commissioner. I appear before you today in support of 

House Bill No. 1126 . 

The purpose of the bill is to allow you to decide whether it is best for North Dakota, 

rather than the federal government, to run the health benefit exchange required by the 

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act also known as "federal health care reform", 

or "PPACA". I will refer to this law as "PPACA". 

What is an Exchange? 

By January 1, 2014, PPACA requires each state to establish a state-based American 

Health Benefit Exchange and a Small Business Health Options Program (SHOP) 

Exchange. These exchanges will be online marketplaces where individuals and small 

businesses can shop for health plans in a way that permits comparison of available plan 

options based on price, benefits and services, and quality. A state may elect to provide 

for only one state exchange that would provide both American Health Benefit Exchange 

services and SHOP Exchange services. 
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Exchanges will allow people to compare health plans and determine which one is best 

for them. Health plans will be placed in tiers based on out-of-pocket costs, which allows 

consumers to compare plans on an apples-to-apples basis. All plans sold in the 

exchange are offered by private insurance companies. There is no government-run 

plan or public insurance option. 

An exchange must also assist eligible individuals to receive premium tax credits or 

coverage through other federal or state health care programs such as Medicaid and the 

Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP). Individuals whose household income 

does not exceed 400 percent of the poverty line will receive subsidies through the 

exchange according to a sliding scale. By providing one-stop shopping, exchanges are 

theoretically supposed to increase competition in the marketplace and make purchasing 

health insurance easier and more understandable for consumers. 

If North Dakota does not run its own exchange, the United States Department of Health 

and Human Services ("HHS") will. By January 1, 2013, HHS must determine whether 

the state will have an exchange in operation by January 1, 2014. If it determines that 

the state will not have an operational exchange by then, HHS is required to establish 

and operate the exchange within that state. The federal government will work with the 

Governor of the state as the Chief Executive Officer unless authority to operate the 

exchange has been delegated to a specific authority through state law. 

What Does This Bill Do? 

At its most basic level, this bill puts the following questions before you: 

1. Do you want the federal government or the state to run the North Dakota 

exchange? 

2 . If you want the state to run its own exchange, who do you want to run it? 

2 



3. If the state will run its exchange, what resources do you want the 

responsible agency to have in order to build and operate the exchange? 

To be clear, this bill is not an endorsement of PPACA or the wisdom or effectiveness of 

exchanges. It is the means by which these issues are being brought before you so that 

the Legislative Assembly may decide whether it is in North Dakota's best interest to run 

its own exchange or to let the federal government do so. 

Who Can Run An Exchange? 

States have the option to establish the exchange as a governmental agency or nonprofit 

entity. Within the governmental agency category, the exchange could be housed within 

an existing state agency or a newly created, independent state agency. Alternatively, 

the exchange could be operated by a nonprofit entity. If none of these entities run the 

state's exchange, the federal government will take over that responsibility. 

What Functions Must an Exchange Perform? 

Exchanges must perform a lengthy list of functions. These functions should be taken 

into consideration when deciding which entity is best to run the exchange and the 

resources needed by that entity. At a minimum, an exchange must: 

• Implement procedures for the certification, recertification, and decertification of 

health plans as qualified health plans; 

• Provide for the operation of a toll-free telephone hotline to respond to assistance 

requests; 

• Maintain an internet website through which enrollees and prospective enrollees 

of qualified health plans may obtain standardized comparative information on 

health plans; 
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• •. Assign a rating to each qualified health plan offered through the exchange; 

• Use a standardized format for presenting health benefits plan options in the 

exchange, including the use of the uniform outline of coverage; 

• Inform individuals of eligibility requirements for Medicaid, CHIP, or any applicable 

state or local public program, and, if through screening of the individual's 

application by the exchange, it determines that such individuals are eligible for 

any such program, enroll such individuals in such program; 

• Establish and make available by electronic means a calculator to determine the 

actual cost of coverage after the application of any premium tax credit and any 

cost-sharing reduction available under PPACA; 

• Grant certification attesting that, for purposes of the individual responsibility 

penalty, an individual is exempt from.the individual requirement or from the 

penalty imposed because he or she meets one of the exceptions provided in 

PPACA; 

• Transfer to the Secretary of the Treasury a list of individuals who are issued 

certification of penalty exemption, the name and taxpayer identification number of 

each individual who was an employee of an employer but who was determined to 

be eligible for the premium tax credit because the employer did not provide 

minimum essential coverage or the employer provided the minimum essential 

coverage but it was either unaffordable or did not provide the required minimum 

actuarial value, and the name and taxpayer identification number of each 

individual who notifies the exchange that they have changed employers and of 

each individual who ceases coverage under a qualified health plan during a plan 

year; 
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• Provide each employer with the name of each of its employees who ceases 

coverage under a qualified health plan during a plan year and the effective date 

of such cessation; and 

• Establish a Navigator program. 

There are some areas where the state has choices. Federal rules will clarify that the 

following policy areas, among others, are state decisions, although HHS may offer 

recommendations and technical assistance to states as they make these decisions: 

• Whether to form the exchange as a governmental agency or a nonprofit entity. 

• Whether to form regional exchanges or establish interstate coordination for 

certain functions . 

• Whether to require additional benefits in the exchange beyond the essential 

health benefits (mandates). 

• Whether to establish a competitive bidding process for plans. 

• Whether to extend some or all exchange-specific regulations to the outside 

insurance market beyond what is required in PPACA. 

• What additional types of services the exchange might provide to individuals and 

business to ensure simple and fast service. 

If you believe that it would be better for the state to run its own exchange, certain things 

have to be accomplished by deadlines set out in PPACA. As I already noted, states 

must be on track for achieving certification of their exchange by January 1, 2013, or the 

federal government will run the exchange. And the exchange must be operating no 

later than January 1, 2014. Establishment of an exchange requires a planning process 
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to create an exchange that will meet all the requirements of PPACA. Anyone who is 

even somewhat familiar with a complex information technology (IT) project can 

recognize how short this timeframe is, especially given that most of the functionality 

required does not exist in North Dakota's state government or in any other entity 

currently operating in our state. 

This bill would require the Commissioner to plan and implement the exchange for the 

state. The bill would ensure that the exchange facilitates the purchase of qualified 

health benefit plans, provides for the establishment of a small business health options 

program, and meets the exchange requirements of PPACA generally. 

What Does the Commissioner Do if the State Runs the Exchange? 

In order to plan and implement a North Dakota exchange, the bill assigns the following 

duties to the Commissioner: 

• To take actions necessary to ensure that the exchange is determined, not later 

than January 1, 2013, by the federal government to be ready to operate not later 

than January 1, 2014. 

• To consider whether to seek federal grant funds for the planning and 

implementation of the exchange. 

• To determine whether to establish one exchange that will provide services to 

both qualified individuals and qualified small employers or to have two separate 

exchanges. 

• To contract with outside entities, if necessary, to provide services to implement 

the exchange .. 

• To adopt rules, if necessary or desirable, to carry out the provisions of the bill. 
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Exchanges will require complex and particular IT systems and other business 

operations to perform the functions required. Since the exchange will have to work with 

other state and federal agencies, for example, to fulfill its duty to determine tax credits 

and enroll eligible individuals in Medicaid and CHIP, the bill requires state agencies to 

cooperate with the Commissioner to ensure the success of the exchange. At this time, 

the IT systems of the agencies likely to be involved in the exchange do not have the 

ability to communicate and exchange data with each other. 

Because exchanges are also required to report certain information to other entities such 

as the United States Secretary of the Treasury, the bill allows the Commissioner to 

receive from, and provide to, federal and state agencies confidential information 

gathered in the administration of the exchange including Social Security numbers if the 

disclosure is necessary for the Commissioner or receiving entity to perform its duties 

and responsibilities . 

What Resources Are Needed For an Exchange? 

The bill also provides that the Commissioner may seek Emergency Commission and 

Budget Section approval for authority to spend any general funds, special funds or 

federal funds available under PPACA. The federal government will provide grants for 

exchange planning and development. 

Forty-eight states and the District of Columbia were awarded their first exchange 

planning grants in September 2010. Those grants were for planning purposes and the 

next round of grants will be for the purpose of establishing an exchange. The 

opportunity to apply for grants will be announced in February 2011 and will become 

available on a rolling basis throughout the next three years. States will have to meet 

certain milestones in order to be awarded grants in 2011, and the size of state awards 

may be related to the number of milestones met. Necessary exchange planning and 

establishment costs will be funded by HHS until 2015. After January 1, 2015, 
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exchanges must be self-funded. North Dakota was approved to receive $1,000,000 in 

the first round of exchange grants; however, the Emergency Commission tabled the 

request to utilize these funds. These funds could be important right now given the 

challenging infrastructure requirements needed to develop an exchange. They can be 

used to analyze options, define requirements, and estimate the probable cost to 

implement an electronic system to operate the state's exchange. Future grant funds will 

be available to pay for the cost of building the system that will operate the exchange. 

In addition to the staffing and information technology infrastructure needs, the state will 

need resources to help it identify and address many issues and to make informed 

decisions along the way, including: 

1. Unified exchange. A state has to provide an exchange that facilitates 

individuals' purchase of health insurance and an exchange that serves 

small businesses. The state may choose to operate them separately or 

both in one exchange as long as it serves both functions . 

2. Regional exchange. States may form a regional exchange with other 

states or allow more than one exchange to operate in the state as long as 

each exchange serves a distinct geographic region. 

3. Stakeholders. PPACA requires states to consult with stakeholders in 

implementation of the exchange. Stakeholders must include health care 

consumers who enroll in qualified health plans, individuals and entities 

experienced in facilitating enrollment in qualified health plans, 

representatives of small businesses and self-employed individuals, state 

Medicaid offices, and advocates for enrolling hard to reach populations. In 

planning for this legislative session, the Insurance Department has already 

begun stakeholder conversations. I can assure you that the exchange is a 

focus for many of these individuals and groups . 
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4. Funding. How will the state ensure that the exchange is self-sustaining 

as of January 1, 2015? Exchanges are allowed to charge assessments or 

user fees to participating insurance issuers or to otherwise generate 

funding in order to support its operations. 

5. Outside market. Will insurers be allowed to sell health plans outside the 

exchange? And if an external market remains, will insurers be required to 

offer plans both in and out of the exchange? 

6. Large employers. Beginning in 2017, an exchange may allow 

businesses with more than 100 employees to purchase coverage in the 

exchange also. 

7. Mandates. Does the state want to require that plans offer benefits in 

addition to the essential health benefits package? If so, the state must 

assume the cost by making payments to individuals enrolled in a qualified 

health plan in the state or making payments directly to the qualified health 

plan on behalf of the individual. HHS has not yet determined how the 

essential health benefits package will be defined. 

8. Data reporting. Determination of the data that will be required to be 

reported, what persons will be allowed to access data, and how to ensure 

appropriate protection of data. 

9. Certification of plans. The exchange must implement procedures for the 

certification, recertification and decertification of health plans as qualified 

health plans. It is expected that this will require someone to analyze the 

health plans offered for sale through the exchange to ensure that they 

meet one of the required benefit categories: bronze plans which must 

cover 60% of benefit costs; silver plans which must cover 70% of benefit 

costs; gold plans which must cover 80% of benefit costs; platinum plans 
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which must cover 90% of benefit costs; and catastrophic plans, which are 

available only to those up to age 30, which must provide catastrophic 

coverage only. Someone must also ensure that the plans offered in the 

exchange meet certain benefit requirements, marketing requirements, 

have adequate provider networks, contract with essential community 

providers, contract with navigators to conduct outreach and enrollment 

assistance, be accredited with respect to performance on quality 

measures, and use a uniform enrollment form and standard format to 

present plan information. 

10. Hotline. The exchange must provide for the operation of a toll-free hotline 

to respond to assistance requests. 

11. 

12. 

Website. The exchange must maintain an internet website through which 

enrollees and prospective enrollees of qualified health plans may obtain 

standardized comparative information on health plans. 

Ratings. The exchange must assign a rating to each qualified health 

benefit plan offered through the exchange. 

13. Standardized format. The exchange must use a standardized format for 

presenting health benefits plan options in the exchange, including the use 

of the uniform outline of coverage. 

14. Other coverage. The exchange must inform individuals of Medicaid, 

CHIP, and other state or local public programs eligibility requirements and 

enroll eligible individuals in these programs. 

15 . Calculator. The exchange must provide an electronic calculator to 

determine the actual cost of coverage after the application of any premium 

tax credit and any cost-sharing reduction. 
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16. Individual responsibility certification. The exchange must grant a 

certification attesting that for purpose of the individual responsibility 

penalty (individual mandate) that an individual is exempt from the penalty 

because there is no affordable qualified health plan available through the 

exchange or the individual's employer, or the individual meets the 

requirement for any other exemption. 

17. Certification of penalty exemption. The exchange must transfer to the 

Secretary of the Treasury a list of individuals who are issued a certification 

of penalty exemption. 

18. 

19. 

Employer notice. The exchange must provide each employer with the 

name of each of its employees who ceases coverage under a qualified 

health plan during a plan year. 

Navigator program. The exchange must establish a Navigator program 

under which it awards grants to entities to carry out certain duties such as 

public education, facilitating enrollment in qualified health plans, and 

providing referrals to health insurance ombudsman or other appropriate 

agency for any enrollee with a grievance, complaint, or question regarding 

his health plan, coverage, or a determination under such plan or coverage. 

20. Producers. The exchange must determine the role insurance producers 

(agents) will play in the sale of health benefit plans in the exchange. 

The bill also contains an emergency clause so that it would become effective 

immediately upon its filing with the Secretary of State to allow work to start to address 

the many decisions that will have to be made and the work to begin to build an IT 

system that will be capable of performing all the required functions. 
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In closing, there are many decisions to be made about how the exchange will be run in 

North Dakota. There will be more decisions to be made as things are further defined or 

changed at the federal level. Several federal agencies are tasked with issuing 

regulations to implement the law and many of them have yet to be issued so various 

components remain undefined at this point. In addition, there is the prospect of 

Congress making changes to the law as well as the numerous legal challenges to the 

law that are making their way through the court system. For now, the law requires that 

there be an exchange implemented in North Dakota. The first decision is who will run it: 

the federal government or the state. Our stakeholders are telling us they prefer North 

Dakota run its own exchange and cite the numerous problems with other federal 

insurance programs as examples of how North Dakotans serve our own better. In fact, it 

is my Department that assists Medicare Part D prescription drug beneficiaries in 

comparing, choosing, and enrolling in Part D plans, as well as dealing with issues and 

complaints. This piece of legislation places similar responsibilities related to the 

exchange in this same agency. 

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to try to answer any questions the 

committee members may have. Thank you. 
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Testimony 
House Bill 1126 - Department of Human Services 

Senate Human Services Committee 
Senator Lee, Chairman 

March 16, 2011 

Chairman Lee, members of the Human Services Committee, I am Carol 

Olson, Executive Director of the Department of Human Services. I am 

here today to provide information to you regarding the relationship 

between an American Health Benefit Exchange and the programs within 

Department of Human Services. 

If it is the interest of this committee to pursue the establishment of an 

American Health Benefit Exchange for the state that will meet the 

requirements as currently outlined in the Patient Protection and 

Affordable Care Act of 2010, it will be important for this committee to 

consider the implications of: 

• Title I, Section 1311(d)(4)(F) requiring, at a minimum, for the 

Exchange to provide for eligibility determination and the enrollment 

of individuals in Medicaid and CHIP programs; and 

• Title II Role of Public Programs, Section 2201 which outlines more 

specifically the requirements of enrollment simplification and 

Medicaid and CHIP coordination with the State Health Insurance 

Exchange. 

The intent of these sections is to ensure that the American Health Benefit 

Exchange provides seamless eligibility and enrollment linkages between 

the exchange coverage options and public assistance programs. In order 

to achieve this level of interoperability with the Exchange, the Medicaid 

and CHIP eligibility systems will require significant modification . 

Initially Representative Keiser had introduced an amendment to HB 1126, 

which would have included an appropriation to fund these necessary 
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system changes. The amount included $15,555,543 from the general 

fund and $27,062,382 from federal funding sources. This incorporates a 

90/10 funding ratio for the Medicaid portion of the system changes. The 

total cost is $42,617,925. 

I would be happy to answer any questions you may have . 
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• TESTIMONY BEFORE SENATE HUMAN SERVICE COMMITTEE 
HB 1126 

MARCH 16, 2011 

Good morning, my name is Lisa Feldner and I serve as the Chief Information Officer for the 

Information Technology Department. On March 23, 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable 

Care Act (PPACA) became law requiring, among other things, that states establish a system of 

health benefit Exchanges. PPACA includes provisions to make it easy for individuals to enroll in 

coverage by requiring states to create a coordinated, simple, and technology-supported process 

through which individuals may obtain coverage through Medicaid, CHIP, and the new Exchanges. 

In my testimony today, I want to illustrate that providing what may be simple for enrollees on the 

front-end is all but simple on the back-end in the world of technology. In Figure 1, Step 1: The 

Application, you see the areas of information the individual needs to provide by entering it online 

into a web-based application. Step 2: Verification is where things start to get very involved. Based 

on the information provided by the individual, the system must then go out to multiple systems to 

verify the applicant's status. The Exchange must interface with the IRS, the Social Security 

Administration, and the systems for Medicaid, SNAP, TANF, and others. If verification cannot be 

made, the system must ask the applicant for more information and the process repeats. In Step 3: 

Eligibility, the verified information is routed to the Eligibility system to determine if the applicant is 

eligible for Medicaid or CHIP and if not, then eligible for subsidized coverage in the Exchange and 

at what level. The system will then notify the applicant of their eligibility determination or subsidy 

amount. In Step 4: Enrollment, the system must enroll qualifying individuals in either Medicaid or 

subsidized coverage and notify the employer of the enrollment. Step 5: Renewal and 

Reconciliation is a complex step as well. The system must retrieve updated information on the 

individual's status in order to renew or transition their coverage. The information is retrieved 

electronically from 3'' party sources such as employers, the IRS, Medicaid, vital records, etc. One 

important item on Figure 1 is the Key - bottom left. Notice the rectangular boxes throughout the 

diagram indicate technology system functions. The ovals indicate enrollee functions. There are 13 

rectangles and only 2 ovals, which is a good indicator of all the back-end processing required. 

Cost: There are only two states with functioning insurance exchanges: Massachusetts and Utah. 

Utah does not have all the functionality required by PPACA. It doesn't provide for all eligibility 

enrollments nor does it verify all source data electronically. It is operating in a pilot phase now. 

Massachusetts has a more robust exchange with a reported operating cost of $26.6 million in FY 

2009. We were able to gather estimates from only two states, Wisconsin and Oregon, on the cost 



to build an exchange. Wisconsin already has components in place that can be leveraged to build 

the exchange and is estimating the cost to be $49.6 million. Oregon estimates it will need $96 

million to build an exchange, and that is above and beyond the cost of upgrading their eligibility 

system. 

North Dakota must first update its existing Eligibility system in order to then implement a 

functional health benefits exchange. After analyzing Oregon's estimates, ITD analysts are 

estimating the cost for North Dakota's exchange would be in the $50 million range. 

Options: It is possible that the Federal government could initially build an exchange for the state 

and then turn it over to us to run. It is might also be possible to partner with another state. It is too 

early to have solutions. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

Page 2, replace lines 10-11 with "Due to the complexity and interdependence of technology systems 

required by the health benefit exchange, an advisory committee will be established consisting of the 

insurance commissioner or designee, the executive director of the department of human services or 

designee, the chief information officer or designee, the governor or designee, and two members of the 

legislature to ensure the coordination of the exchange." 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1516-1517 of the 
House Journal and pages 835-836 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill 
No. 1126 be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, after the first semicolon insert ''to provide reports to the legislative 
management;" 

Page 1, line 9, after "commissioner'' insert "and department of human services" 

Page 1, line 19, after "2." insert "Plan for the implementation of an American health 
benefit exchange for the state which at a minimum provides for eligibility 
determination and enrollment of individuals in the state's medical assistance 
program and the state's children's health insurance program; simplification; and 
medical assistance and children's health insurance program coordination with the 
state health insurance exchange in a manner that meets the requirements of the 
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [Pub. L. 111-1481 as amended by the 
Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (Pub. L. 111-1521. 

Page 2, line 1, replace "3." with "4." 

Page 2, line 4, replace "4." with "5." 

Page 2, after line 5, insert: 

6. Collaborate with the information technology department as 
necessary and appropriate in completing the responsibilities set 
forth in this section. 

Page 2, line 7, after "commissioner'' insert "and department of human services" 

Page 2, line 10, after "commissioner'' insert". the department of human services. and 
the information technology department" 

Page 2, line 13, after "the" insert "department of human services and" 

Page 2, line 16, after the second "the" insert "department of human services," 

Page 2, line 16, after "commissioner" insert an underscored comma 

Page 2, line 26, after "commissioner'' insert ", department of human services, and 
information technology department" 

Proposed ame.ndments to 11.8110.02000 
~ 



• Page 2, line 28, after "commissioner'' insert "and department of human services" 

Page 2, line 29, after "commissioner'' insert "or department of human services" 

Page 3, line 1, after "commissioner'' insert "or department of human services" 

Renumber accordingly 

Prepared at the request of Senator J. Lee 

• 
Proposed amendments to 11.8110.02000 



11.8110.02002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator J. Lee 

April 18, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to provide reports to the legislative management;" 

Page 1, line 9, after "commissioner" insert "and department of human services" 

Page 1, line 19, after "2." insert "Plan for the implementation of an American health benefit 
exchange for the state which at a minimum provides for eligibility determination and 
enrollment of individuals in the state's medical assistance program and the state's 
children's health insurance program: simplification: and medical assistance and 
children's health insurance program coordination with the state health insurance 
exchange in a manner that meets the requirements of the Patient Protection and 
Affordable Care Act (Pub. L. 111-148) as amended by the Health Care and Education 
Reconciliation Act of 2010 (Pub. L. 111-152). 

Page 2, line 1, replace "3." with "4." 

Page 2, line 4, replace "4." with "5." 

Page 2, after line 5, insert: 

"6. Collaborate with the information technology department as necessary and 
appropriate in completing the responsibilities set forth in this section." 

Page 2, line 7, after "commissioner" insert "and department of human services" 

Page 2, line 10, after "commissioner" insert ". the department of human services. and the 
information technology department" 

Page 2, line 13, after "the" insert "department of human services and" 

Page 2, line 16, after the second "the" insert "department of human services." 

Page 2, line 16, after "commissioner" insert an underscored comma 

Page 2, line 26, after "commissioner" insert ", department of human services, and information 
technology department" 

Page 2, line 28, after "commissioner" insert "and department of human services" 

Page 2, line 29, after "commissioner" insert "or department of human services" 

Page 3, line 1, after "commissioner" insert "or department of human services" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 11.8110.02002 



11.8110.02005 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Keiser 

April 19, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1516 and 1517 of the House 
Journal and pages 835 and 836 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1126 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, replace "a health" with "an American" 

Page 1, line 2, after the first semicolon insert "to provide reports to the legislative 
management;" 

Page 1, line 9, after "commissioner" insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 1, line 11, replace the underscored comma with an underscored semicolon 

Page 1, line 14, replace the underscored comma with "; implements eligibility determination 
and enrollment of individuals in the state's medical assistance program and the state's 
children's health insurance program; provides simplification; provides coordination 
between medical. assistance, the children's health insurance program, and the state 
health insurance exchange;" 

Page 1, line 17, replace "commissioner" with "legislative assembly" 

Page 2, line 3, remove "and" 

Page 2, line 5, replace the underscored period with "; and 

5. Collaborate with the information technology department as necessary and 
appropriate in completing the responsibilities set forth in this section." 

Page 2, line 7, after "commissioner" insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 2, line 10, after "commissioner" insert", the department of human services, and the 
information technology department" 

Page 2, line 14, after "designee" insert "and the department of human services" 

Page 2, line 16, after "commissioner" insert ", the department of human services," 

Page 2, line 26, after "commissioner'' insert ", the department of human services, and the 
information technology department" 

Page 2, line 28, after "commissioner'' insert ", with the department of human services and the 
information technology department," 

Page 2, line 29, replace "commissioner" with "state" 

Page 3, line 1, after "commissioner" insert", with the department of human services and the 
information technology department," 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 11.8110.02005 
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Health insurance 
consumer assistance 
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Preservation of right to 
maintain existing 
coverage 

$250 Medicare Part D 
rebate 

Temporary high-risk pool 
program 

2010 
What law will do 
States may establish and operate offices of health insurance 
consumer assistance or health insurance ombudsman 
programs to: 

• Assist with the filing of complaints and appeals 
• Collect, track and quantify problems and inquiries 
• Educate consumers on their rights and 

responsibilities 
• Assist consumers with enrollment in plans 
• Resolve problems with obtaining subsidies 

States may be required to collect and report data of all the 
t es of roblems and in uiries encountered b consumers.

1 

The following provisions will apply to grandfathered plans: 
• Excessive waiting periods 
• Lifetime limits only 
• Rescissions 
• Extension of dependent coverage 
• Uniform summary of benefits and coverage and 

standardized definitions 
• Medical loss ratios 1 

A $250 rebate will be available to seniors reaching the 
Medicare Part D donut hole. 1 

The Secretary of Health and Human Services (HHS) is 
required to establish a temporary high-risk health insurance 
pool program to provide coverage to individuals with 
preexisting conditions who have been without coverage for at 
least six months. 
Pools must: 

• Have no preexisting condition exclusions 
• Cover at least 65% of total allowed costs 
• Have an out-of-pocket limit no greater than the limit 

for high deductible health plans ($5,950 for 
individuals and $11,900 for families) 

• Utilize adjusted community rating with maximum 
variation for age of 4: I 

• Have premiums established at a standard rate for a 
standard population 

The state's current high risk pool, the Comprehensive Health 
Association of North Dakota (CHAND), does not meet the 

• I 
requirements. 

Effective date 
Effective as of date of 
enactment (3/23/20 I 0) 

Effective as of date of 
enactment (3/23/20 I 0) 

June2010 

Effective 90 days after 
enactment (June 23, 
2010) 
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'llporary reinsurance 
ham for early retirees 

Web portal to identify 
affordable coverage 
o tions 
Annual and lifetime limits 

Preexisting condition 
exclusions 

Rescissions 

Coverage of preventative 
health services 

Extension of adult 
dependent coverage 

Provision of additional 
information 

What law will do 
The Secretary of HHS shall establish a temporary reinsurance 
program to reimburse employment-based plans for 80% of 
costs incurred by early retirees age 55 and over but not 
eligible for Medicare between $15,000 and $90,000 
annuall .1 

The Secretary of HHS shall establish a mechanism, including 
a website through which individuals and small businesses 
ma identif affordable health insurance covera e. 1 

Plans may not establish lifetime limits on the dollar value of 
essential benefits. Plans may only establish restricted limits 

rior to Jan. I, 2014 on essential benefits. 1 

A plan may not impose any preexisting condition exclusions
effective six months after enactment for under age 19. 1 

Insurers cannot rescind coverage after a sickness. Coverage 
may be rescinded only for fraud or intentional 
misre resentation of material fact.' 
Plans must provide coverage without cost-sharing for: 

• Services recommended by the U.S. Preventive 
Services Task Force 

• Immunizations recommended by the Advisory 
Committee on enactment Immunization Practices of 
the Centers for Disease Control 

• Preventive care and screenings for infants, children 
and adolescents supported by the Health Resources 
and Services Administration 

• Preventive care and screenings for women supported 
by the Health Resources and Services Administration 

Current recommendations from the US Preventive Services 
Task force for breast cancer screenings will not be 
considered. 1 

Effective date 
Effective 90 days after 
enactment (June 23, 
2010) 

07/01/2010 

09/23/2010 

Effective Sept. 23, 20 IO 
for individuals 19 and 
under. Effective Jan. I, 
2014 for all others. 
09/23/2010 

09/23/2010 

Plans that provide dependent coverage must extend coverage 09/23/20 l 0 
to adult children up to age 26. 1 

All plans must submit to the Secretary of Health and Human 09/23/2010 
Services (HHS)and state insurance commissioners and make 
available to the public the following information in plain 
language: 

• Claims payment policies and practices 
• Periodic financial disclosures 
• Data on enrollment 
• Data on disenrollment 
• Data on the number of claims that are denied 
• Data on rating practices 
• Information on cost-sharing and payments with 

respect to out-of-network coverage1 

20 l O ( continued) 
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ssue 
l\ppeals process 

Patient protections 

Ensuring that consumers 
get value for their dollars 

Small business tax credit 

What law will do 
Internal claims appeal process: 

• Group plans must incorporate the Department of 
Labor's claims and appeals procedures and update 
them to reflect standards established by the Secretary 
of Labor. 

• Individual plans must incorporate applicable law 
requirements and update them to reflect standards 
established by the Secretary of HHS. 

External review: 

• All plans must comply with applicable state external 
review processes that, at a minimum, include 
consumer protections in the NAIC Uniform External 
Review Model Act (Model 76) with minimum 
standards established by the Secretary of HHS that is 
similar to the NAIC model. 1 

A plan that provides for designation of a primary care 
provider must allow the choice of any participating primary 
care provider who is available to accept them, including 
pediatricians. 

If a plan provides coverage for emergency services, the plan 
must do so without prior authorization, regardless of whether 
the provider is a participating provider. 

A plan may not require authorization or referral for a female 
patient to receive obstetric or gynecological care from a 

art1c1 atin rovider. 1 

The Secretary of HHS, in conjunction with the states, shall 
develop a process for the annual review of unreasonable 
premium increases for health insurance coverage. The 
process shall require insurers to submit to the State and the 
Secretary a justification for an unreasonable premium 
increase and post it online. 

The Secretary shall award $250 million in grants to states 
over a 5-year period to assist rate review activities, including 
reviewing rates, providing information and recommendations 
to the Secretary, and establishing Medical Reimbursement 
Data Centers to develop database tools that fairly and 
accurately reflect market rates for medical services. Amounts 
of grants to states are to be determined by the Secretary. 

Available to small businesses offering coverage to 
employees' 

20 IO ( continued) 

Effective date 
09/23/2010 

09/23/2010 

Effective 20 IO plan year 

Tax credits ofup to 35 
percent of the cost of 
premiums will be 
available in 2010 and w. 
reach 50 ercent in 20 I 4. 
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-) 2011 
Issue What law will do Effective date 
Loss ratio Medical loss ratios of 80 and 85 percent, respectively, are 01/01/2011 

required for individual/small group and large group plans. 
Loss ratio is the fraction of revenue from a p1an's premiums 
that eoes to oav for medical services.2 

Bringing down the cost of Carriers must report to the Secretary of HHS the ratio of 01/01/2011 
health care incurred losses (incurred claims) plus loss adjustment 

expense ( change in contract reserves) to earned premiums. 
Insurers must provide a rebate to consumers if the percentage 
of premiums expended for clinical services and activities that 
improve health care quality is less than 85% in the large 
group market and 80% in the small group and individual 
markets. All hospitals must establish and make public a list 
of its standard charges for items and services, including for 
diaQllosis-related <>Toups.' 

Long-term care A voluntary long-term care program will begin, financed 
throueh oavroll deductions.2 

01/01/2011 

Study of large group The Secretary of HHS shall conduct a study of self-insured Due no later than one 
·•rket and fully-insured plans to compare the characteristics of year alter enactment 

employers, plan benefits, plan reserves and solvency and (3/23/2011) 
determine the extent to which the bill's market reforms will 
cause adverse selection in the large group market and prompt 
small and mid-size emolovers to self insure. 1 

GAO study regarding the The GAO shall conduct a study of the incidence of denials of One year after enactment 
rate of denial of coverage coverage for medical services and denials of application to (3/23/20 I I) 
and enrollment by health enroll in health insurance plans by group health plans and 
insurance and group health insurance issuers.' 
health plans 

• 



• 
Issue 
Ensuring quality of care 

Uniform explanation of 
coverage documents and 
standardized definitions 

Issue 
Health benefit exchange 

Administrative 
simplification 
requirements 

Employer requirement to 
inform employees of 
coverage option 

2012 
What law will do 
Plans must submit annual reports to the Secretary of HHS on 
whether the benefits under the plan: 

• Improve health outcomes through activities such as 
quality reporting, case management, care 
coordination, chronic disease management 

• Implement activities to prevent hospital readmission 
• Implement activities to improve patient safety and 

reduce medical errors · · 

Implement wellness and health promotion activities1 

The Secretary must develop standards for a summary of 
benefits and coverage explanation to be provided to all 
potential policyholders and enrollees. 1 

2013 
What law will do 
The Secretary of HHS must determine by Jan. I, 2013 
whether states intend to operate qualified exchanges. 

The Secretary of HHS will develop operating rules for the 
electronic exchange of health information, transaction 
standards for electronic funds transfers and requirements for 
financial and administrative transactions. 1 

Employers must provide employees with written notice at the 
time of hiring informing them of the existence of the 
Exchange and the availability of subsidies through the 
Exchange if the plan covers less than 60% of the cost of 
covered benefits. 1 

Effective date 
2 years after enactment 
(3/23/2012) 

Standards must be 
developed by March 
2011; implementation by 
March 2012 

Effective date 
01/01/2013 

Rules adopted by July I, 
2011 to become effective 
by January 1, 2013 

03/01/2013 

6 

-



• 
Issue 
Health benefit exchange 

Free choice vouchers 

Preexisting condition 
exclusions 

Requirement to maintain 
minimum essential 
coverage 

2014 
What law will do 
The Secretary of HHS must detennine by Jan. l, 2013 
whether state_s intend to operate qualified exchanges. If a 
state does not create a qualified exchange, the Secretary must 
create one. There must be two exchanges: a non-group 
market exchange and an exchange for small businesses. 
States may choose to operate only one exchange serving both 
groups. 

Some functions to be performed by an exchange include: 
• Certify qualified plans to be sold in the exchange 
• Maintain a website 
• Provide for initial, annual and special open 

enrollment periods 
• Maintain a toll-free number 
• Create a rating system for plans and perform 

satisfaction survey 
• Provide a calculator to determine enrollee premiums 

and subsidies 
• Identify those individuals exempt from the individual 

mandate and notify treasury 
• Require participating plans to provide justification 

for rate increases 1 

Effective date 
State exchanges must be 
operational by Jan. l, 
2014. 

Employers must provide a voucher in the amount of the 0l/01/2014 
employer's contribution towards the group health plan to 
each employee whose household income is below 400% FPL 
if the employees' cost of coverage under the group health 
plan is between 8% and 9.8% of household income and the 
employee does not enroll in the employer's group health 
plan. Employees may use these vouchers to purchase 
coverage through the Exchange.' 

A plan may not impose any preexisting condition exclusions 0 I /0l/2014 
. . 1 

on anyone. 

U.S. citizens and legal residents are required to have 0 I /01/2014 
qualifying health coverage. Those without coverage pay a tax 
penalty of the greater of $695 per year up to a maximum of 
three times that amount ($2,085) per family or 2.5% of 
household income. The penalty will be phased-in according 
to the following schedule: $95 in 2014, $325 in 2015, and 
$695 in 2016 for the flat fee or 1.0% of taxable income in 
2014, 2.0% of taxable income in 2015, and 2.5% of taxable 
income in 2016. 
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Issue 
Guaranteed issue aud 
reuewability in all 
markets 

Employers must offer 
coverage 

Guaranteed availability of 
coverage 

rohibiting discrimination 
against individual 
participants and 
beneficiaries based on 
health status 

Non-discrimination iu 
health care 

Comprehensive health 
insurance coverage 

Prohibition on excessive 
waitin eriods 
Coverage for individuals 
participating in approved 
clinical trials 

Rating reforms must 
apply uniformly to all 
health insurance issuers 

Beginning after 2016, the penalty will be increased annually 
by the cost-of-Jiving adjustment. Exemptions will be granted 
for financial hardship, religious objections, American 
Indians, those without coverage for Jess than three months, 
undocumented immigrants, incarcerated individuals, those 
for whom the lowest cost plan option exceeds 8% of an 
individual's income, and those with incomes below the tax 
filing threshold (in 2009 the threshold for taxpayers under 
a e65was$9,350forsin lesand$18,700forcou Jes .3 

What law will do 
The Jaw requires guaranteed issue and renewability and 
allows rating variation based only on age (limited to 3 to l 
ratio), premium rating area, family composition and tobacco 
use (limited to 1.5. to I ratio) in the individual and the small 

ou market and the exchan es.3 

Imposes a mandate on employers with 50+ workers: offer 
coverage by 2014 or pay $2,000/full time worker ( excluding 
the first 30); if offer unaffordable coverage, pay 
$3,000/employee receiving taxpayer assistance to buy it or a 
total of $2,000/employee, whichever is more. Employers or 
50 or fewer workers are exem I. 

2 

Insurers must accept every employer and every individual 
that applies for coverage except that: an insurer may restrict 
enrollment based upon open or special enrollment periods. 1 

A plan may not establish rules for eligibility based on any of 
the following health status-related factors: health status, 
medical condition, claims experience, receipt of health care, 
medical history, generic information, evidi;nce of insurability 
(including conditions arising out of domestic violence), 
disability, any other health-status related factor deemed 
appropriate by the Secretary. 1 

Plans may not discriminate against any provider operating 
within their scope or practice. Does not require that a plan 
contract with any willing provider or prevent tiered 
networks. 1 

All plans must include the essential benefits package required 
of plans sold in the Exchanges and must comply with 
limitations on annual cost-sharing for plans sold in the 
Exchan es. 1 

Group health plans and group health insurance may not 
im ose waitin eriods that exceed 90 da s. 1 

A plan may not deny an individual participation in an 
approved clinical trial for cancer or a life-threatening disease 
or condition, may not deny or limit the coverage of routine 
patient costs for items and services provided in connection 
with the trial, and may not discriminate agairist participants in 
a clinical trial. 1 

Any standard or requirement adopted by a State must be 
applied uniformly to all health plans in each market to which 
the standards or requirements apply.' 

2014 ( continued) 

Effective date 
Plan years beginning 
0l/0l/2014 

01/01/2014 

Plan years beginning 
01/01/2014 

Plan years beginning 
01/01/2014 

Plan years beginning 
01/01/2014 

Plan years beginning 
0l/0l/2014 

Plan years beginning 
01/01/2014 
Plan years begirming 
0l/0l/2014 

Plan years beginning 
0l/01/2014 
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• 
Issue 
Provisions relating to 
offering of plans in more 
than one state 

,e 
,,taiver for State 
Innovation 

2016 
What law will do 
Two or more states may enter into a "health care choice 
compact" under which individual market plans could be 
offered in all compacting states, subject to the laws and 
regulations of the state where it was written or issued. Plans 
must be licensed in each state in which they sell coverage or 
must submit to the jurisdiction of the states with regard to the 
above laws. 1 

2017 
What law will do 
A state may apply for waivers of the following requirements: 

• Requirements for Qualified Health Benefits Plans 
• Requirements for Health Insurance Exchanges 
• Requirements for reduced cost-sharing in qualified 

health benefits plans 
• Requirements for premium subsidies 
• Requirements for the employer mandate 
• Requirements for the individuals mandate 

The state will receive funds for implementing the waiver 
equal to any subsidies or tax credits for which residents 
would otherwise receive if the state had not received a 

• I 
waiver. 

Effective date 
01/01/2016 

Effective date 
Plan years beginning 
01/01/2017 
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• 2018 
Issue What law will do 
Tax on "Cadillac" plans Imposes new taxes on so-called "Cadillac" health insurance 

policies;' 40% tax on health insurance plans worth more than 
$27,500 for a family plan, $10,200 for an individual plan 
(family coverage now averaQeS $13,375\ 3 

Sources: 
1 National Association of Insurance Commissioners 
2 National Conference oflnsurance Legislators 
3 Kaiser Health News 

• 

• 

10 

Effective date 
01/01/2018 
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Appeals process ~!! [,•i~ll 1001 9/23110 

tient protections ~.!.,:·~ I ' ':!.'<•,t-r~ 1001 9123/10 

Consumer assistance offices/ombudsmen 1002 3123/10 
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Preexisting condition exclusion for all ~ ;i,;,j(i;;;r J it,;i !~A1 ft,' '1i\~;fl 1201 111114 

Fair health insurance premiums* ~iQ'.] f'il'!''' '~~ ~:_,, ,' \'r'/·' PHSA 2701 111114 

Guaranteed availability of coverage* E~:~~~J I' i'~r 't PHSA 2702 Ill 114 
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Guaranteed renewability of coverage• b'•cleli, .,'lliil :~-~-i·::.u :- !~ii:l1j/~'~ PHSA 2703 111114 

Prohibit discrimination/health status l~':i ~f;i Jil PHSA2705 111114 

Non-discrimination in health care ,~ ~~ PHSA 2706 1/1/14 
' 

Comprehensive health ins coverage ,~~1)'~ r•:i~', 7ill l ., l<..,J. ~ "-' PHSA 2707 111114 

Prohibit excessive waiting periods !•:::'.. ·'~l I "'?'~I , -A~· •·~ PHSA2708 IIJ/14 

Coverage/individuals in clinical trials Vie:' •!P,j h ;· 7r'"l PHSA 2709 111114 
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Preserve right to maintain existing cvrg ,] !•,>;,;g:,1Ji;I •. ,., ~ ah [i'J!§::~13 lli!liil 1251 3123110 

~ Essential health benefits requirements [lij!~aii&~ fr;~~hi\Qim 1302 111114 
' 

",t:d program to establish nonprofit issuers Co-op plans 1322 71111 J 

eve! playing field 1324 Ill/I 4 

i State flexibility to establish programs for LI 1331 
people not eligible for Medicaid 

* Applies to only fully insured plans 



,:Rro\!i'siori 
<:,~:-::• .. '. ~f . -~~:. , ,: '_ic~"::li.t!' } d, 

Waiver for state innovation 1332 1/1/ 17 

1333 l/l / 16 Offering plans in more than I state 
,1-----------------+---+---+---+----1-----+----1 

1334 1/1/14 
~ Multi-state plans 

:l Transitional reinsurance program/indvl All plans must pay assessments 1341 '14-' 16 

, Establish risk corridors/indvl and small Qualified health plans 1342 '14-'16 

~ Risk adjustment f', small: F. < . j 1343 1/1/14 

Refundable tax credit/premium assistance· Individuals 100-400% FPL 
1,1-----------------+----------------+-----+------l 

Individuals 100-400% FPL Reduced cost-sharing 

iii Procedures/determine eligible Exchange 1411 

il Advance determination/tax credits 1412 

1413 ' Streamline procedures/enrollment 
',1-----------------+-----'-----'-----'-----1-----+----l 

Credit for employee ins/small businesses Businesses with 25 or fewer employees 

·, Required to maintain minimum coverage 

' Auto enroll/employees of large employer Employers with 200+ full time emp 

Employer required to inform/coverage Subject to Fair Labor Standards Act 
i11------------+------------+-----+---I 
, Shared responsibility for employers Employers with more than 50 workers 
.111----------------+---------------+-----l------l 

GAO study 

· Free choice vouchers 

- This chart is composed of information provided from the NAIC's Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2009 Section-by-Sec
tion Analysis chart, Updated: 8/09/20 I 0, posted at: http://naic.org/documents/indcx_hea\th _reform_general_ppaca_section_by _scc

tion_chart.pdf 

* Applies to only fully insured plans 2 
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''f · What references are on display? 

The following reference has been 
placed on display in the Division of 
Dockets Management (HF A-305), Food 
and Drug Administration, 5630 Fishers 
Lane, Rm. 1061, Rockville, MD 20852, 
and may be seen by interested persons 
between 9 a.m. and 4 p.m., Monday 
through Friday. 

1. Petition from Spiracur, Inc., 
November 3, 2008, 

List of Subjects in 21 CFR Part 878 

Medical devices. 

■ Therefore, under the Federal Food, 
Drug, and Cosmetic Act and under 
authority delegated to_the Commissioner 
of Food and Drugs, 21 CFR part 878 is 
amended as foJlnws: 

PART 878-GENERAL AND PLASTIC 
SURGERY DEVICES 

■ 1. The authority citation for 21 CFR 
part 878 continues to read as follows: 

Authority: 21 U.S.C. 351,360, 360c, 360e, 
360j, 3601, 371. 

, 2. Section 878.4683 is added to 
Ubpart E to read as follows: 

§ 878.4683 Non-Powered suction 
apparatus device Intended for negative 
pressure wound therapy. 

(a) Identification. A non-powered 
suction apparatus device intended for 
negative pressure wound therapy is a 
device that is indicated for wound 
management via application of negative 
pressure to the wound for removal of 
fluids, including wound exudate, 
irrigation fluids, and infectious 
materials. It is further indicated for 
management of wounds, burns, flaps, 
and grafts. 

(b) Classification. Class II (special 
controls}. The special control for this 
device is FDA 's "Class II Special 
Controls Guidance Document: Non
powered Suction Apparatus Device 
Intended for Negative Pressure Wound 
Therapy (NPWT)." See§ 878. l(e) for the 
availability of this guidance document. 

Dated: November 10, 2010. 

Nancy K. Stade, 
Deputy Director for Policy, Center for Devices 

-

and Radiological Health. 
~R Doc. 2010-28873 Filed 11-16-10; 8:45 am] 

.fLLING CODE 4160-01-P 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Internal Revenue Service 

26 CFR Part 54 

[TD 9506) 

RIN 1545-BJ91 

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

Employee Benefits Security 
Administration 

29 CFR Part 2590 

RIN 121 O-AB42 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND 
HUMAN SERVICES 

Office of Consumer Information and 
Insurance Oversight 

45 CFR Part 147 

RIN 0950-AA17 

[OCII0-9991-IFC2) 

Amendment to the Interim Final Rules 
for Group Health Plans and Health 
Insurance Coverage Relating to Status 
as a Grandfathered Health Plan Under 
the Patient Protection and Affordable 
Care Act 

AGENCY: Internal Revenue Service, 
Department of the Treasury; Employee 
Benefits Security Administration, 
Department of Labor; Office of 
Consumer Information and Insurance 
Oversight, Department of Health and 
Human Services. 
ACTION: Amendment to interim final 
rules with request for comments. 

SUMMARY: This document contains an 
amendment to interim final regulations 
implementing the rules for group health 
plans and health insurance coverage in 
the group and individual markets under 
provisions of the Patient Protection and 
Affordable Care Act regarding status as 
a grandfathered health plan; the 
amendment permits certain changes in 
policies, certificates, or contracts of 
insurance without loss of grandfathered 
status. 
DATES: Effective Date, This amendment 
to the interim final regulations is 
effective on November 15, 2010. 

Comment Date. Comments are due on 
or before December 17, 2010. 
ADDRESSES: Written comments may be 
submitted to any of the addresses 
specified below. Any comment that is 
submitted to any Department will be 
5hared with the other Depmtrnonts. 
Please do nnt submit duplicatns. 

All comments will be made available 
to the public. Warning; Do not include 
any personally identifiable information 
(such as name, address, or other contact 
information) or confidential business 
information that you do not want 
publicly disclosed. All comments may 
be posted on the Internet and can be 
retrieved by most Internet search 
engines. Comments may be submitted 
anonymously. 

Department of Labor. Comments to 
the Department of Labor, identified by 
RIN 1210-AB42, by one of the following 
methods: 

• Federal eRulemaking Portal: http:// 
www.regulations.gov. Follow the 
instructions for submitting comments. 

• E-mail: E
OHPSCA1251amend.EBSA@dol.gov. 

• Mail or Hand Delivery: Office of 
Health Plan Standards and Compliance 
Assistance, Employee Benefits Security 
Administration, Room N-5653, U.S. 
Department of Labor, 200 Constitution 
Avenue NW., Washington, DC 20210, 
Attention: RIN 1210-AB42. 

Comments received by the 
Department of Labor will be posted 
without change to http:! I 
www.regulations.gov and http:// 
www.dol.gov/ebsa, and available for 
public inspection at the Public 
Disclosure Room, N-1513, Employee 
Benefits Security Administration, 200 
Constitution Avenue, NW., Washington, 
DC 20210. 

Department of Health and Human 
Services. In commenting, please refer to 
file code OC!IO-9991-IFC2. Because of 
staff and resource limitations, we cannot 
accept comments by facsimile (FAX) 
transmission. 

You may submit comments in one of 
four ways (please choose only one of the 
ways listed}: 

• Electronically. You may submit 
electronic comments on this regulation 
to http://www.regulations.gov. Follow 
the instructions under the "More Search 
Options" tab. 

• By regular mail. You may mail 
written comments to the following 
address ONLY: Office of Consumer 
Information and Insurance Oversight, 
Department of Health and Human 
Services, Attention: OCIIO-9991-IFC2, 
Room 445-G, Hubert H. Humphrey 
Building, 200 Independence Avenue, 
SW .. Washington, DC 20201. 

Please allow sufficient time for mailed 
comments to be received before the 
close of the comment period. 

• By express or overnight mail. You 
may send written comments to the 
following address only: Office of 
Consumer Information and Insurance 
Oversight, Department of Hr~alth and 
Human Services, Attention: OCIIO-
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9991-IFC2, Room 445-C, Hubert H. 
Humphrey Building, 200 Independence 
Avenue, SW., Washington, DC 20201. 

• By hand or courier. If you prefer, 
you may deliver (by hand or courier) 
your written comments before the close 
of the comment period to the following 
address: Office of Consumer Information 
and Insurance Oversight, Department of 
Health and Human Services, Attention: 
OCII0-9991-'.JFC2, Room 445-C, Hubert 
H. Humphrey Building, 200 
Independence Avenue, SW., 
Washington, DC 20201. 
(Because access to the interior of the 
Hubert H. Humphrey Building is not 
readily available to persons without 
Federal government identification, 
commenters are encouraged to leave 
their comments in the OCIIO drop slots 
located in the main lobby of the 
building. A stamp~in clock is available 
for persons wishing to retain a proof of 
filing by stamping in and retaining an 
extra copy of the comments being filed.) 

Comments mailed to the address 
indicated as appropriate for hand or 
courier delivery may be delayed and 
received after the comment period. 

Comments received timely will also 
be available for public inspection as 
they are received, generally beginning 
approximately three weeks after 
publication of a document, at the 
headquarters of the Centers for Medicare 
& Medicaid Services, 7500 Security 
Boulevard, Baltimore, Maryland 21244, 
Monday through Friday of each week 
from 8:30 a.m. to 4 p.m. EST. To 
schedule an appointment to view public 
comments, phone 1-800-743-3951. 

Internal Revenue Service. Comments 
to the IRS, identified by REG-118412-
10, by one of the following methods: 

• Federal eRulemaking Portal: http:// 
www.regulations.gov. Follow the 
instruction_s for submitting comments. 

• Mail:CC:PA:LPD:PR (REG-118412-
10), room 5205, Internal Revenue 
Service, P.O. Box 7604, Ben Franklin 
Station, Washington, DC 20044. 

• Hand or courier delivery: Monday 
through Friday between the hours of 8 
a.m. and 4 p.m. to: CC:PA:LPD:PR 
(REG-118412-10), Courier's Desk, 
Internal Revenue Service, 1111 
Constitution Avenue, NW., Washington, 
DC 20224. 

AIJ submissions to the IRS will be 
open to public inspection and copying 
in room 1621, 1111 Constitution 
Avenue, NW., Washington, DC from 9 
a.m. to 4 p.m. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Amy Turner or Beth Baum, Employee 
Benefits Security Administration, 
Department of Labor, at (202) 693-8335: 
Karen Levin, Internal Revenue Service, 

Department of the Treasury, at (202) 
622-6080; Lisa Campbell, Office of 
Consumer Information and Insurance 
Oversight, Department of Health and 
Human Services, at (301) 492-4100. 

Customer Service Information: 
Individuals interested in obtaining 
information from the Department of 
Labor concerning employment-based 
health coverage laws may call the EBSA 
Toll-Free Hotline at 1-866-444-EBSA 
(3272) or visit the Department of Labor's 
Web site (http://www.dol.gav/ebsa). In 
addition, information from HHS on 
private health insurance for consumers 
can be found on the Centers for 
Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) 
Web site (http://www.cms.hhs.gavl 
HealthlnsReJormforConsume/ 
0l_Overview.asp) and the Office of 
Consumer Information & Insurance 
Oversight (OCIIO) Web site (http:// 
www.hhs.gov/OCIIO). 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

I. Background 
The Patient Protection and Affordable 

Care Act (the Affordable Care Act), 
Public Law 111-148, was enacted on 
March 23, 2010; the Health Care and 
Education Reconciliation Act (the 
Reconciliation Act), Public Law 111-
152, was enacted on March 30, 2010. 
The Affordable Care Act and the 
Reconciliation Act reorganize, amend, 
and add to the provisions in part A of 
title XXVII of the Public Health Service 
Act (PHS Act) relating to group health 
plans and health insurance issuers in 
the group and individual markets. The 
term "group health plan" includes both 
insured and self-insured group health 
plans. 1 The Affordable Care Act adds 
section 715(a)(1) to the Employee 
Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) 
and section 9815[a)(1) to the Internal 
Revenue Code (the Code) to incorporate 
the provisions of part A of title XXVII 
of the PHS Act into ERISA and the 
Code, and make them applicable to 
group health plans, and health 
insurance issuers providing health 
insurance coverage in connection with 
group health plans. The PHS Act 
sections incorporated by this reference 
are sections 2701 through 2728. PHS 
Act sections 2701 through 2719A are 
substantially new, though they 
incorporate some provisions of prior 
law. PHS Act sections 2722 through 
2728 are sections of prior law 
renumbered, with some, mostly minor, 

1 The term "group health plan" is used in ti1!e 
XXVII of the PHS Act, part 7 of ERISA, imd chapter 
100 of the Code, and is distinct from the term 
"health plan," as used in other provisions of titl,i I 
of the Affordable Care Act. The term "health plan," 
as used in those provisions, does not include sdf
insured group health plans. 

changes. Section 1251 of the Affordabl 
Care Act, as modified by section 1010c 
of the Affordable Care Act and section 
2301 of the Reconciliation Act, specifies 
that certain plans or coverage existing as 
of the date of enactment [that is, 
grandfathered health plans) are subject 
to only certain provisions. 

The Departments of Health and 
Human Services, Labor, and the 
Treasury (the Departments) previously 
issued interim final regulations 
implementing section 1251 of the 
Affordable Care Act; these interim final 
regulations were published in the 
Federal Register on June 17, 201 O (75 
FR 34538). Additionally, on September 
20, 2010,2 October 8, 2010,3 October 12, 
2010,4 and October 28, 2010,5 the 
Departments issued subregulatory 
guidance on a number of issues 
pertaining to the implementation of the 
Affordable Care Act, including several 
clarifications relating to the interim 
final regulations on grandfathered 
health plans. 

Section 1251 of the Affordable Care 
Act, as modified by section 10103 of the 
Affordable Care Act and section 2301 of 
the Reconciliation Act, provides that 
certain plans or coverage existing as of 
March 23, 2010 (the date of enactment 
of the Affordable Care Act) are subject 
to only certain provisions of the 
Affordable Care Act. The statuto and the 
interim final regulations refer to these 
plans or health insurance coverage as 
grandfathered health plans. The statute 
and the interim final regulations 
provide that a group health plan or 
group or individual health insurance 
coverage is a grandfathered health plan 
with respect to individuals enrolled on 
March 23, 2010 regardless of whether an 
individual later renews the coverage. 
The interim final regulations specify 
certain changes to a plan or coverage 
that would cause it to no longer be a 
grandfathered health plan. 

In addition, the statute and the 
interim final regulations provide that a 
group health plan that provided 
coverage on·March 23, 2010 generally is 
also a grandfathered health plan with 

2 The subregulatory guidance took the form of 
"frequently asked questions" (FAQs). The 
September 20, 2010 FAQs are available at http:// 
www.dol.gov/ebsalfaqslfaq-aca.html and http:// 
www.h hs.govl ociiolreg u Jations/q u estions. ht ml. 

3 The Octobe"r 8, 2010 FAQs are available at 
h tip:/ I www. do] .gov I ebsa If aqsl fa q-aca2 .h tm J and 
htlp:llwww.hhs.gov/ociiolregulotions/ 
implementation Jaq.html, 

4 Thc October 12, 2010 FAQs are available al 
h ttp:llwww.rlol.gov/ebsa/faqslfoq-aca3 .html and 
h It p :I I www .h hs .gov I oc i io/reg u lo lion sl 
imp/eminitntion Jaq.htm/. 

~The October 28, 2010 FAQs are available at 
h Up:/ lwww.do/.gov/ebs(!/fuqsljaq-acn4 ./1 Im/ a ml 
http://www.l1hs.gov/ociiu/mg1i /atwnsl 
im plemcntnlion Jaq.ht ml. 
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. respect to new employees [whether 
) newly hired or newly enrolled) and 
· their families that enroll in the 

grandfathered health plan after March 
23, 2010. The interim final regulations 
clarify that, in such cases, any health 
insurance coverage provided under the 
group health plan in which an 
individual was enrolled on March 23, 
2010 is also a grandfathered health plan. 

Paragraph [g)[l) of the interim final 
regulations includes rules for 
determining when changes to the terms 
of a plan or health insurance coverage 
cause the plan or coverage to cease to 
be a grandfathered health plan. In 
addition to the changes descriOed in 
paragraph (g)(t) of the interim final 
regulations that cause a plan to cease to 
be a grandfathered health plan, 
paragraph (a)[t)(ii) of the interim final 
regulations provides that if an employer 
or employee organization enters into a 
new policy, certificate, or contract of 
insurance after March 23, 2010, the 
policy, certificate, or contract of 
insurance is not a grandfathered health 
plan with respect to individuals in the 
group health plan. For example, under 
the interim final regulations, if a group 
health plan changes issuers after March 
23, 2010, the group health plan ceases 

' to be a grandfathered health plan, even 
if the plan otherwise would be a 
grandfathered health plan under the 
standards set forth in paragraph (g)[l ). 6 

In contrast, under the interim final 
regulations, a change in third-party 
administrator (TP A) by a self-insured 
group health plan does not cause the 
plan to relinquish grandfather status, 
provided that the change of TP A does 
not result in any other change that 
would cause loss of grandfather status 
under paragraph (g)[l). 

II. Overview of Amendment to the 
Interim Final Regulations 

The Departments have received 
comments on paragraph (a)[J)[ii) of the 
interim final regulations, which 
provides that a group health plan will 
relinquish grandfather status if it 
changes issuers or policies. The 
comments expressed four principal 
concerns about this provision of the 
regulations. First, commenters raised 

r, In accordance with statutory provisions relating 
to collectively bargained group health plans, the 
interim final regulations include an exception for a 
group health plan governed by a collective 
bargaining agreement that w11s in effect on March 
23. 2010. In such a case, the grandfothererl group 
health plan is permitted to change issuers, or 
change from a self-insured plnn to an insured plan, 
or make a ch1mge described under paragrnph (g)("I) 
of the interim final regulations [which would 
otherwise end grandfather stiitus) and remain a 
grnndfatheied health plan for the rem,1inder oftht! 
duration of the collective hatgaining agreement 

the concern that this provision treats 
insured group health plans, which 
cannot change issuers or policies 
without ceasing to be a grandfathered 
health plan, differently from self
insured group health plans, which can 
change TP As without relinquishing 
grandfather status, as long as any other 
plan change [such as cost sharing or 
employer contributions) does not 
exceed the standards of paragraph [g)[t) 
of the interim final regulations. Second, 
commenters raised questions about 
circumstances in which a group health 
plan changes its issuer involuntarily (for 
example, the issuer withdraws from the 
market) yet the plan sponsor wants to 
maintain its grandfather status with a 
new issuer. Third, commenters noted 
that the provision would unnecessarily 
restrict the ability of issuers to reissue 
policies to current plan sponsors for 
administrative reasons unrelated to any 
change in the underlying terms of the 
health insurance coverage (for example, 
to transition the policy to a subsidiary 
of the original issuer or to consolidate 
a policy with its various riders or 
amendments) without loss of 
grandfather status. Finally, commenters 
expressed concern that the provision 
terminating grandfather status upon any 
change in issuer gives issuers undue 
and unfair leverage in negotiating the 
price of coverage renewals with the 
sponsors of grandfathered health plans, 
and that this interferes with the health 
care cost containment that tends to 
rnsult from price competition. 

The interim final regulations issued 
on June 17, 2010 were based on an 
interpretation of the language in section 
1251 of the Affordable Care Act 
providing that grandfather status is 
based on "coverage under a group health 
plan or health insurance coverage in 
which such individual was enrolled on 
the date of the enactment of the Act." In 
adopting the interim final regulations, 
the Departments did not consider a new 
insurance policy issued after March 23, 
2010 to be a grandfathered health plan 
(except for the special rule for a group 
health plan maintained pursuant to a 
collective bargaining agreement} 
because "coverage" under the new 
policy was not in place on that date. 

Following review of the comments 
submitted on this issue and further 
review and consideration of the 
provisions of section 1251 of the 
Affordable Care Act the DeP.artments 
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the Affordable Care Act, the 
Departments now conclude that it is 
reasonable to construe the statutory 
term "group health plan" to apply the 
grandfather provisions uniformly to 
both self-insured and insured group 
health plans [and, consequently, to 
health insurance coverage offered in 
connection with a group health plan). 
Where insured coverage is provided not 
through a group health plan but instead 
in the individual market, a change in 
issuer would still be a change in the 
health insurance coverage in which the 
individual was enrolled on March 23, 
2010, and thus the new individual 
policy. certificate, or contract of 
insurance would not be a grandfathered 
health plan. 

This amendment modifies paragraph 
(a}(l) of the interim final regulations, 
which previously caused a group health 
plan to cease to be a grandfathered 
health plan if the plan entered into a 
new policy, certificate, or contract of 
insurance. The modification provides 
that a group health plan does not cease 
to be grandfathered health plan coverage 
merely because the plan (or its sponsor) 
enters into a new policy, certificate, or 
contract of insurance after March 23, 
2010 7 (for example, a plan enters into 
a contract with a new issuer or a new 
policy is issued with an existing issuer). 
The amendment applies to such changes 
to group health insurance coverage that 
are effective on or after November 15, 
2010, the date the amendment to the 
interim final regulations was made 
available for public inspection; the 
amendment does not apply retroactively 
to such changes to group health 
insurance coverage that were effective 
before this date." For this purpose, the 
date the new coverage becomes effective 
is the operative date, not the date a 
contract for a new policy, r:ertificate or 
contract of insurance is enterncl into. 
Therefore, for example, if a plan enters 
into an agreement with an issuer on 
September 28, 2010 for a new policy to 
be effective on J;.rnuary 1, 2011, then 
January 1, 2011 is the date the new 
policy is effective and, therefore, the 
relevant date for purposes of 
determining the application of the 

7 Of course, with respect 10 changes lo group 
health insurance coverage on or after March 2:J. 
2010 hut before June 14, 2010, the Departments' 
enforcemenl safe harbor remains in effoc;t for goorl 
faith efforts to comply with a reasonable 
interpretation of the statute, 

6 As noted below, the Departments are inviting 
comments on this arnr:ndnwnt to thr: int(irim final 
n:gulations . 
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amendment to the interim final 
regulations. If, however, the plan 
entered into an agreement with an 
issuer on July 1, 2010 for a new policy 
to he effective on September 1, 2010, 
then the amendment would not apply 
and the plan would cease to be a 
grandfathered health plan. 

Notwithstanding the ability to change 
health insurance coverage pursuant to 
the modification made by the 
amendment, if the new policy, 
certificate, or contract of insurance 
includes changes described in 
paragraph (g)(l) of the interim final 
regulations, the plan ceases to be a 
grandfathered health plan. In applying 
this amendment, as with other 
provisions of the interim final 
regulations, the rules apply separately to 
each benefit package made available 
under a group health plan. 

The amendment also provides that, to 
maintain status as a grandfathered 
health plan, a group health plan that 
enters into a new policy, certificate, or 
contract of insurance must provide to 
the new health insurance issuer (and the 
new health insurance issuer must 
require) documentation of plan terms 
(including benefits, cost sharing, 
employer contributions, and annual 
limits) under the prior health coverage 
sufficient to determine whether any 
change described in paragraph (g)(l) is 
being made. This documentation may 
include a copy of the policy or summary 
plan description. The amendment also 
makes minor confo~ming changes to 
other provisions of the interim final 
regulations. 

Thus, a plan can retain its grandfather 
status if it changes its carrier, so long as 
it has not made any other changes that 
would revoke its status. This 
amendment is being issued on an 
interim final basis to notify plans as 
soon as possible of the change and is 
effective prospectively to minimize 
disruption to participants and 
beneficiaries. The Departments are 
continuing to review and evaluate the 
·comments received in response to the 
June 17, 2010 interim final regulations. 
In addition, the Departments invite 
comments On this amendment to the 
interim final regulations, including the 
prospective effective date of the rule 
and how that affects plans with different 
plan years. Final regulations on 
grandfathered health plans will be 
published in the near future. 

III. Interim Final Rules and Waiver of 
Delay of Effective Date 

Section 9833 of the Code, section 734 
ofERISA, and section 27!!2 of the PHS 
Act authorize the Secretaries of the 
Treasury, Labor, and HHS {collectively, 

the Secretaries) to promulgate any 
interim final rules that they determine 
are appropriate to carry out the 
provisions of chapter 100 of the Code, 
part 7 of subtitle B of title I of ERISA, 
and part A of title XXVII of the PHS Act, 
which include PHS Act sections 2701 
through 2728 and the incorporation of 
those sections into ERISA section 715 
and Code section 9815. The rule set 
forth in this amendment governs the 
applicability of the requirements in 
these sections and is therefore 
appropriate to carry them out. 
Therefore, the foregoing interim final 
rule authority applies to this 
amendment. 

In addition, under Section 553(b) of 
the Administrative Procedure Act (APA) 
(5 U.S.C. 551 et seq.) a general notice of 
proposed rulemaking is not required 
when an agency, for good cause, finds 
that notice and public comment thereon 
are impracticable, unnecessary, or 
contrary to the public interest. Although 
the provisions of the APA that 
ordinarily require a notice of proposed 
rulemaking do not apply here because of 
the specific authority granted by section 
9833 of the Code. section 734 of ERISA. 
and section 2792 of the PHS Act, even 
if the APA were applicable, the 
Secretaries have determined that it 
would be impracticable and contrary to 
the public interest to delay putting the 
provisions of this amendment to the 
June 17, 2010 interim final regulations 
in place until an additional pub1ic 
notice and comment process was 
completed. 

As noted in the preamble to the June 
17, 201 0 interim final regulations, 
numerous provisions of the Affordable 
Care Act are applicable for plan years 
{in the individual market, policy years) 
beginning on or after September 23, 
2010, six months after date of 
enactment. Because grandfathered 
health plans are exempt from many of 
these provisions while group health 
plans and group and individual health 
insurance coverage tlrnt are not 
grandfathered health plans must comply 
with them, it was critical for plans and 
issuers to receive clear guidance as to 
whether they were so exempt as soon as 
possible; accordingly, the June 17, 2010 
interim final regulations were published 
without prior notice and comment. 
While the Affordable Care Act 
provisions have become effective with 
respect to certain plans and coverage, 
the majority of plans and coverage have 
not yet become subject to the Act. It is 
critical to provide those plans with the 
guidance in these interim final rules 
immediately. In addition, the provisions 
of this amendment essentially are the 
product of prior notice and comment, as 

they ara a logical outgrowth of the Jun• 
17, 2010 interim final regulations whic.. 
provided an opportunity for public 
comment, and are being issued in 
response to public comments received. 

For the foregoing reasons, the 
Departments have determined that it is 
impracticable and contrary to the public 
interest to engage in full notice and 
comment ru)emaking before putting 
these regulations into effect, and that it 
is in the public interest to promulgate 
interim final regulations. 

In addition, under Section 553(d) of 
the APA, regulations are to be published 
at least 30 days before they take effect. 
Again, under section 553(d)(3), this 
requirement may be waived "for good 
cause found and published with the 
rule." For the reasons set forth above, 
the DepartmAnts have determined that 
there is good cause for waiver of the 30 
day delay of effective date requirement 
in section 553(d). 

IV. Economic Impact and Paperwork 
Burden 

A. Overview and Need for Regulatory 
Action-Department of Labor and 
Department of Health and Human 
Services 

As stated earlier in this preamble, th 
Departments of Health and Human 
Services, Labor, and the Treasury (the 
Departments) previously issued interim 
final regulations implementing section 
1251 of the Affordable Care Act that 
were published in the Federal Register 
on June 17, 2010 (75 FR 34538). 
Paragraph (a)(l)(ii) of the interim final 
regulations provides that if a group 
health plan changes the issuer providing 
the insured health coverage after March 
23, 2010, the group health plan ceases 
to be a grandfathered health plan. 
Paragraph (g)(1) of the interim final 
regulations includes rules for 
determining when changes to the terms 
of a plan or health insurance coverage 
cause a plan or coverage to cease to be 
a grandfathered health plan. 

As described earlier in this preamble, 
comments expressed a number of 
concerns regarding the change in issuer 
rule. Among other concerns, comments 
stated that the change in issuer rule 
provides issuers with undue leverage in 
negotiating the price of coverage 
renewals with grandfathered health 
plans, because a change in carrier would 
result in plans relinquishing their 
grandfathered status. Therefore, in 
effect, the provision could impede 
employers' efforts to obtain group health 
insurance coverage for their employees 
at the lowest cost. Commenters also 
expressed concern that the rule creates 
an unlevel playing held for self-insured 
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J. nd fully-insured group health plans, 
ecause the former could change plan 

administrators without relinquishing 
their grandfathered health plan status, 
while the latter could not change issuers 
without relinquishing such status. 

After reviewing the comments 
concerning this issue and further 
analyzing the statutory provision, the 
Departments have determined that it is 
appropriate to amend the interim final 
regulations to allow group health plans 
to change a health insurance policy or 
issuer providing health insurance 
coverage without ceasing to be a 
grandfathered health plan, provided that 
the standards set forth under paragraph 
(g)(l) of the interim final regulations are 
met. The Departments expect that this 
amendment will result in a small 
increase in the humber of plans 
retaining their grandfathered status 
relative to the estimates made in the 
interim final regulations. The 
Departments did not produce a range of 
estimates for the number of affected 
entities given considerable uncertainty 
about the behavioral response to this 
amendment. For a further discussion, 
see Section II. Overview of Amendment 
to the Interim Final Regulations, above. 

1. Executive Order 12866-Department 
of Labor and Department of Health and 
Human Services 

Under Executive Order 12866 (58 FR 
51735), "significant" regulatory actions 
are subject to review by the Office of 
Management and Budget (0MB). 
Section 3(f) of the Executive Order 
defines a "significant regulatory action" 
as an action that is likely to result in a 
rule (1) having an annual effect on the 
economy of $100 million or more in any 
one year, or adversely and materially 
affecting a sector of the economy, 
productivity, competition, jobs, the 
environment, public health or safety, or 
State, local or tribal governments or 
communities (also referred to as 
"economically significant"); (2) creating 
a serious inconsistency or otherwise 
interfering with an action taken or 
planned by another agency; (3) 
materially altering the budgetary 
impacts of entitlement grants, user fees, 
or loan programs or the rights and 
obligations of recipients thereof; or (4) 
raising novel legal or policy issues 
arising out of legal mandates, the 
President's priorities, or the principles 
set forth in the Executive Order. 0MB 
rns determined that this amendment to 

.he interim final regulations is 
significant within the meaning of 
section 3(f)(4) of the Executive Order. 
Accordingly, 0MB has reviewed the 
amendment pursuant to the Executive 
Order. 

C. Regulatory Flexibility Act
Department of Labor and Department of 
Health and Human Services 

The Regulatory Flexibility Act (5 
U.S.C. 601 et seq.) (RFA) imposes 
certain requirements with respect to 
Federal rules that are subject to the 
notice and comment requirements of 
section 553(b) of the APA (5 U.S.C. 551 
et seq.) and that are likely to have a 
significant economic impact on a 
substantial number of small entities. 
Under Section 553(b) of the APA, a 
general notice of proposBd rulemaking 
is not required when an agency, for 
good cause, finds that notice and public 
comment thereon are impracticable, 
unnecessary, or contrary to the public 
interest. The interim final regulations 
were exempt from the APA, because the 
Departments made a good cause finding 
that a general notice of proposed 
rulemak.ing is not necessary earlier in 
this preamble. Therefore, the RF A did 
not apply and the Departments were not 
required to either certify that the 
regulations or this amendment would 
not have a significant economic impact 
on a substantial number of small entities 
or conduct a regulatory flexibility 
analysis. 

Nevertheless, the Departments 
carefully considered the likely impact of 
the amendment on small entities and 
believe that the amendment wi1l have a 
positive impact on small plans, because 
such plans are more likely to be fully
insured. The Departments estimated in 
the regulatory impact analysis for the 
interim final regulations that small 
plans were more likely to relinquish 
grandfathered health plan status due In 
changes in issuers or policies than large 
plans. Therefore, this amendment to the 
interim final regulations will benefit 
small plans that want to retain their 
grandfathered health plan status while 
still changing health insurance issuers. 
This change should give employers 
greater flexibility to keep premiums 
affordable for the same plan. 

D. Special Analyses-Department of the 
Treasury 

Notwithstanding the determinations 
of the Department of Labor and 
Department of Health and Human 
Services, for purposes of the Department 
of the Treasury, it has been determined 
that this Treasury decision is not a 
significant regulatory action for 
purposes of Executive Order 12866. 
Therefore, a regulatory assessment is not 
required. It has also been determined 
that section 553(6) of the Administrative 
Procedure Act (5 U.S.C. chapter 5) does 
not apply to these regulatio11s. For tlrn 
applicability of the RFA, refer to the 

Special Analyses section in the 
preamble to the cross-referencing notice 
of proposed rulemaking published 
elsewhere in this issue of the Federal 
Register. Pursuant to section 7805(f) of 
the Code, these temporary regulations 
have been submitted to the Chief 
Counsel for Advocacy of the Small 
Business Administration for comment 
on their impact on small businesses. 

E. Paperwork Reduction Act 

As part of their continuing efforts to 
reduce paperwork and respondent 
burden, the Departments conduct a 
prec1earance consultation program to 
provide the general public and Federal 
agencies with an opportunity to 
comment on proposed and continuing 
collections of information in accordance 
with the Paperwork Reduction Act of 
1995 (PRA) (44 U.S.C. 3506(c)(2)(A)). 
This helps to ensure that requested data 
can be provided in the desired format, 
reporting burden (time and financial 
resources) is minimized, and collection 
requirements on respondents can be 
properly assessed. 

As discussed earlier in this preamble, 
the c1mendment lo the interim final 
regulation adds a new disclosure 
requirement that requires the group 
health plan that is changing health 
insurance coverage to provide to the 
succeed,ing health insurance issuer (and 
the succeeding health insurance issuer 
must require) documentation of plan 
terms (including benefits, cost sharing, 
employer contributions, and annual 
limits) under the prior health insurance 
covernge sufficient to make a 
determination whether the standards of 
paragraph (g)(1) arc exceeded. The 
Departments expect that this 
amendment will result in a small 
increase in the number of plans 
retaining their grandfathered status 
relative to the estimates made in the 
interim final regulations. Although the 
Departments did not produce a range of 
estimates for the number of affected 
entities due to the considerable 
uncertainty regarding the behavioral 
response to this amendment, the 
Departments estimate that the new 
disclosure requirement associated with 
the amendment will result in a total 
hour burden of 3,845 hours and a total 
cost burden of $260,000. 9 The 
Departments welcome comments on this 
estimate. 

The Office of Management and Budget 
has approved revisions to the ICRs 
contained under 0MB Control Numbers 

9 The Departments ilpplied the same 111ethodnlogy 
that was used in estinwting the hour and cost 
burden assor;i;ded wilh the informatio11 collectioll 
requests (ICRs) contai1wd in the interin1 final 
regula1ions 1o make this estimate. 



• 
Federal Register/Vol. 75, No. 221/Wednesday, November 17, 2010/Rules and Regulations 70119 

1210-0140 (Department of Labor), 
1545-2178 (Department of the Treasury; 
Internal Revenue Service), and 0938-
1093 (Department of Health and Human 
Services) reflecting this estimate. A 
copy of the JCR may be obtained by 
contacting the PRA addressee: G. 
Christopher Cosby, Office of Policy and 
Research, U.S. Department of Labor, 
Employee Benefits Security 
Administration, 200 Constitution 
Avenue, NW., Room N-5718, 
Washington, DC 20210. Telephone: 
(202) 693---ll410; Fax: (202) 219--2745. 
These are not toll-free numbers. E-mail: 
ebsa.opr@dol.gov. ICRs submitted to 
0MB also are available at reginfo.gov 
(http://www.reginfo.gov/public/do/ 
PRAMain). 

F. Congressional Review Act 

This amendment to the interim final 
regulations is subject to the 
Congressional Review Act provisions of 
the Small Business Regulatory 
Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996 (5 
U.S.C. 801 et seq.) and has been · 
transmitted to Congress and the 
Comptroller General for review. The 
interim final rule is not a "major rule" 
as that term is defined in 5 U.S.C. 804, 
because it does not result in (1) an 
annual effect on the economy of $100 
million or more; (2) a major increase in 
costs or prices for consumers, 
individual industries, or Federal, State, 
or local government agencies, or 
geographic regions; or (3) significant 
adverse effects on competition, 
employment, investment, productivity, 
innovation, or on the ability of United 
States-based enterprises to compete 
with foreign-based enterprises in 
domestic and export markets. 

G. Unfunded Mandates Reform Act 

The Unfunded Mandates Reform Act 
of 1995 (Pub. L. 104-4) requires 
agencies to prepare several analytic 
statements before proposing any rules 
that may result in annual expenditures 
of $100 million (as adjusted for 
inflation) by State, local and tribal 
governments or the private sector. This 
amendment to the interim final 
regulations is not subject to the 
Unfunded Mandates Reform Act, 
because they are being issued as an 
interim final regulation. However, 
consistent with the policy embodied in 
the Unfunded Mandates Reform Act, 
this amendment to the interim final 
regulations has been designed to be the 
least burdensome alternative for State, 
local and tribal governments, and the 
private sector, while achieving the 
objectives of the Affordable Care Act. 

H. Federalism Statement-Department 
of Labor and Department of Health and 
Human Services 

Executive Order 13132 outlines 
fundamental principles of federalism, 
and requires the adherence to specific 
criteria by Federal agencies in the 
process of their formulation and 
implementation of policies that have 
"substantial direct effects" on the States, 
the relationship between the national 
government and States, or on the 
distribution of power and 
responsibilities among the various 
levels of government. Federal agencies 
promu]gating regulations that have 
these federalism implications must 
consult with State and local officials, 
and describe the extent of their 
consultation and the nature of the 
concerns of State and local officials in 
the preamble to the regulation. 

In the Departments' view, this 
amendment to the regulation has 
federalism implications, because it has 
direct effects on the States, the 
relationship between the national 
government and States, or on the 
distribution of power and 
responsibilities among various levels of 
government. However, in the 
Departments' view, the federalism 
implications of the regulation is 
substantially mitigated because, with 
respect to health insurance issuers, the 
Departments expect that the majority of 
States will enact laws or take other 
appropriate action resulting in their 
meeting or exceeding the Federal 
standard. 

In general, through section 514, 
ERISA supersedes State laws to the 
extent that they relale to any covered 
employee benefit plan, and preserves 
State laws that regulate insurance, 
banking, or securities. While ERISA 
prohibits States from regulating a plan 
as an insurance or investment company 
or bank, the preemption provisions of 
ERISA section 731 and PHS Act section 
2724 (implemented in 29 CFR 
2590.731(a) and 45 CFR 146.143(a)) 
apply so that the HIPAA requirements 
(including those of the Affordable Care 
Act) are not to be "construed to 
supersede any provision of State law 
which establishes, implements, or 
continues in effect any standard or 
requirement solely relating to health 
insurance issuers in connection with 
group health insurance coverage except 
to the extent that such standard or 
requirement prevents the application of 
a requirement" of a Federal standard. 
The conference report accompanying 
HIPAA indicates that this is intended lo 
be the "narrowest" prnc~mption of State 
laws. [See Ho11se Co11f. Rep. No. 104-

736, at 205, reprinted in 1996 U.S. Car 
Cong. & Admin. News 2018.) States me.. 
continue to apply State law 
requirements except to the extent that 
such requirements prevent the 
application of the Affordable Care Act 
requirements that are the subject of this 
ru]emaking. State insurance laws that 
are more stringent than the Federal 
requirements are unlikely to "prevent 
the application of' the Affordable Care 
Act, and be preempted. Accordingly, 
States have significant latitude to 
impose requirements on health 
insurance issuers that are more 
restrictive th8n the Federal law. 

In compliance with the requirement 
of Executive Order 13132 that agencies 
examine closely any policies that may 
have federalism implications or limit 
the policy making discretion of the 
States, the Departments have engaged in 
efforts to consult with and work 
cooperatively with affected State and 
local officials. including attending 
conferences of the National Association 
of Insurance Commissioners and 
consulting with State insurance officials 
on an individual basis. It is expected 
that the Departments will act in a 
similar fashion in enforcing the 
Affordable Care Act requirements. 
Throughout the process of developing 
this amendment, to the extent feasible 
within the specific preemption 
provisions ofHIPAA as it applies to the 
Affordable Care Act, the Departments 
have attempted to balance the States' 
interests in regulating health insurance 
issuers, and Congress' intent to provide 
uniform minimum protections to 
consumers in every State. By doing so, 
it is the Departments' view that they 
have complied with the requirements of 
Executive Order 13132. 

Purstwnt to the requirements set forth 
in section B(a) of Executive Order 
13132, and by the signatures affixed to 
these regulations, the Departments 
certify that the Employee Benefits 
Security Administration and tho Office 
of Consumer Information and Insurance 
Oversight have complied with the 
requirements of Executive Order 13132 
for the attached amendment to the 
interim final regulations in a meaningful 
and timely manner. 

V. Statutory Authority 

The Department of the Treasury 
temporary regulations are adopted 
pursuant to the authority contained in 
sections 7805 and 9833 of the Code. 

The Department of Labor interim fin, 
regulations are adopted pursu.rnt to the 
authority contained in 29 U.S.C. 1027, 
1059, 1135, 11fil-11fiH, 1169, 1181-
1183, 1 IH1 Huie, l 1H5, 11H5a, 1185b, 
1191, 119la, l"l!nb, and 1101c; sec. 
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• .)0l(g), Pub. L. 104-191, 110 Stat. 1936; 
sec. 401(b), Pub. L. 105-200, 112 Stat. 
645 (42 U.S.C. 651 note); sec. 512(d), 
Pub. L. 110-343, 122 Stat. 38B1; sec. 
1001, 1201, and 1562(e), Pub. L.111-
14B, 124 Stat. 119, as amended by 
Public Law 111-152, 124 Stat. 1029; 
Secretary of Labor's Order 6-2009, 74 
FR 21524 (May 7, 2009). 

The Department of Health and Human 
Services interim final regulations are 
adopted pursuant to the authority 
contained in sections 2701 through 
2763, 2791, and 2792 of the PHS Act (42 
U.S.C. 300gg through 300gg-63, 300gg-
91, and 300gg-92), as amended. 

List of Subjects 

26 CFR Part 54 

Excise taxes, Health care, Health 
insurance, Pensiolls, Reporting and 
recordkeeping requirements. 

29 CFR Part 2590 

Continuation coverage, Disclosure, 
Employee benefit plans, Group health 
plans, Health care, Health insurance, 
Medical child support, Reporting and 
recordkeeping requirements. 

/5 CFR Part 147 

Health care, Health insurance, 
Reporting and recordkeeping 
requirements, and State regulation of 
health insurance. 

Approved: November 8, 2010. 
Steven T. Miller, 
Deputy Commissioner for Services and 
Enforcement, Internal Revenue Service. 
Michael F. Mundaca, 
Assistant Secretary of the Treasury {Tax 
Policy). 

Signed this 5th day of November 2010. 
Phyllis C. Borzi, 

Assistant Secretary, Employee Benefits 
Security Administration, Department of 
Labor. 

Approved: November 9, 2010. 

Jay Angoff, 
Director, Office of Consumer Information and 
Insurance Oversight. 

Approved: November 9, 2010. 

Kathleen Sebelius, 
Secretwy, Department of Health and Human 

• Services. 

- )epartment of the Treasury 

Internal Revenue Service 

26 CFR Chapter I 

■ Accordingly, 26 CFR part 54 is 
amended as follows: 

PART 54-PENSION EXCISE TAXES 

■ Paragraph 1. The authority citation 
for part 54 continues to read in part as 
follows: 

Authority: 26 U.S.C. 7805. * * * 

■ Par. 2. Section 54.9B15-1251T is 
amended by: 
■ 1. Revising paragraph (a)(l). 
■ 2. Redesignating paragraphs (a)(3) 
introductory text, (al(J)(i), and (a)(3)(ii) 
as paragraphs (a)(3)(i), (a)(3l(i)(A) and 
(a)(3)(i)(B), respectively. 
■ 3. Adding new paragraph (a)(3)(ii). 
■ 4. Removing paragraphs (al(5) and 
(f](2). 
■ 5. Redesignating paragraph (f](l) as 
paragraph (f]. 
■ 6. Revising the last sentence in newly
designated paragraph [f]. 
■ 7. Revising paragraph (g)(4) Example 
9. 

The revisions and addition reads as 
follows: 

§54.9815-1251T Preservation of right to 
maintain existing coverage (temporary). 

(a) Definition of grandfathered health 
plan coverage--(1) In general--(i) 
Grandfathered health plan coverage. 
Grandfathered health plan coverage 
means coverage provided by a group 
health plan, or a health insurance 
issuer, in which an individual was 
enrolled on March 23, 2010 (for as long 
as it maintains that status under the 
rules of this section}. A group health 
plan or group health insurance coverage 
does not cease to be grandfathered 
health plan coverage merely because 
one or more {or even all) individuals 
enrolled on March 23, 2010 cease to be 
covered, provided that the plan has 
continuously covered someone since 
March 23, 2010 (not necessarily the 
same person, but at all times at least one 
person). In addition, subject to the 
limitation set forth in paragraph 
[a)(l)(ii) of this section, a group health 
plan (and any health insurance coverage 
offered in connection with the group 
health plan) does not cease to be a 
grandfathered health plan merely 
because the plan (or its sponsor) enters 
into a new policy, certificate, or contract 
of insurance after March 23, 2010 (for 
example, a plan enters into a contract 
with a new issuer or a new policy is 
issued with an existing issuer). For 
purposes of this section, a plan or health 
insurance coverage that provides 
grandfathered health plan coverage is 
referred to as a grandfathered health 
plan. The rules of this section apply 
separately to each benefit package made 
available under a group health plan or 
health insurance coverage. 

(ii) Changes in group health insumnce 
coverage. Subject to paragraphs (0 and 

(g)(2) of this section, if a group health 
plan (including a group health plan that 
was self-insured on March 23, 2010) or 
its sponsor enters into a new policy, 
certificate, or contract of insurance after 
March 23, 2010 that is effective before 
November 15, 2010, then the plan 
ceases to be a grandfathered health plan. 
* • • • • 

(3)(i) ••• 
(ii) Change in group health insurance 

coverage. To maintain status as a 
grandfathered health plan, a group 
health plan that enters into a new 
policy. certificate, or contract of 
insurance must provide to the new 
health insurance issuer (and the new 
health insurance issuer must require) 
documentation of plan terms (including 
benefits, cost sharing, employer 
contributions, and annual limits) under 
the prior health coverage sufficient to 
determine whether a change causing a 
cessation of grandfathered health plan 
status under paragraph (g)(1) of this 
section has occurred. 
• * * * 

(f) * * * After the date on which the 
last of the collective bargaining 
agreements relating to the coverage that 
was in effect on March 23, 2010 
terminates, the determination of 
whether health insurance coverage 
maintained pursuant to a collective 
bargaining agreement is grandfathered 
health plan coverage is made under the 
rules of this section other than this 
paragraph (f) (comparing the terms of 
the health insurance coverage after the 
date lhe last collective bargaining 
agreement terminates with the terms of 
the health insurance coverage that were 
in effer;t on March 23, 2010). 

(g) * * * 
(4) * * * 
Example 9. (i) Au;ls. A group health plan 

not maintained pursuant to a collective 
bargaining agreement offers three benefit 
packages on March 23. 2010. Option Fis a 
self-insured option. Options G and 1-1 are 
insured options. Beginning July 1, 2013, the 
plan increases coinsurance under Option H 
from 10% to 15%. 

(ii) Conclusion. In this Example 9, the 
coverage under Option His not . 
grandfathered health plan coverage as of July 
1, 2013, consistent with the rule in paragraph 
{g){l )(ii} of this section. Whether the coverage 
under Options F and G is grandfathered 
health plan coverage is determined 
separately under the rules of this paragraph 
(g) . 

Department of Labor 

Employee Benefits Security 
Administration 

29 CFR Chapter XXV 

■ 29 CFR part 25!)0 is amended as 
follows: 
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PART 2590-RULES AND 
REGULATIONS FOR GROUP HEALTH 
PLANS 

■ 1. The authority citation for part 2590 
continues to read as follows: 

Authority: 29 U.S.C. 1027, 1059, 1135, 
1161-1168, 1169, 1181-1183, 1181 note, 
1185,1185a,1185b,1191,1191a,1191b,and 
1191c: soc. 101(g), Pub. L.104-191, 110 Stat. 
1936; sec. 401(b), Pub. L. 105-200, 112 Stat. 
645 (42 U.S.C. 651 note): soc. 512(d), Pub. L. 
110-343, 122 Stat. 3881; sec. 1001, 1201, and 
1562(e), Pub. L. 111-148, 124 Stat. 119, as 
amended by Pub. L.111-152, 124 Stat.1029; 
Secretary of Labor's Order 6-2009, 74 FR 
21524 (May 7, 2009). 

■ 2. Section 2590.715-1251 is amended 
by: 
■ 1. Revising paragraph (a)(l). 
■ 2. Redesignating paragraphs (a)(3), 
(a)(3)(i) and (a)(3)(ii) as paragraphs 
(a)(3)(i), (a)(3)(i)(A) and (a)(3)(i)(B), 
respectively. 
■ 3. Adding new paragraph (a)(3)(ii). 
■ 4. Removing paragraphs (a)(5) and 
(f)(2). 
■ 5. Redesignating paragraph (f)(1) as 
paragraph (f). 
■ 6. Revising the last sentence in newly
designated paragraph (f). 
■ 7. Revising paragraph (g)(4) Example 
9. 

The revisions and addition reads as 
follows: 

§2590.715-1251 Preservation of right lo 
maintain existing coverage. 

(a) Definition of grandfathered health 
plan coverage-(1) In general-(i) 
Grandfathered health plan coverage. 
Grandfathered health plan coverage 
means coverage provided by a group 
health plan, or a health insurance 
issuer, in which an individual was 
enrolled on March 23, 2010 (for as long 
as it maintains that status under the 
rules of this section). A group health 
plan or group health insurance coverage 
does not cease to be grandfathered 
health plan coverage merely because 
one or more (or even all) individuals 
enrolled on March 23, 2010 cease to be 
covered, provided that the plan has 
continuously covered someone since 
March 23, 2010 (not necessarily the 
same person, but at all times at least one 
person). In addition, subject to the 
limitation set forth in paragraph 
(a)(1)(ii) of this section, a group health 
plan (and any health insurance coverage 
offered in connection with the group 
health plan} does not cease to be a 
grandfathered health plan merely 
because the plan (or its sponsor) enters 
into a new policy, certificate, or contract 
of insurance after March 23, 2010 (for 
example, a plan enters into a contract 
with a new issuer or a new policy is 
issued with an existing issuer). For 

purposes of this section, a plan or health 
insurance coverage that provides 
grandfathered health plan coverage is 
referred to as a grandfathered health 
plan. The rules of this section apply 
separately to each benefit package made 
available under a group health plan or 
health insurance coverage. 

(ii) Changes in group health insurance 
coverage. Subject to paragraphs (f) and 
(g)(2) of this section, if a group health 
plan (including a group health plan that 
was self-insured on March 23, 2010) or 
its sponsor enters into a new policy, 
certificate, or contract of insurance after 
March· 23, 2010 that is effective before 
November 15, 2010, then the plan 
ceases to be a grandfathered health plan. 
• • • • * 

(3)(i) * • • 
(ii) Change in group health insurance 

coverage. To maintain status as a 
grandfathered health plan, a group 
health plan that enters into a new 
policy, certificate, or contract of 
insurance must provide to the new 
health insurance issuer (and the new 
health insurance issuer must require) 
documentation of plan terms (including 
benefits, cost sharing, employer 
contributions, and annual limits) under 
the prior health coverage sufficient to 
determine whether a change causing a 
cessatiori of grandfathered health plan 
status under paragraph (g)(l) of this 
section has occurred. 
• • • • • 

(f1 "' "' "' After the date on which the 
last of the collective bargaining 
agreements relating to the coverage that 
was in effect on March 23, 2010 
terminates, the determination of 
whether health insurance coverage 
maintained pursuant to a collective 
bargaining agreement is grandfathered 
health plan coverage is made under the 
rules of this section other than this 
paragraph (f) (comparing the terms of 
the health insurance coverage after the 
date the last collective bargaining 
agreement terminates with the terms of 
the health insurance coverage that were 
in effect on March 23, 2010). 

(g} "' * * 
(4) * "' * 
Example 9. (i) Facts. A group health plan 

not maintained pursuant to a collective 
bargaining agreement offers three benefit 
packages on March 23, 2010. Option Fis a 
self-insured option. Options G and Hare 
insured options. Beginning July 1, 2013, the 
plan increases coinsurance under Option H 
from 10% to 15%. 

[ii) Conclusion. ln this Exomple 9, the 
coverage under Option His nnt 
grandfathered health plan coverage as of July 
1, 2013, consistent with the rule in paragraph 
[gl(1){iil of this section. Whr.ther the coverage 
under Options F anrl G is grandfathered 
health plan coverage is determined 

separately under the rules of this paragrapb 
(g). 

Department of Health and Human 
Services 

45 CFR Chapter I 

■ Accordingly, 45 CFR part 147 is 
amended as follows: 

PART 147-HEALTH INSURANCE 
REFORM REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 
GROUP AND INDIVIDUAL HEALTH 
INSURANCE MARKETS 

■ 1. The authority citation for part 147 
continues to read as follows: 

Authority: Secs. 2701 through 2763, 2791, 
and 2792 of the Public Health Service Act (42 
U.S.C. 300gg through 300gg-63, 300gg-91, 
and 300gg-92), as amended. 

■ 2. Section 147.140 is amended by: 
■ 1. Revising paragraph (a)(l). 
■ 2. Redesignating paragraphs (a)(3), 
(a)(3)(i) and (a)(3)(ii) as paragraphs 
(a)(3)(i), (a)(3)(i)(A) and (a)(3)(i)(B), 
respectively. 
■ 3. Adding new paragraph [a)(3)(ii). 
■ 4. Removing paragraphs (a)(5) and 
(f)(2). 
■ 5. Redesignating paragraph (f)(l) as 
paragraph (f). 
■ 6. Revising the last sentence in newlJ 
designated paragraph (f). 
■ 7. Revising paragraph (g)(4) Example 
9. 

The revisions and addition reads as 
follows: 

§ 147.140 Preservation of right to maintain 
existing coverage. 

(a) Definition of grandfathered health 
plan covemge-(1} In general-(i) 
Grandfathered health ]Jinn coverage. 
Grandfathered health plcrn coverage 
means coverage provided by a group 
health plan, or a group or individual 
health insurance issuer, in which an 
individual was enrolled on March 23, 
2010 (for as long as it maintains that 
status under the rules of this section). A 
group health plan or group health 
insurance coverage does not cease to be 
grandfathered health plan coverage 
merely because one or more (or even all) 
individuals enrolled on March 23, 2010 
cease to be covered, provided that the 
plan has continuously covered someone 
since March 23, 2010 (not necessarily 
the same person, but at all times at least 
one person). In addition, subject to the 
limitation set forth in paragraph 
(a)(l )(ii) of this section, a group health 
plan (and any health insurance covera 
offered in connection with the group 
health plan) <loes not cuase to be a 
grandfathered health plan merely 
because the plan (or its sponsor) enters 
into a new policy, certificate, or contract 
of insurance after March 2], 2010 (for 
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xample, a plan enters into a contract 
ith a new issuer or a new policy is 

issued with an existing issuer). For 
purposes of this section, a plan or health 
insurance coverage that provides 
grandfathered health plan coverage is 
referred to as a grandfathered health 
plan. The rules of this section apply 
separately to each benefit package made 
available under a group health plan or 
health insurance coverage. 

(ii) Changes in group health insurance 
coverage. Subject to paragraphs (0 and 
(g)(Z) of this section, if a group health 
plan (including a group health plan that 
was self-insured on March 23, 2010) or 
its sponsor enters into a new policy, 
certificate, or contract of insurance after 
March 23, 2010 that is effective before 
November 15, 2010, then the plan 
ceases to be a grandfathered health plan. 

(3)(i) • • • 
(ii) Change in group health insurance 

coverage. To maintain status as a 
grandfathered health plan, a group 
health plan that enters into a new 
po1icy, certificate, or contract of 
insurance must provide to the new 
health insurance issuer (and the new 

ea Ith insurance issuer must require) 
ocumentation of plan terms (including 
enefits, cost sharing, employer 

contributions, and annual limits) under 
the prior health coverage sufficient to 
determine whether a change causing a 
cessation of grandfathered health plan 
status under paragraph {g)(1) of this 
section has occurred. 

{O * * * After the date on which the 
last of thn collective bargaining 
agreements relating to the coverage that 
was in effect on Mnrch 23, 2010 
terminates, the determination of 
whether health insurance coverage 
maintained pursuant lo a collect(ve 
bargaining agrnement is grandfathurnd 
health plan r:overage is made undHr the 
rules of this section other than this 
paragraph (f1 (comparing the terms of 
the health insurance coverage after the 
datf~ the last collective bargaining 
agrem1wnl terminates with the hmns of 
the health insurance coverage that were 
in effect on March 23, 2010). 

{g) * * * 
{4 l * * * 
f:'x:01111,lv 9. (i) Fuels. A group health plan 

not maintained pursuant to a t:ollectivn 
bargtiining agreeme11t offers three benefit 

acknges on rvtarch 23, 2010. Op!ion Fis a 
.If-insured option. Options G and Hare 

nsuwd options. Beginning July ·1, 2013, the 
plan increases coinsurance under Option H 
from ·10% to 15°/4,. 

(ii) Conclusion.111 this EYom;,le !I, llw 
coverage under Option His not 
grandfathered health plan coverage as of July 

1, 2013, consistent with the rule in paragraph 
(g)(1)(ii) of this section. Whether the coverage 
under Options F and G is grandfathered 
health plan coverage is determined 
separately under the rules of this paragraph 
(g). 

[FR Doc. 2010-28861 Filed 11-15-10: 4:15 pm) 

BILLING CODE -4830-01-4510-29-4120-01-P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Office of the Attorney General 

28 CFR Part 0 

[AG Order No. 3229-2010] 

Office of Tribal Justice 

AGENCY: Department of Justir:e. 
ACTION: Final rule. 

SUMMARY: This rule will amend part O of 
title 28 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations to reflect the establishment 
of the Office of Tribal Justice as a 
distinct component of the Department of 
Justice. The Office of Tribal Justice was 
created by the Attorney General to 
provide a channel for Tribes tn 
communicate their concerns to the 
Department, to help coordinate policy 
on Indian affairs both within the 
Department and with other Federal 
agencies, and to ensure that thu 
Dnpartrnent and its components work 
with Tribes on a govurnment-to
government basis. This rul1), which sets 
forth the Office's organization, mission 
and 'functions, amends the Code of 
Federal Regulations in order to reflect 
accurately the Department's intnrnal 
manngurnent .stn1cture. 
DATES: Effective Date: Novumhur ·1 7, 
2010. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 

Tracy Toulou, Director, Offict: of Tribal 
Justice, U.S. Dtipnrtment of' Jusliui, RFK 
Main Justice Building, Room .2:ns, 950 
Pennsylvania Avonue, NW., 
Washington. DC 20530. Telephone: 
(202) 514-8812. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Background 

In 1995 the Allorncv General 
estc1blished the Office~ofTribal Justice 
(OTJ) to provide n principal point of 
contact within t lw Departnwnt of Justice 
to listen to the concerns of Indian tribes 
and other parties interested in Indian 
affairs and to communicate the 
Department's policies to the Tribes and 
the public; to promote internal 
uniformity or IJ1q1artment of J11sticti 
policins and litig,dion positions rnliiting 
to Indian cn1111tr\': ;ind to cnordinatt~ 
with other Fedrn:al agencies ,rnd with 

State and local governments on their 
initiatives in Indian country. On 
November 5, 2009, the President 
directed all Federal agencies to develop 
a consultation and coordination policy 
that ensures effective communication 
with Tribes. The Director of OT], in 
consultation with Tribes and with other 
Department components, developed the 
Department's comprehensive plan in 
response to the President's directive, 
and is designated as the Department 
official responsible for following 
through on the plan and reporting 
requirements associated with the 
President's directive. The Director of 
OTJ also is the Department official 
responsible for certifying to the Office of 
Management and Budget that the 
requirements of Executive Order 13175, 
Consultation and Coordination with 
Indian Tribal Governments, have been 
met with regard to any regulation or 
legislation proposed by the Department. 

On July 29, 2010, President Obama 
signed into law the Tribal Law and 
Order Act of 2010, Public Law 111-211. 
Section 214 of the Tribal Law and Order 
Act amends title I of the Indian Tribal 
Justice Technical and Legal Assistance 
Act of 2000, to provide that "In Jot later 
than 90 days after the date of enactment 
of the Tribal Law and Order Act of 2010, 
the Attorney General shall establish the 
Office of Tribal Justice as a r:omponenl 
of the Depart11wnt." This rule 
implements fully that statutory 
<lirective. 

Administrative Procedure Ar:I 5 U.S.C. 
55:-1 

This rule is a rulo of agtnH:y 
organization and proceduru, and relatus 
to the internal management of the 
Department of Justice. It is therefore 
exempt from the requirements of nolicu 
and r:omment and a delayed effective 
date. 5 U.S.C:. ss:1(b). Id). 

Regulatory Flexibility Act 

The 1\ttornev General, in acr:ordanc(i 
with the Regul~itory Flexibility Act (5 
U.S.C. 605{b)), has reviewtid this rule 
and by approving it certifi()S th,1t this 
rule will nut have a sig11ific:u11t 
economic impact on a substantial 
number of small entities b1)cause it 
pertains to 1wrsonnel and administratiVt) 
matters affecting the Department. 
Further, a Ri:gulutory Fhixiliility 
Analysis was not required to he 
prepared for this final ruin since the 
Department was not required to publish 
a general notice of propostid rnlemaking 
for this matt1ir. 

Executive Onltff ·128fili 

This ac.tinn has been draft1:d and 
rnviewed in nr:r:ordance with Execuli\'H 
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COORDINATING COVERAGE AND CARE IN MEDICAID AND 
HEALTH INSURANCE EXCHANGES 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

OCTO~ER 2010 

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act [ACAi increases access to affordable coverage by creating a 

new continuum of coverage and providing assistance to individuals with incomes up to 400% of the federal 

poverty level [FPLI. Medicaid eligibility is extended to a national floor of 133% FPL and subsidies are provided to 

individuals between 133%-400% FPL to purchase coverage through new Health Insurance Exchanges. The ACA 

also requires states to create a coordinated, simple, and technology-supported process through which individuals 

may obtain Medicaid, CHIP, and Exchange coverage. Further, coordinating delivery of care across these coverage 

types will be important. To explore key issues related to achieving coordinated and seamless enrollment and care 
in Medicaid and Exchange coverage the Kaiser Commission on Medicaid and the Uninsured [KCMUI convened the 

second in a series of roundtables with national and state experts focused on health reform implementation on 

August 31, 2010. Key issues identified by participants during the roundtable include the following: 

It is critical that states begin taking steps now to create an integrated and seamless eligibility and enrollment 

system for Medicaid and Exchange coverage that is supported by technology. While the Medicaid expansion 

and Exchange coverage will not go fully into effect until 2014, states face a long-lead time for system upgrades 
since they must go through formal procurement processes and many will need to make large-scale upgrades. 

One key decision states must address is to what extent they will build on existing Medicaid systems versus 
creating a new eligibility and enrollment system. Further, some states may want to consider restructuring 

where Medicaid eligibility is determined to facilitate integration with Exchange coverage, particularly those that 

currently determine eligibility through county-level social service agencies. Participants agreed that states need 

substantial and timely federal guidance and support to make the necessary upgrades by 2014. The Secretary of 

Health and Human Services [HHS) recently adopted a set of standards for interoperable electronic enrollment 

systems, and the ACA provides grants to states to assist in developing and implementing such systems. However, 

further federal guidance and support will be vital. States are specifically interested in having federal prototypes of 

systems and more federal financial support to enhance their capacity to upgrade systems. 

The requirement to integrate Medicaid and Exchange enrollment systems, combined with simplified 

Medicaid eligibility criteria under reform, provide a valuable opportunity for states to vastly simplify 

Medicaid enrollment processes. Participants suggested that eliminating state procedural and documentation 
requirements in Medicaid that are not required by federal law would make it easier to coordinate Medicaid and 

Exchange coverage. However, it was noted that some states have concerns that doing so would increase their 
error rates during federal audits. It was noted that states that have already implemented significant Medicaid 

simplifications have some of the lowest error rates in the country and suggested that the focus of federal 
audits could be revisited so they are better aligned with the ACA goals of expanded coverage. Participants also 

commented that the ACA calls for uniformity of enrollment processes across Medicaid and subsidized coverage in 
the Exchange which may supersede state flexibility to impose certain enrollment requirements in Medicaid, such 

as face-to-face interviews. 
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It will be important to minimize burdens on individuals by utilizing technology and existing data sources 
to obtain information. There was consensus among participants that utilizing existing databases to support 

eligibility determination and automate enrollment would go a long way in simplifying the enrollment process. 

With regard to income, it was noted that although eligibility for Medicaid and subsidized Exchange coverage will 

be based on Modified Adjusted Gross Income I MAGIi-which is captured when individuals file taxes and available 

through the Internal Revenue Service-there will need to be processes to collect more current income to assure 

individuals are enrolled in the correct program and receive the correct amount of financial assistance. Tax 

data may be lagged by as long as two years and, over that period, individuals may have a change in income or 

circumstances that affects their Medicaid eligibility and/or the level of assistance they qualify for under Exchange 

coverage. Moreover, the law requires that Medicaid eligibility be based on current income and that HHS establish 

guidelines for Exchange coverage to gather more recent income information for people who have experienced a 

change in circumstances. Further, not all individuals will have filed taxes and. within Medicaid, there will remain 

some groups [including elderly and disabled individuals! whose eligibility will continue to be based on current 

Medicaid methodologies. Several participants also suggested that it will be important for individuals to be able 

purchase coverage through the Exchange without answering any income-related questions since some will not be 

eligible for or interested in receiving any assistance. 

Seamless and automatic renewals of and transitions between coverage will be vital components of integrated 
enrollment systems, Assuring there are simple and effective processes to collect updated income and other 

eligibility information will be key for preventing disruptions in coverage and making sure that individuals receive 
the appropriate coverage and amount of financial assistance at the right time. It was recognized that, within 

Medicaid, utilizing electronic data exchanges to obtain updated information and automatically renew coverage 

has been an extremely effective and efficient way to help individuals maintain coverage. Further·, experience 

with Medicaid and CHIP suggests that transitions between programs occur most seamlessly when a single 

agency handles eligibility determinations for both programs: however, using electronic data exchange can help 

smooth transitions between separate agencies. Participants also noted that allowing states to provide 12-month 

continuous eligibility to adults in Medicaid would help would help minimize the frequency of transitions in 

coverage and thereby reduce the risk of coverage gaps and/or disruptions in care. 

Developing processes and systems that facilitate continuous care across coverage types will also be important. 

The legislative requirements to coordinate benefits and health plans between Medicaid and the Exchange are 

limited. The primary requirement is that an essential health benefits package be created for Exchange coverage 
and that benchmark coverage for ··new eligibles· in Medicaid must, at a minimum, provide the essential health 

benefits. A few participants suggested that having similar benefit packages for plans in Medicaid and the 
Exchange would facilitate coordinated care. Further, the question of whether benchmark coverage for "new 

eligibles" in Medicaid should resemble commercial coverage was raised, although concerns were expressed as to 
how this would impact enrollees with significant health needs who require more services thc1n typically included 

in a commercial plan. Another topic raised was to what extent states should work to ensure that some plans 
participate in both the Medicaid and Exchange markets, for example, by providing incentives or utilizing selective 

contracting processes. While not required by legislation, having some plans that are available through both 

markets could help facilitate continuity of care for people who transition between programs. 

In conclusion, the ACA establishes requirements to create a continuum of coverage with a coordinated enrollment 

process supported by technology. It also will be important to assure that care is coordinated across coverage 

types. A number of challenges must be addressed to achieve these goals, but the requirements also provide an 

opportunity for states to greatly simplify their Medicaid enrollment processes and make large-scale upgrades 

to their eligibility systems. The discussion emphasized that it will be vital for states to begin taking steps now to 

have systems in place by 2014. Further, participants stressed the importance of immediate federal guidance and 

support to advance state efforts. 
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INTRODUCTION 
The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACAi was signed into law on March 23, 2010 with a number of 

broad goals, including increasing access to affordable health coverage and reducing the number of uninsured. To 
make coverage more affordable, the law creates a new continuum of coverage pathways and provides assistance 

to individuals with family incomes up to 400% of the federal poverty level [FPLI. Medicaid eligibility is extended 

to a national floor of 133% FPL 1 and subsidies are provided to individuals between 133%-400% FPL to purchase 

coverage through new Health Insurance Exchanges. The Medicaid expansion and Exchange coverage will go fully 

into effect beginning in 2014. 

Along with increasing affordability of coverage, the ACA includes provisions to make it easy for individuals to enroll 

in coverage by requiring states to create a coordinated, simple, and technology-supported process through which 

individuals may obtain coverage through Medicaid, CHIP, and the new Exchanges. Beyond coordinating eligibility 

and enrollment, it also will be important to coordinate delivery of care across these coverage types, particularly 

since low-income individuals often have fluctuating incomes and family circumstances that may cause their 

eligibility to shift over time. 

To explore key issues related to achieving coordinated and seamless enrollment and care between Medicaid and 

the new Exchanges, the Kaiser Commission on Medicaid and the Uninsured [KCMUI convened a roundtable with 

national and state experts on August 31, 2010. This report is based on the discussion during this roundtable, 

which is the second in a series of health reform roundtables focused on implementation issues related to 

Medicaid.' 

BACKGROUND: ACA REQUIREMENTS FOR COORDINATING ENROLLMENT AND CARE 
As noted, the ACA includes requirements focused on making sure enrollment and eligibility systems for Medicaid, 

CHIP, and Exchange coverage are streamlined and integrated and utilize technology to reduce burdens on 

individuals. More specifically, the law requires: 

• Web portals through which individuals may obtain and compare information about coverage options and apply 
for coverage; 

• A single application form that is available online and may be filed on line as well as in-person, by mail, or by 
telephone and application support including "navigators· to provide education and facil.itate enrollment: 

• "No wrong door" for coverage, so that individuals are screened for all coverage options regardless of where 
they apply and enrolled without additional application forms or multiple eligibility determinations: 

• Standardized income rules using Modified Gross Income (MAGIi to determine eligibility: 

• Secure electronic data exchange that is utilized to the "maximum extent practicable" to establish, verify, and 
renew and update eligibility." 

Further, the ACA provides grants to states to support the development and implementation of these enrollment 

systems and the Secretary of HHS recently adopted a set of standards and protocols related to the development of 

these systems.' 

The following flow chart [Figure 11 illustrates an example of key steps and processes that could be incorporated 

into an integrated and automated eligibility and enrollment system. 
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Step 1: 
APPLICATION 

Step 2: 
INFORMATION 

VERIFICATION 

Step 3: 
ELIGIBILITY 

DETERMINATION 

Step 4: 
ENROLLMENT 

Step 5: 
RENEWAL AND 

RECONCILIATION 

KEY: 

System 

Figure 1: 

Example of Key Steps and Processes in an Integrated Enrollment System 

for Medicaid and Subsidized Exchange Coverage 

Individual Provides Basic Information (E.g., Income, Household, Citizenship) 

0 Community• 

Based 
Organization 0 

System verifies data from 
third-party sources as 

authorized by applicant 
(e.g., IRS, SSA, SNAP, Others) 

Applicant provides 
additional & updated 

information & 

System Screens for Eligibility in: 

Medicaid 
/CHIP 

Subsidized 
Exchange 
Coverage 

- - -
Other 

Program~ 
SNAP, 

'-~-~~·~· 

System Notifies applicant of eligibility 
determination/subsidy amount 

Enroll in Medicaid 

System retrieves 
updated information 

from third-party 
sources 

Enroll in Exchange Plan 

Enrollee provides 
updated 

information if 
necessary 

System notifies individual of redetermination 
of eligibility/subsidy amount 

Medicaid/ 
CHIP 

Renewed 

Exchange 
Coverage 
Renewed 

Coverage 
Transitioned 

Reconciliation of 
Prior Year's Subsidy 
Payments if needed 
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The requirements in the ACA for coordinating health plans and delivery systems across coverage types are more 

limited than those related to integrated eligibility and enrollment. Health plans in Exchanges must contract 

with essential community providers, who may serve as access points for the low-income population. There are 

also some requirements related to coordination of benefits. Namely, Exchange coverage must offer a specified 
·essential health benefits package· and benchmark coverage for new eligibles in Medicaid must, at a minimum, 

include the benefits in the "essential health benefits package.· 

KEY ISSUES IN ACHIEVING COORDINATED ENROLLMENT AND CARE 

As discussed by roundtable participants and presented below, there are a number of key issues states will face 

in designing and implementing a system that coordinates eligibility and enrollment and delivery of care across 

Medicaid and Exchanges. 

1. It is critical that states begin taking steps now to create an integrated and seamless eligibility and 
enrollment system for Medicaid and Exchange coverage that is supported by technology to be ready for 2014. 

Importance of Federal Guidance and Support 

States will play a key role in designing and implementing eligibility and enrollment systems that meet the ACA 

requirements. While the Medicaid expansion and subsidies for new Exchange coverage will not go fully into effect 

until 2014, states face a long lead-time associated with system upgrades, particularly since they must go through 

formal procurement processes. As such, participants commented that it is important for states to begin taking 

steps now to determine how they will integrate their Medicaid eligibility and enrollment systems with the new 

subsidized Exchange coverage and create a single, online application form that utilizes electronic datc1 matching 

and verification. 

A few states have already developed integrated, web-based enrollment systems-for example, W1scons1n has 

an online self-service tool that is fully integrated with its eligibility system and allows individuals to find out 

whether they may be eligible for Medicaid land other assistance programsl, apply for benefits, check the status 
of their benefits, renew their benefits, and report changes to keep their eligibility current. 5 The state also greatly 

streamlined its Medicaid eligibility rules, which helped support the simplicity and utility of the system." While the 

state is a leader in developing an integrated, on line system, it still faces some important limitations that prevent 

enrollment from being fully automated and slow application processing time. For example, because of a federal 

requirement that a public employee must verify eligibility, county or state workers must check each application.' 

Further, applicants must continue to submit any required documentation le.g., paystubsl by scan, fax, mail, or 

in-person. 8 

Moreover, most states remain much farther behind in terms of their technology and have a long road to travel in 
terms of developing systems that will meet the requirements of the ACA. For example, while most states have 

their Medicaid and/or CHIP application available on-line, only a little more than half have the capability for it to be 

electronically submitted and, in most of these states, applicants still must provide paper documentation. Further, 

some states still rely on archaic, paper-based systems with very limited electronic capabilities. 

Participants largely agreed that states will need substantial additional federal guidance and support to be able 

to make the necessary upgrades by 2014. It was noted that states are particularly interested in having access 

to federal templates or prototypes of systems that they could adopt. Under the ACA, the Federal government 

1s required to build and provide a federal Exchange. The federal Exchange could help serve as a framework or 

reference model for states and could be built so that it could be adopted in whole or in part by states. This would 

promote increased consistency across states and reduce redundancies in terms of development efforts and costs. 
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Further, it was pointed out that although some grant funding is available to help support system development, 

current limitations and strains among state staffs make it challenging to apply for these grants. The federal 

government is considering whether a 90% federal match las opposed to the traditional 50% administrative match) 

will be available to support eligibility system upgrades. This additional federal funding would enhance states· 

capacity to make eligibility system upgrades, 

Determining Governance and Structure of Systems 

In designing integrated systems, states will need to make decisions regarding where eligibility determinations 

for Medicaid and subsidies for Exchange coverage will be housed and which agencies, workers, and entities 

will be able to make eligibility determinations. While states already have eligibility and enrollment systems and 

processes in place for Medicaid, new systems and processes will need to be established to determine eligibility 

for premium and cost sharing subsidies for Exchange coverage. One key decision states will need to make is to 

what extent they will build on existing Medicaid eligibility systems to include Exchange coverage versus creating 

entirely new systems for Exchange coverage and Medicaid. 

A number of participants commented that some states rnay want to consider restructuring where their Medicaid 

eligibility is determined to facilitate coordination and integration with new Exchange coverage. There is significant 

variation across states today in terms of where and how eligibility is determined for Medicaid and CHIP. For 

example, in some states, Medicaid eligibility is determined through a county-based system by county workers 

at a social services agency that also does eligibility determinations for other assistance programs, such as food 

stamps or Temporary Assistance for Needy Families. In other states, eligibility is determined at a centralized 

state office. Further, some states have state workers that conduct eligibility determinations 1n county offices. Still 

other states rely on private contractors to conduct key elements of enrollment activities, particularly for CHIP. 

And, some states have eligibility determined through a combination of these options. 

Sarne states have already begun thinking about changing where their Medicaid eligibility is deter·mined in 
preparation for reform. For example, Washington is planning to move its Medicaid Administration out of the 

Department of Social and Health Services and merge it with its Health Care Authority, which administers its 

existing Basic Health coverage program for low-income adults. 9 Similarly, Michigan is considerrng moving 

eligibility determinations out of the Department of Human Services and into the Department of Community 

Health, which administers the Medicaid program, with a goal of simplifying the eligibility determination process 

and consolidating program administration. 10 

Moving health coverage eligibility determinations away from county-level social services agencies may be 

particularly important to consider, since using a centralized state eligibility system !vs. separate eligibility 

systems in each county) will facilitate integration with Exchange coverage and potentially reduce application 

processing time. For example, New York recently passed legislation to move administration of Medicaid eligibility 
determinations from the county to state level over a five-year implementation period, beginning on April 1, 2011. 11 

However, it also was noted that, in some states, considering moving determinations away from the county-level 

may be met with tension and resistance among county workers. 

Tracking "New vs. Current Eligibles" and Maintaining Current Medicaid Methodologies 

A complicating factor in developing eligrbility systems is that, under reform, states must track who is newly 

eligible for Medicaid [versus who was prevrously eligible) since the federal government will pay the majority of 

costs for newly eligible individuals. Further, whether an individual is considered "newly eligible" has implications 

for what benefits they will receive, as states can elect to provide newly eligible adults benchmark benefits that 

may differ from the traditional Medicaid benefit package." Moreover, while most Medicaid eligibility groups will 
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have eligibility determined based on MAGI under reform, there are some groups, including elderly and disabled 

individuals, who will continue to rely on current Medicaid eligibility methodologies. Participants noted that there 

are a number of unanswered questions about how states will need to continue to track these distinctions and 

whether they will need to maintain dual eligibility systems to do so. 

2. The requirement to integrate Medicaid and Exchange enrollment systems, combined with simplified 
Medicaid eligibility criteria under reform, provide a valuable opportunity for states to vastly simplify 

Medicaid enrollment processes. 

Some states have already made significant strides forward in simplifying Medicaid enrollment, for example, by 

moving to data-matching and other electronic or automated means to verify information [rather than requiring 

paper documentation I and eliminating interview requirements that are not required by federal law. However, 

other states still maintain these types of requirements, particularly for parents. Participants suggested that it 

would be beneficial for states to consider greatly simplifying their Medicaid enrollment processes as they design 

new integrated systems since Medicaid simplifications would make it easier to coordinate with Exchange coverage 

and meet other ACA enrollment-related requirements. 

Participants also commented that the ACA calls for uniformity of enrollment processes across Medicaid and 

subsidized coverage in the Exchange and specifically requires that individuals be screened for all coverage 

options regardless of where they apply and enrolled without additional application forms or multiple eligibility 

determinations. These requirements may supersede state flexibility to impose certain requirements in Medicaid, 

such as face-to-face interviews. However, it was also recognized that certain eligibility categories in Medicaid 

will continue to require different eligibility determination and enrollment procedures [such as individuals with 

disabilities or those requiring long-term care services]. 

It was noted that some states have concerns that simplifying the Medicaid eligibility and enrollment process would 

increase their error rates during federal audits. In response, it was pointed out that states such as Louisiana, 

which have implemented significant simplifications. have some of the lowest error rates in the country. It was 

also suggested that rethinking the focus of federal audits and performance measures so they are better aligned 

with the goals of the ACA could facilitate and encourage increased Medicaid streamlining efforts among states. 

3. It will be important for systems to minimize burdens on individuals by utilizing technology and existing data 
sources to obtain information. 

Consistent with the "no wrong door .. requirement, it was noted that regardless of which avenue an individual 

comes through to seek coverage, the individual should be evaluated for Medicaid, CHIP, and subsidies for 

Exchange coverage. However, participants emphasized the need to strike a balance of asking enough information 

to determine eligibility without making the process complex, burdensome, or intrusive, particularly given the 

broad income range of people that will be seeking coverage through the Exchange. The Exchange will be utilized 

as an entry point to coverage for people at all income levels-some will be eligible for tax credits to offset 

premium and cost sharing amounts of Exchange coverage, some will be eligible for Medicaid or CHIP, and some 

won't be eligible for assistance but will still purchase coverage through the Exchange. 

Overall, it was largely agreed that eligibility and enrollment systems should be designed to obtain enough 

information to determine eligibility for the "majority" of individuals applying for coverage, but that additional 

processes and enrollment supports will need to be in place for individuals with special circumstances. In fact, 

the legislation requires that individuals have access to meaningful application support and alternatives to the 

on-line application are available. Further, it was recognized that it will be important to make sure individuals 

are fully informed about and understand the determination process and final enrollment decisions to assure due 

THE KAISER COMMISSION ON l\·1ED[CAID AND THE UNINSURED 7 



• 

process requirements are met. Participants also highlighted the importance of enrolling individuals in the correct 

coverage category since a set of rights and their premium costs, benefits, and cost sharing will flow from their 

eligibility determination. 

Determining Income 

Under health reform, assistance will be available to individuals with income up to 400% FPL and eligibility for both 

Medicaid and subsidies in the Exchange will be based on MAGI, which is defined by the Internal Revenue Code and 

captured through the Internal Revenue Service when individuals file income taxes. Moving to MAGI standardizes 

and simplifies income eligibility across states and between Medicaid and subsidized Exchange coverage. 

However, tax data may be lagged by as long as two years and, over that period, individuals may have a change in 

income or circumstances that affects their Medicaid eligibility and/or the level of financial assistance they qualify 

for under Exchange coverage. Further, not all individuals will have filed taxes and, within Medicaid, there will 

remain some non-MAGI groups (including elderly and disabled individuals) whose eligibility will continue to be 

based on current Medicaid methodologies. 

Given these issues and that the law requires Medicaid eligibility to be based on current income and HHS to 

establish guidelines for Exchange coverage to gather more recent income information for people who have 

experienced a change in circumstances, participants noted that processes will need to be established to collect 

more current information from applicants. Doing so will be vital for assuring that individuals can be screened 
for Medicaid eligibility and that they receive the appropriate level of subsidies and/or cost-sharing reductions for 

Exchange coverage. Participants cautioned that it will be important for this process to remain simple and for any 

documentation requirements to be clearly specified to the applicant in an easily understood manner. 

Moving to MAGI also changes how households are defined and family size is calculated. For example, today, 

Medicaid often excludes step-parent and grandparent income that would be counted in the MAGI household 

definition of income. Further, participants pointed out that individuals generally perceive their household as all 

individuals with whom they live, which is very different from the tax definition of household used for MAGI. As 

such, it was noted that it will be important to clearly communicate to individuals who can be counted as part of 

their household and collect the necessary information to determine their household size and income. 

Several participants commented that not every person coming to the Exchange to purchase coverage would be 

eligible for or interested in receiving assistance, and some of these individuals might find any income-related 

questions to be intrusive or off-putting. A suggestion was made to create an initial screening question or process 

that would enable individuals to purchase coverage through the Exchange without having to answer any income
related questions if they were not interested in applying for a subsidy. It was further noted that if any of these 

individuals are eligible for premium subsidies, they would receive credits after filing their tax return. 

Automating Data Collection and Express Lane Eligibility 

There was consensus among participants that utilizing existing federal and state databases to obtain and verify 

as much eligibility information as possible and automate enrollment would go a long way in simplifying the 

process and making it easier for individuals. It also reduces burdens on eligibility workers and can speed up the 

processing time of applications. 

It was recognized that states can already move forward with developing these processes for children, since, under 

the Children's Health Insurance Program Reauthorization Act, they can implement "Express Lane Eligibility" 

initiatives that draw on other data sources to identify and automatically enroll eligible but uninsured children in 

Medicaid and CHIP. However, this authority does not currently extend to adults. It was noted that it would likely 

8 THE KAISER COMMISSION ON IVlEDICAID AND TIIE UNINSURED 



• 

• 

be advantageous to expand Express Lane Eligibility authority to include adults since adults will comprise the bulk 

of those newly eligible for Medicaid and many states will be faced with processing a large volume of new adult 

enrollees following implementation of the expansion. Further, many of the adults who will become newly eligible 

for Medicaid are likely enrolled in the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program [SNAP, formerly Food Stamps]. 

As such, providing Express Lane Eligibility authority that would allow states to borrow data from SNAP to conduct 
Medicaid eligibility determinations for adults could offer a highly effective and efficient strategy for states to reach 

and enroll newly eligible adults. 

4. Seamless and automatic renewals of and transitions between coverage will be vital components of 
integrated eligibility and enrollment systems. 

Beyond issues associated with establishing income and eligibility when individuals irntially apply for coverage, 

participants also noted that there are questions that need to be addressed with regard to capturing and managing 
changes in income and eligibility over time, including when and how changes in income will be collected. 

Assuring there are simple and effective processes to collect updated income and other eligibility information will 

be key for preventing disruptions in coverage and making sure that individuals receive the appropriate coverage 

and amount of financial assistance at the right time. 

Using Data Exchange to Automate Renewals and Coverage Transitions 

It was recognized that, within Medicaid, utilizing electronic data exchanges to obtain updated information and 

automatically renew coverage has been an extremely effective and efficient way to help individuals maintain 
coverage. For example, in Louisiana, children are automatically renewed for coverage based on information 
available through other programs and data sources [e.g., SNAP, child support, tax information) or if their case 

meets specified criteria. 11 As a result of this initiative, the state has almost completely eliminated losses in 

coverage at renewal due to procedural reasons. 14 

It also was stressed that it will be important to develop a process that facilitates seamless. automatic transitions 

between coverage, particularly since a number of low-income individuals have changing circumstances and 

income that may cause their eligibility to shift over time. Past experience with Medicaid and CHIP suggests 

that transitions in coverage work best when a single, unified agency conducts eligibility determinations for 

both coverage programs. When transitions occur across different agencies, there is a risk that people will lose 

coverage during the transition. 

Although transitions work best when eligibility for both programs is housed within a single agency, participants 

noted that there are some best practices that can be drawn on from Medicaid and CHIP for transitioning coverage 

between agencies. For example. in Alabama, the Department of Public Health, which administers its separate 
CHIP program ··ALL Kids,·· and the Alabama Medicaid Agency have created a collaborative working relationship 

and taken steps to align eligibility rules, although some important differences remain." The state facilitates 

coordination and transfers of coverage between Medicaid and ALL Kids through an electronic data exchange 

system that passes applications back and forth between the two programs on a nightly basis. 16 (However, a signed 

paper for must also be transferred before eligibility can be determined, which adds to the processing time for 

referred applications.) 11 Further, each agency has staff devoted to processing cases transferred from the other 

program.18 

Similarly, Pennsylvania has an on line application system, COMPASS, that provides a bridge between Medicaid, 
CHIP, and its state-funded adultBasic program for low-income adults by transferring data between the 

Department of Public Welfare, which administers Medicaid, and the state Insurance Department, which 
administers CHIP and adultBasic. This ··Healthcare Handshake· automatically transfers data not only at the point 
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of application but also when an enrollee loses eligibility in one program but may qualify for another. 19 As part of 

the Handshake, the "losing agency" provides a fully populated application with all the information needed to make 

an eligibility determination to the ··gaining agency," without requiring any action by the individual or family." The 

transaction takes seconds and the individual is enrolled in the new program at the earliest date possible. 21 

As part of a process of transitioning individuals between coverage programs, it will be important for states to 

track the success of their transitions or referrals between programs. It also will be imperative to incorporate 

processes to educate individuals about their coverage changes, for example, by informing them about why and 

how their coverage changed and how their premium and cost sharing amounts, covered benefits, and health plan 

and provider networks are affected. 

Another issue that was raised was that Medicaid provides retroactive coverage [i.e., covering health costs for the 

three months prior to the date of enrollment I, while Exchange coverage is provided on a prospective basis [i.e., 

beginning on the first of the month following enrollment!. It will be important to address this timing issue so that 

it does not create gaps in coverage as a person moves from Medicaid to Exchange coverage. Extending Medicaid 

through the end of the month after disenrollment was one suggestion made to prevent such gaps. 

Stabilizing Coverage for Adults in Medicaid by Allowing Continuous Eligibility 

Similar to employer-sponsored coverage today, enrollment in Exchange coverage will be based on an annual 

open enrollment period, although eligibility for premium and cost sharing subsidies may vary throughout the 

year based on any changes in income or family circumstances. However, currently, there is significant variation 

across states and population groups in terms of enrollment periods for Medicaid. Many states have a 12-month 
enrollment period for their Medicaid program, meaning that applicants only need to renew coverage annually . 

However, if enrollees experience a change in income or circumstances within that period they would be expected 

to report that change and would be disenrolled if the change made them ineligible. Further, some states require 

more frequent !e.g., 6-monthl Medicaid redeterminations, particularly for parents. 

States have the option to provide 12-month continuous eligibility to children in Medicaid and CHIP, meaning that 

children remain eligible for an entire year regardless of changes in income. However, states do not have an 

option to provide this continuous eligibility to adults after 2014. Participants generally concurred that providing 

continuous eligibility would help would minimize the frequency and burden of reporting income data and 

frequent transitions in coverage that increase risks of coverage gaps or disruptions in access to care. Minimizing 

transitions in coverage through continuous eligibility would also enhance the ability of health plans to manage and 

coordinate care for enrollees. 

5. Developing processes and systems that facilitate continuous care across coverage types will also be 
important. 

As noted, the legislative requirements around coordinating benefits and health plans between Medicaid and 

the Exchange are limited. The primary requirement is that an essential health benefits package be created for 

Exchange coverage and that benchmark coverage for "new eligibles·· in Medicaid must, at a minimum, provide the 

essential health benefits. 

A few participants suggested that having similar benefit packages for plans in Medicaid and the Exchange would 

help facilitate coordinated care. Further, the question of whether benchmark coverage for ··new eligibles·· in 

Medicaid should look more like commercial coverage was raised, although concerns were expressed as to how 

this would impact individuals with significant health needs who may not qualify as disabled but still require more 

services than those typically included in a commercial plan. Also, it was noted that the more significant the 

10 THE KAISER COMMISSION ON MEDICAID ANll THE UNIN"Sljl{J.:l) 



• 

differences are for benefits for "new eligibles" versus "current eligibles," the more important it will be for a state 

to continue to make the distinction as to which individuals are "newly eligible." Another topic raised was to what 

extent states should work to ensure that some plans participate in both the Medicaid and Exchange markets, for 
example, by providing incentives or utilizing selective contracting processes. However, it was noted that many 

Medicaid managed care plans may find it difficult to operate in the Exchange since they are smaller and/or are not 

set up to operate in a commercial market. 

The discussion also included broader questions about whether it would be advisable to group the Small Business 

Heath Options Program (SHOP) and individual Exchange markets together along with the Medicaid population. 

While some cautioned that this would be difficult and cause complexities, others commented that it will be 

important to think about creating and utilizing purchasing power by combining groups under a single governance. 

CONCLUSION 

In conclusion, beyond expanding coverage to millions of currently uninsured. the ACA envisions and establishes 

requirements to create a continuum of coverage with a coordinated and seamless enrollment process supported 

by technology. It also will be important to assure that care is coordinated and continuous across coverage 

types. To achieve the goal of coordinated coverage and care, a number of challenges must be addressed, but 

the requirement to create modernized and integrated systems provides an important opportunity for states to 

greatly simplify their Medicaid eligibility and enrollment processes and make large-scale system upg,·ades that 

make better use of technology and reduce burdens for both individuals and eligibility workers. The roundtable 

discussion emphasized that it will be important for states to begin taking steps now to have systems in place 

by 2014. Further, participants stressed the importance of immediate federal guidance and increased fede,·al 

financial support to advance state efforts . 

THE KAISER COMMISSION ON MEDICAID AND THE UNINSURED 11 



ttfEALTfl 'RHORM ROUNDTAIILES: CHARTING. A COURSE FORWARD , --.. ·~---""~ .. -~·------------·---------------·----~----------

• ENDNOTES 
1 A standard 5% of income disregard will be used to determine Medicaid eligibility, raising the effective income limit to 138% FPL. 
1 Artiga, S., Rudowitz. R., and B. Lyons, "Expanding Coverage to Adults through Medicaid Under Health Reform," Health Reform Roundtable!;: 

Charting o Course Forward," The Kaiser Commission on Medicaid and the Uninsured, September 2010 . 

. i Morrow, M. and J. Paradise, "Explaining Health Reform: Building Enrollment Systems that Meet the Expectations of the Affordable Care 
Act," The Henry J. Kaiser Family Foundation, October 2010. 

These stc1ndarrls focus on creating an eligibility and enrollment system that featlires a transparent, undcrstandablt! and easy to use 
online process that enables consumers to make informed decisions about applying for ,1nd m;inaging benefits: accommodates a range of 
user capabilities, languages, and access considerations: offers seamless integration between private and public insurance options: also 
connects individuals with other services and need-based programs le.g., SNAP, TANF); and provides stron9 privacy and security protections 
""Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, Section 1561 Recommendations,·· The Office of the Nat1on.1! Coordinntor for He.11th Information 
Technology, September 17, 2010, http:/ /healthit.hhs.gov/portal/server.pt?open=S 12& rnode=2&obj1D=3161. 

··w1sconsin·s ACCESS Internet Porto1l.·· Optimizing Medicaid Enrollment: Spollighl on Technology, The Kaiser Commission on Medicaid c.1nd 
the Uninsured, for·thcorning. 

Ibid. 

!bid. 

Ibid 

Kellar, E., et al. "Staying on Top of Health Reform: An Early Look at Workforce Chal!engcs in Five States." The Henry J. Kaiser F;imily 
Foundation, September 2010 

' 0 lb+d 
11 ··ueutenant Governor's Report on Controlling Increases in the Cost of New York Medicaid,·· September 20, 2010; "Right Dose of Oversight 

Needed to Control N.Y.'s Medicaid Costs,"' Observations, The Nelson A. Rockefeller Institute of Government, October 2010, http://www. 
roe kin st. org/ obscrvati ons/burkcc/2010-1 0-r ig ht_d osc_ oversight .a spx 

·, Essential health benefits are the benefits that rnust be provided to people signing up for Exchange plans or coverage in the individual or 
small group insurance market, beginning in 2014. The Secretary of Health and Human Services is charged with defining essential health 
benefits. 

) Brooks. T., "'The Louisiana Experience: Successful Steps to Improve Retention in Mediciid and SCHIP," fh0 Georgetown Univer·sity Henlth 
Policy Institute Center for Children and Families. Fcbruury 2009, 

'•• Ibid 

:s Kellcnbcr·g, R .. Duchan, L., and E. Ellis, ··Maximizing Enrollment in Alab.:imcl: Hcsutts from a Diagnostic Ac>'.>css11w11t of the Stiltc·s 
Enrollment and Retention Systems for Kids," A Maximizing Enrollment for Kids Diagnostic Assessment Scr·ies. National Acuderny for Sl<itc 
Health Policy and the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, February 2010. 

•
0 Ibid . 

. , Ibid 

·; Ibid. 

··i Morrow, 8., "Emerging l·lea\\h Information Technology for Children in Medicaid and SCHIP Programs."" [-health Snapshot, The Kaiser 
Commission on Medicaid and the Uninsured and The Children·s Partnership, November 2008. 

2~ !bid . 

.,, Ibid, 

This brief was prepared by Samantha Artiga, Robin Rudowitz, and Barbara Lyons of the Kaiser Family Foundation·s 
Commission on Medicaid and the Uninsured. The Commission extends its deep appreciation to the officials and experts 
who generously shared their valuable expertise, experience, and insights and its thanks to Deborah Bachrach of Bachrach 
Health Strategies, LLC for her help in organizing the roundtable. 

This publication 1#81181 is available on the Kaiser Family Foundation·s website at www.kff.org. 



• 

• 

1_:..i.,11: 111'_~>~.Y.J 

KAISER 
FAMILY 

AUGUST 2010 

EXPLAINING HEALTH REFORM: 
Eligibility and Enrollment Processes For Medicaid, CHIP, and Subsidies 
in the Exchanges 

On March 23, 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act IACA) became law, requiring most U.S. 

citizens and legal residents to have health insurance and establishing a state-based system of health benefit 

Exchanges through which individuals can purchase coverage, with financial support for those between 133-400% 

of the federal poverty level, and expanding Medicaid eligibility to those with income below that level. A number 

of provisions in the ACA require states to design and operate coordinated, technology-supported enrollment 

processes to assist Americans who lack access to affordable employer-based coverage in obtaining health 

coverage through Medicaid, the Children's Health Insurance Program [CHIP), or the Exchange. The law requires 

states to develop consumer-friendly application processes for these health subsidy programs, coordinate across 
them to enable seamless transitions, and reduce the burdens of application and renewal by minimizing the 

up-front information and documentation required to establish eligibility and instead developing procedures that 
tap available data from other sources. 

The accompanying chart summarizes and provides highlights of the legislative language from ACA regarding 

the main enrollment provisions, particularly those of relevance to low- and moderate-income families. These 

provisions require enrollment systems that are: 

Consumer-friendly: ACA requires states to create enrollment systems that ensure that applicants are screened 

for all available health subsidy programs and enrolled in the appropriate program, with minimal collection of 

information and documentation from applicants. 

Coordinated: ACA requires states to coordinate efforts across available health subsidy programs to enable 
seamless transitions between those programs. 

Simplified: ACA requires states to operate a streamlined enrollment process and foster administrative 

simplification, using uniform income rules and forms as well as paperless verification procedures. 

Technology-enabled: ACA requires states to operate enrollment Web portals and securely exchange and utilize 

data to support the eligibility determination. In addition, ACA directs the Secretary of Health and Human Services 
to establish standards and protocols for electronic enrollment and eligibility systems, to allow for significantly 

improved streamlining and cross-agency capabilities. 

With the passage of health reform, the United States has begun to build a culture of coverage, laying the 

foundation for this culture shift through new health coverage options, protections, and subsidies, as well as 

through provisions that promote individual responsibility. The first stone in this foundation has been laid with the 

July 1, 2010 launch of a federal informational Internet portal ihttp://www.healthcare.gov) that will ultimately have 

significant operational capabilities. Further, ACA tasks states with constructing an enrollment system that assists 

people in understanding their choices and helps them obtain and keep appropriate health coverage. In order to 

achieve the optimal enrollment process, with the technology that can support it, states need to begin planning and 
developing their policies, procedures, and systems right away, to ensure deployment by 2014. 



• CONSUMER-FRIENDLY 

Summary Section Specifics 
Helps consumers § 1103 The Secretary of Health and Human Services [Secretary) will create, operate, 
understand their and update an Internet portal to help consumers identify and compare 
options available affordable coverage options, including Medicaid and CHIP. The portal 

was launched July 1, 2010: http://www.healthcare.gov/. 
It will be fully functional as of October 1, 2010. 

§ 1311icll5l The Secretary will also design, for use by the Exchanges, a model template for 
an Internet portal that will assist individuals in "determining whether they are 
eligible to participate in an Exchange or eligible for a premium tax credit or 
cost-sharing reduction," among other functions. 

Helps families § 2201 States are required to operate an Internet website that links the Exchange, 
apply online [New §1943[bl Medicaid, and CHIP [as relevant). These websites shall allow individuals to 

[11 of the Social compare available health subsidy programs and apply for or renew such 
Security Act !SSA)] coverage. State websites shall be in operation by January 1, 2014. 

~ --~ .. -- -- --~-·--
Provides § 1413 The Secretary is required to develop a single, streamlined form that States 
for a single, can use for all those applying on the b.1sis of income to c.1pplic.:iblc StiJtc hc.:ilth 
streamlined subsidy programs and that can be filed by an applicant online, in person, by 
application form mail or phone. Applicable state health subsidy programs include: premium 

tax credits and cost-sharing reductions in the Exchange, Medicaid, CHIP, and 
§ 1331 state qualified basic health plans. 

States can develop their own single, streamlined form as an alternative to the 
Secretary's form as long as it meets the same standards. 

• 
For applicants not applying on the basis of income, such as foster children Jnd 
SSI beneficiaries, states may use a supplemental or alternative form. 

Reduces § 1413lbll21 Individuals filing the single form "shall receive notice of eligibility for 
administrative an applicable State health subsidy program without any need to provide 
burdens on additional information or paperwork unless ... information provided on the form 
applicants is inconsistent with data used for the electronic verification ... or is otherwise 

insufficient to determine eligibility ... 

§ 2002\al No asset test will be applied in Medicaid for individuals whose income is 
calculated using modified ad1usted gross income (MAGI), including parents 
and other non-elderly adults as well as children. 

Expands § 2202 At state option, all hospitals participating in a state Medicaid program can 
presumptive grant presumptive eligibility to all Medicaid eligible populations !not only 
eligibility pregnant women and children!. This option is effective January 1, 2014. 
for Medicaid 
applicants 

Provides §1311\il Exchanges will set up a Navigator grant program to provide fair and impartial. 
assistance to help culturally and linguistically appropriate information concerning enrollment in 
consumers obtain qualified health plans and available subsidies through the Exchange, facilitate 
coverage enrollment in qualified health plans, and provide referrals for complaints. 

§ 2201 In addition, states will establish procedures for conducting outreach and 
[New SSA §1943[b) providing enrollment assistance to vulnerable and underserved populations 
l111Fll eligible for Medicaid and CHIP. 

• 
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• COORDINATED 
Summary Section Specifics 

Requires § 2201 Requires, as a condition of Federal financial assistance [i.e., federal Medicaid 
coordination [New SSA§ 1943 matching funds! beginning January 1, 2014, that states establish streamlined 
between Exchanges, [al and [bl) application and renewal procedures that: 
Medicaid, and CHIP • Enable individuals to apply for, be enrolled in, or renew Medicaid coverage 
so that there is no through an Internet website that is linked to the Exchange website: 
wrong door into 

• "Enroll ... without any further determination by the State and through such coverage 
website, individuals who are identified by an Exchange ... as being eligible 
for" Medicaid or CHIP: 

• Ensure that individuals found ineligible for Medicaid or CHIP are screened 
for the Exchange and any applicable premium assistance and, if eligible, 
"enrolled in such a plan without having to submit an additional or separate 
application" and receive information regarding reduced cost-sharing and 
any other assistance or subsidies that are available through the Exchange. 

§ 131 l(al and The Secretary will award states Exchange ··planning and establishment" 
(dll4IIFI grants by March 23, 2011, which may be renewed until January 1, 2015. 

Planning and establishment must ensure that the Exchange has the ability, 
among other specified functions, to inform individuals about Medicaid, CHIP, 
··or any applicable State or local public program,"· screen their application, 
and enroll such individuals in any of those programs as appropriate. 

Medicaid and CHIP § 2201 A Medicaid or CHIP agency can enter an agreement with an Exchange to 
agencies may [New SSA determine eligibility for premium assistance if the agreement "meets such 
determine eligibility § 1943(bll211 conditions and requirements as the Secretary of the Treasury may prescribe 

• 
for premium tax to reduce administrative costs and the likelihood of eligibility errors and 
credits disruptions in coverage." 

• 
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SIMPLIFIED 

Summary 

• 

Increases 
uniformity in 
income rules for 
all health subsidy 
programs 

Standardizes 
information 
required to 
establish eligibility 
for individual 
coverage, financial 
assistance, or 
exemption from 
individual mandate 

Requires 
paperless 
verification and 
determination 
processes for the 
Exchange 

Section 
§ 2002 
§ 2101[dl 

§ 1411 [bl 

§ 1411icl 

Maximizes role of § 14131cl 

• 

data-matching to 
support eligibility 
determination 
processes 

4 

Specifics . 
Modified adjusted gross income [MAGIi will be used to determine eligibility for 
all subsidized health programs. MAGI is defined in§ 1401 [newly added 
§ 36B[dll21 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19861. 

• A standard 5% income disregard will be used to determine Medicaid 
eligibility. 

• Provides exceptions to the use of MAGI, including when eligibility is 
determined for elderly individuals. dual eligibles, medically needy 
individuals, and those for whom eligibility is based on receipt of other aid 
!such as 551 and foster care assistance] and when an income finding has 
been made by an Express Lane agency. 

All applicants to the Exchange in the individual market will provide, 

• Name, address, date of birth IDOBI. 

• Citizenship [attestation and social security number (SSN]l or immigration 
status (attestation, SSN, identifying information as determined by Secretary 
and Homeland Security). 

Individuals applying for a premium tax credit and/or cost-sharing reduction, 
or for exemption from the individual mandate, must also supply the following 
information: 

• Information about income and family size. This can be supplied by the tax 
return, pursuant to§ 1414. 

• As applicable, information related to changes in circumstances. 

• As applicable, information about available employer coverage. 

The Secretary shall provide that verifications and determinations of eligibility 
for participation in the Exchange, premium tax credits, and cost-sharing 
reductions, and eligibility for exemptions from the individual mandate are done 
electronically or by checking information submitted against federal records. 

The Secretary can modify the required verification methods if doing so will 
"reduce the administrative costs and burdens on the applicant." One possible 
modification specifically mentioned in ACA is the possibility of allowing an 
applicant to request the Secretary of the Treasury to provide information 
directly to the Exchange or Secretary. 

··Each applicable State health subsidy program shall participate in a data 
matching arrangement for determining eligibility for participation .. · Using 
the data matching arrangement, each health subsidy program shall, to the 
maximum extent practicable: 

··Iii establish, verify, and update eligibility for participation in the program 
using the data matching arrangement ... ; and 

[iii determine such eligibility on the basis of reliable, third party data .. 
obtained through such arrangement." 

An exception applies if the Secretary determines that '"the administrative and 
other costs of use in the data matching arrangement ... outweigh its expected 
gains in accuracy, efficiency, and program participation." 

The data matching program will apply only to individuals who receive 
assistance from a health subsidy program or who apply for such assistance 
by filing the single, streamlined application form or by requesting an eligibility 
determination and authorizing disclosure of information required for that 
purpose . 
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• TECHNOLOGY-ENABLED 
Summary Section Specifics 

i 

• 

Maximizes role § 1413 
of the Internet • § 2201 
for purposes of 
application and 
enrollment 

, __ -----
Provides for §14131cl 
secure electronic § 2201 
exchange of data 

Creates I § 1561 
information 
technology 
standards 
and protocols 
to facilitate 
electronic 
enrollment I 

' 

Individuals will have access to an Internet website through which they can 
apply for and renew coverage on line using the single, streamlined application 
for all health subsidy programs. Through the website, applicants who are 
eligible for Medicaid, CHIP, and premium tax credits or other subsidies 
through the Exchange will be ~.~le.tc,_compare t~.:i.~.options " __ ., ___ 

Requires states to securely exchange data to determine eligibility ... Each state 
shall develop for all applicable health subsidy programs a secure, electronic 
interface allowing an exchange of data [including information contained in 
the application forms ... ) that allows a determination of eligibility for all such 
progrums based on a single application.·· 

The Secretary shall establish standards and protocols for electronic 
enrollment that allow for the following, 

(11 "Electronic matching against existing Federal and State data, including 
vital records, employment history, enrollment systems, tax records, and 
other data determined appropriate by the Secretary to serve as evidence of 
eligibility and in lieu of paper-based documentation ... 

(21 "Simplification and submission of electronic documentation, digitization of 
documents, and systems verification of eligibility.·· 

(31 "Reuse of stored eligibility information .. to assist with retention .. ·· 

(41 ··capability for individuals to apply, recertify and manage their eligibility 
information ontine ..... 

(51 "Ability to expand the enrollment system to integrate new programs, 
rules, and functionalities, to operate at increased volume, and to apply 
streamlined verification and eligibility processes to other Federal and State 
programs, as appropriate." 

I (61 "Other functionalities" necessary to streamline the process for applicants. 

Provides for grants to states and local1t1es to develop or adapt ex1st1ng 
systems to meet the new standards and protocols. More broadly, the 
Secretary ··shall notify'. states about these standards and procedures 
and "may require, as a condition of receiving Federal funds for the health 
information technology investments. that States or other entities incorporJte 
su~ .. h -~~':-~~-~_rds -~nd P!·otocols int~- such investments." 

This brief was prepared by Beth Morrow of The Children's Partnership and Julia Paradise of the Kaiser Family 
Foundation·s Commission on Medicaid and the Uninsured. 

For further information about ACA, beyond its enrollment provisions, 
please go to the Kaiser Family Foundation·s Health Reform site, at: httpJ/healthreform.kff.org/. 

This publication (#80901 is available on the Kaiser Family Foundation's website at www.kff.org. 
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11.8110.01001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Keiser 

January 27, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

Page 1, line 2, after the second semicolon insert "to provide for application;" 

Page 2, after line 20, insert: 

"SECTION 3. APPLICATION. In carrying out the requirements of this Act, the 
insurance commissioner shall provide regular updates to the legislative management 
during the 2011-12 interim. In determining, planning, and implementing an American 
health benefit exchange for the state, the commissioner shall submit proposed 
legislation to the legislative management for consideration at a special legislative 
session if the commissioner is required by federal law to take any action by January 1, 
2013. For any plan, program, or requirement that must be implemented between 
January 1, 2013, and January 1, 2014, the commissioner shall submit proposed 
legislation to the legislative management before October 15, 2012." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 11.8110.01001 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

Page 2, after line 2, insert: 

"Q,. Collaborate with the department of human services to ensure the 
American health benefit exchange incorporates a seamless eligibility and 
enrollment process for individuals eligible for medicaid and the children's 
health insurance program." 

Page 2, after line 20, insert: 

"SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION- DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN 
SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $15,555,543, and from 
special funds derived from federal funds and other income, the sum of 
$27,062,382, to the department of human services for the purpose of defraying 
the expenses of incorporating the medicaid and children's health insurance 
program eligibility determination functionality into the American health benefit 
exchange created under this Act, and for the purpose of defraying the 
corresponding costs related to the modification of the department's economic 
assistance eligibility system for the biennium beginning July 1, 2011, and ending 
June 30, 2013." 

Renumber accordingly 

Proposed amendment to 11.8110.01000 



February 1, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1126 

Page 2, line 16, replace "The commissioner may seek emergency commission and 
budget section approval" with "There is hereby appropriated the sum of 
$33,764,517, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from federal and 
other funds, to the insurance commissioner for the purposes provided in section 
1 of this Act, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and 
ending June 30, 2013. The insurance commissioner is authorized 4.0 additional 
full-time equivalent positions for the purposes provided in section 1 of this Act." 

Page 2, remove lines 17 through 20 

Renumber accordingly 
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February 1, 2011 

TESTIMONY 

Good morning committee members. My name is Adam Hamm, North Dakota Insurance 

Commissioner. I appear before you today in support of House Bill No. 1126. 

The purpose of the bill is to allow you to decide whether it is best for North Dakota, 

rather than the federal government, to run the health benefit exchange required by the 

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act also known as "federal health care reform", 

or "PPACA". I will refer to this law as "PPACA". 

What is an Exchange? 

By January 1, 2014, PPACA requires each state to establish a state-based American 

Health Benefit Exchange and a Small Business Health Options Program (SHOP) 

Exchange. These exchanges will be online marketplaces where individuals and small 

businesses can shop for health plans in a way that permits comparison of available plan 

options based on price, benefits and services, and quality. A state may elect to provide 

for only one state exchange that would provide both American Health Benefit Exchange 

services and SHOP Exchange services. 
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• Exchanges will allow people to compare health plans and determine which one is best 

for them. Health plans will be placed in tiers based on out-of-pocket costs, which allows 

consumers to compare plans on an apples-to-apples basis. All plans sold in the 

exchange are offered by private insurance companies. There is no government-run 

plan or public insurance option. 

An exchange must also assist eligible individuals to receive premium tax credits or 

coverage through other federal or state health care programs such as Medicaid and the 

Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP). Individuals whose household income 

does not exceed 400 percent of the poverty line will receive subsidies through the 

exchange according to a sliding scale. By providing one-stop shopping, exchanges are 

theoretically supposed to increase competition in the marketplace and make purchasing 

health insurance easier and more understandable for consumers. 

If North Dakota does not run its own exchange, the United States Department of Health 

and Human Services ("HHS") will. By January 1, 2013, HHS must determine whether 

the state will have an exchange in operation by January 1, 2014. If it determines that 

the state will not have an operational exchange by then, HHS is required to establish 

and operate the exchange within that state. The federal government will work with the 

Governor of the state as the Chief Executive Officer unless authority to operate the 

exchange has been delegated to a specific authority through state law. 

What Does This Bill Do? 

At its most basic level, this bill puts the following questions before you: 

1. Do you want the federal government or the state to run the North Dakota 

exchange? 

2. If you want the state to run its own exchange, who do you want to run it? 
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3. If the state will run its exchange, what resources do you want the 

responsible agency to have in order to build and operate the exchange? 

To be clear, this bill is not an endorsement of PPACA or the wisdom or effectiveness of 

exchanges. It is the means by which these issues are being brought before you so that 

the Legislative Assembly may decide whether it is in North Dakota's best interest to run 

its own exchange or to let the federal government do so. 

Who Can Run An Exchange? 

States have the option to establish the exchange as a governmental agency or nonprofit 

entity. Within the governmental agency category, the exchange could be housed within 

an existing state agency or a newly created, independent state agency. Alternatively, 

the exchange could be operated by a nonprofit entity. If none of these entities run the 

state's exchange, the federal government will take over that responsibility. 

What Functions Must an Exchange Perform? 

Exchanges must perform a lengthy list of functions. These functions should be taken 

into consideration when deciding which entity is best to run the exchange and the 

resources needed by that entity. At a minimum, an exchange must: 

• Implement procedures for the certification, recertification, and decertification of 

health plans as qualified health plans; 

• Provide for the operation of a toll-free telephone hotline to respond to assistance 

requests; 

• Maintain an internet website through which enrollees and prospective enrollees 

of qualified health plans may obtain standardized comparative information on 

health plans; 
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• • Assign a rating to each qualified health plan offered through the exchange; 

• Use a standardized format for presenting health benefits plan options in the 

exchange, including the use of the uniform outline of coverage; 

• Inform individuals of eligibility requirements for Medicaid, CHIP, or any applicable 

state or local public program, and, if through screening of the individual's 

application by the exchange, it determines that such individuals are eligible for 

any such program, enroll such individuals in such program; 

• Establish and make available by electronic means a calculator to determine the 

actual cost of coverage after the application of any premium tax credit and any 

cost-sharing reduction available under PPACA; 

• Grant certification attesting that, for purposes of the individual responsibility 

penalty, an individual is exempt from the individual requirement or from the 

penalty imposed because he or she meets one of the exceptions provided in 

PPACA; 

• Transfer to the Secretary of the Treasury a list of individuals who are issued 

certification of penalty exemption, the name and taxpayer identification number of 

each individual who was an employee of an employer but who was determined to 

be eligible for the premium tax credit because the employer did not provide 

minimum essential coverage or the employer provided the minimum essential 

coverage but it was either unaffordable or did not provide the required minimum 

actuarial value, and the name and taxpayer identification number of each 

individual who notifies the exchange that they have changed employers and of 

each individual who ceases coverage under a qualified health plan during a plan 

year; 
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• • Provide each employer with the name of each of its employees who ceases 

coverage under a qualified health plan during a plan year and the effective date 

of such cessation; and 

• Establish a Navigator program. 7 

There are some areas where the state has choices. Federal rules will clarify that the 

following policy areas, among others, are state decisions, although HHS may offer 

recommendations and technical assistance to states as they make these decisions: 

• Whether to form the exchange as a governmental agency or a nonprofit entity. 

• Whether to form regional exchanges or establish interstate coordination for 

certain functions. 

• Whether to require additional benefits in the exchange beyond the essential 

health benefits (mandates). 

• Whether to establish a competitive bidding process for plans. 

• Whether to extend some or all exchange-specific regulations to the outside 

insurance market beyond what is required in PPACA. 

• What additional types of services the exchange might provide to individuals and 

business to ensure simple and fast service. 

If you believe that it would be better for the state to run its own exchange, certain things 

have to be accomplished by deadlines set out in PPACA. As I already noted, states 

must be on track for achieving certification of their exchange by January 1, 2013, or the 

federal government will run the _exchange. And the exchange must be operating no 

later than January 1, 2014. Establishment of an exchange requires a planning process 
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to create an exchange that will meet all the requirements of PPACA. Anyone who is 

even somewhat familiar with a complex information technology (IT) project can 

recognize how short this timeframe is, especially given that most of the functionality 

required does not exist in North Dakota's state government or in any other entity 

currently operating in our state. 

This bill would require the Commissioner to plan and implement the exchange for the 

state. The bill would ensure that the exchange facilitates the purchase of qualified 

health benefit plans, provides for the establishment of a small business health options 

program, and meets the exchange requirements of PPACA generally. 

What Does the Commissioner Do if the State Runs the Exchange? 

In order to plan and implement a North Dakota exchange, the bill assigns the following 

duties to the Commissioner: 

• To take actions necessary to ensure that the exchange is determined, not later 

than January 1, 2013, by the federal government to be ready to operate not later 

than January 1, 2014. 

• To consider whether to seek federal grant funds for the planning and 

implementation of the exchange. 

• To determine whether to establish one exchange that will provide services to 

both qualified individuals and qualified small employers or to have two separate 

exchanges. 

• To contract with outside entities, if necessary, to provide services to implement 

the exchange. ? 

• To adopt rules, if necessary or desirable, to carry out the provisions of the bill. 
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Exchanges will require complex and particular IT systems and other business 

operations to perform the functions required. Since the exchange will have to work with 

other state and federal agencies, for example, to fulfill its duty to determine tax credits 

and enroll eligible individuals in Medicaid and CHIP, the bill requires state agencies to 

cooperate with the Commissioner to ensure the success of the exchange. At this time, 

the IT systems of the agencies likely to be involved in the exchange do not have the 

ability to communicate and exchange data with each other. 

Because exchanges are also required to report certain information to other entities such 

as the United States Secretary of the Treasury, the bill allows the Commissioner to 

receive from, and provide to, federal and state agencies confidential information 

gathered in the administration of the exchange including Social Security numbers if the 

disclosure is necessary for the Commissioner or receiving entity to perform its duties 

and responsibilities . 

What Resources Are Needed For an Exchange? 

The bill also provides that the Commissioner may seek Emergency Commission and 

Budget Section approval for authority to spend any general funds, special funds or 

federal funds available under PPACA. The federal government will provide grants for 

exchange planning and development. ~ q,.,.:,. --"j\,l1"';, 1:£" ~ A~ ~ Ac:nC"-1 ,...i 

Fli:O. ca.,iz.:,. "lb ~e: 'PR).cA ~ , ,;=- ...0. t::o wG:. ~? 
Forty-eight states and the District of Columbia were awarded their first exchange 

planning grants in September 2010. Those grants were for planning purposes and the 

next round of grants will be for the purpose of establishing an exchange. The 

opportunity to apply for grants will be announced in February 2011 and will become 

available on a rolling basis throughout the next three years. States will have to meet 

certain milestones in order to be awarded grants in 2011, and the size of state awards 

may be related to the number of milestones met. Necessary exchange planning and 

establishment costs will be funded by HHS until 2015. After January 1, 2015, 
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exchanges must be self-funded. North Dakota was approved to receive $1,000,000 in 

the first round of exchange grants; however, the Emergency Commission tabled the 

request to utilize these funds. These funds could be important right now given the 

challenging infrastructure requirements needed to develop an exchange. They can be 

used to analyze options, define requirements, and estimate the probable cost to 

implement an electronic system to operate the state's exchange. Future grant funds will 

be available to pay for the cost of building the system that will operate the exchange. 

In addition to the staffing and information technology infrastructure needs, the state will 

need resources to help it identify and address many issues and to make informed 

decisions along the way, including: 

1. Unified exchange. A state has to provide an exchange that facilitates 

individuals' purchase of health insurance and an exchange that serves 

small businesses. The state may choose to operate them separately or 

both in one exchange as long as it serves both functions . 

2. Regional exchange. States may form a regional exchange with other 

states or allow more than one exchange to operate in the state as long as 

each exchange serves a distinct geographic region. 

3. Stakeholders. PPACA requires states to consult with stakeholders in 

implementation of the exchange. Stakeholders must include health care 

consumers who enroll in qualified health plans, individuals and entities 

experienced in facilitating enrollment in qualified health plans, 

representatives of small businesses and self-employed individuals, state 

Medicaid offices, and advocates for enrolling hard to reach populations. In 

planning for this legislative session, the Insurance Department has already 

begun stakeholder conversations. I can assure you that the exchange is a 

focus for many of these individuals and groups . 
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4. Funding. How will the state ensure that the exchange is self-sustaining 

as of January 1, 2015? Exchanges are allowed to charge assessments or 

user fees to participating insurance issuers or to otherwise generate 

funding in order to support its operations. 

5. Outside market. Will insurers be allowed to sell health plans outside the 

exchange? And if an external market remains, will insurers be required to 

offer plans both in and out of the exchange? 

6. Large employers. Beginning in 2017, an exchange may allow 

businesses with more than 100 employees to purchase coverage in the 

exchange also. 

7. Mandates. Does the state want to require that plans offer benefits in 

addition to the essential health benefits package? If so, the state must 

assume the cost by making payments to individuals enrolled in a qualified 

health plan in the state or making payments directly to the qualified health 

plan on behalf of the individual. HHS has not yet determined how the 

essential health benefits package will be defined. 

8. Data reporting. Determination of the data that will be required to be 

reported, what persons will be allowed to access data, and how to ensure 

appropriate protection of data. 

9. Certification of plans. The exchange must implement procedures for the 

certification, recertification and decertification of health plans as qualified 

health plans. It is expected that this will require someone to analyze the 

health plans offered for sale through the exchange to ensure that they 

meet one of the required benefit categories: bronze plans which must 

cover 60% of benefit costs; silver plans which must cover 70% of benefit 

costs; gold plans which must cover 80% of benefit costs; platinum plans 
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which must cover 90% of benefit costs; and catastrophic plans, which are 

available only to those up to age 30, which must provide catastrophic 

coverage only. Someone must also ensure that the plans offered in the 

exchange meet certain benefit requirements, marketing requirements, 

have adequate provider networks, contract with essential community 

providers, contract with navigators to conduct outreach and enrollment 

assistance, be accredited with respect to performance on quality 

measures, and use a uniform enrollment form and standard format to 

present plan information. 

10. Hotline. The exchange must provide for the operation of a toll-free hotline 

to respond to assistance requests. 

11. Website. The exchange must maintain an internet website through which 

enrollees and prospective enrollees of qualified health plans may obtain 

standardized comparative information on health plans. 

12. Ratings. The exchange must assign a rating to each qualified health 

benefit plan offered through the exchange. 

13. Standardized format. The exchange must use a standardized format for 

presenting health benefits plan options in the exchange, including the use 

of the uniform outline of coverage. 

14. Other coverage. The exchange must inform individuals of Medicaid, 

CHIP, and other state or local public programs eligibility requirements and 

enroll eligible individuals in these programs. 

15 . Calculator. The exchange must provide an electronic calculator to 

determine the actual cost of coverage after the application of any premium 

tax credit and any cost-sharing reduction. 
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16. Individual responsibility certification. The exchange must grant a 

certification attesting that for purpose of the individual responsibility 

penalty (individual mandate) that an individual is exempt from the penalty 

because there is no affordable qualified health plan available through the 

exchange or the individual's employer, or the individual meets the 

requirement for any other exemption. 

17. Certification of penalty exemption. The exchange must transfer to the 

Secretary of the Treasury a list of individuals who are issued a certification 

of penalty exemption. 

18. Employer notice. The exchange must provide each employer with the 

name of each of its employees who ceases coverage under a qualified 

health plan during a plan year. 

19. Navigator program. The exchange must establish a Navigator program 

under which it awards grants to entities to carry out certain duties such as 

➔ public education, facilitating enrollment in qualified health plans, and -
providing referrals to health insurance ombudsman or other appropriate 

agency for any enrollee with a grievance, complaint, or question regarding 

his health plan, coverage, or a determination under such plan or coverage. 

20. Producers. The exchange must determine the role insurance producers 

(agents) will play in the sale of health benefit plans in the exchange. 

The bill also contains an emergency clause so that it would become effective 

immediately upon its filing with the Secretary of State to allow work to start to address 

the many decisions that will have to be made and the work to begin to build an IT 

system that will be capable of performing all the required functions. 

11 



• 

• 

In closing, there are many decisions to be made about how the exchange will be run in 

North Dakota. There will be more decisions to be made as things are further defined or 

changed at the federal level. Several federal agencies are tasked with issuing 

regulations to implement the law and many of them have yet to be issued so various 

components remain undefined at this point. In addition, there is the prospect of 

Congress making changes to the law as well as the numerous legal challenges to the 

law that are making their way through the court system. For now, the law requires that 

there be an exchange implemented in North Dakota. The first decision is who will run it: 

the federal government or the state. Our stakeholders are telling us they prefer North 

Dakota run its own exchange and cite the numerous problems with other federal 

insurance programs as examples of how North Dakotans serve our own better. In fact, it 

is my Department that assists Medicare Part D prescription drug beneficiaries in 

comparing, choosing, and enrolling in Part D plans, as well as dealing with issues and 

complaints. This piece of legislation places similar responsibilities related to the 

exchange in this same agency . 

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to try to answer any questions the 

committee members may have. Thank you . 
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Testimony 
House Bill 1126 - Department of Human Services 

Before the Joint Meeting of 
House Industry, Business & Labor 
Representative Keiser, Chairman 

House Appropriations, Government Operations Division 
Representative Thoreson, Chairman 

February 1, 2011 

Chairmen Keiser and Thoreson, members of the Industry, Business & 

Labor Committee and House Appropriations, Government Operations 

Division, I am Carol Olson, Executive Director of the Department of 

Human Services. I am here today to provide information to you 

regarding the relationship between an American Health Benefit Exchange 

and the programs within Department of Human Services. 

If it is the interest of this committee to pursue the establishment of an 

American Health Benefit Exchange for the state that will meet the 

requirements as currently outlined in the Patient Protection and 

Affordable Care Act of 2010, it will be important for this committee to 

consider the implications of: 

• Title I, Section 1311(d)(4)(F) requiring, at a minimum, for the 

Exchange to provide for eligibility determination and the enrollment 

---~,of-individuals in Medicaid-and CHIP programs; and 

• Title II Role of Public Programs, Section 2201 which outlines more 

specifically the requirements of enrollment simplification and 

Medicaid and CHIP coordination with the State Health Insurance 

Exchange. 

The intent of these sections is to ensure that the American Health Benefit 

Exchange provide seamless eligibility and enrollment linkages between 

the exchange coverage options and public assistance programs. In order 

to achieve this level of interoperability with the Exchange, the Medicaid 

and CHIP eligibility systems will require significant modification. 

I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 


